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INFOSYS BPM LIMITED

(formerly Infosys BPO Limited)



Independent auditors’ report

(formerly known as Infosys BPO limited)

To the members of Infosys BPM Limited

Report on the standalone financial statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of Infosys BPM limited (‘the Company’), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's responsibility for the standalone
financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act,
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone
financial statements based on our audit.

In conducting our audit, we have taken into account
the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under
Section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
standalone financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2018, and its profit, total comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based
on our audit we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) on the basis of the written representations received from
the directors as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in ‘Annexure A. Our report expresses a unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’ internal financial controls over financial reporting.
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g) with respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations
on its financial position in its standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii. There were not amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditors’
Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the
central government in terms of Section 143(11)
of the Act, we give in Annexure B" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm registration number:117366W / W-100018)

Anand Subramanian

Partner

(Membership No.110815)
Bengaluru, April 11, 2018

Annexure A to the independent auditors’ report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of Infosys BPM Limited of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Infosys BPM limited (‘the Company’)
as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
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of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial
reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of the Management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Control Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India .

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm registration number:117366W / W-100018)

Anand Subramanian

Partner

(Membership No.110815)
Bengaluru, April 11, 2018

Annexure ‘B’ to the independent auditors’ report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the
Members of Infosys BPM Limited of even date)

i. In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover
substantial items of fixed assets in a phased manner which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(¢) In respect of immovable properties of land and buildings
that have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed asset
in the financial statements, the lease arrangements are
in the name of the Company, where the Company is the
lessee in the agreement.

ii. The Company is in the business of providing business
process management services and does not have any physical
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inventories. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of
grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees
and securities, as applicable.

v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year
and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31,
2018 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3(v) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified
by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the
Act, for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Thus reporting under clause 3(vi) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to
us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable
to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service
Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) Details of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Goods and Service Tax which have not been deposited as at
March 31, 2018 on account of dispute are given below:
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Name of Statute Nature of Dues Forum where Period to which Amount

Dispute is the Amount (Rs.in Crores)

Pending Relates

High Court A.Y. 2006-07 0.45

Appellate

Tribunal AY. 2011-12 0.32
The Income Tax Act 1961 Income Tax Appellate

Authority upto  A.Y. 2008-09
Commissioner’s to 2016-17,
level 2018-19 18.16
Appellate
Authority upto
Commissioners 2011-12 and
level 2012-13 —*
January 2005
to March 2007,
April 2007
to September
2010, October
2010 to
Appellate September
Tribunal 2011. 94.69

Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax

* Indicates amount less ¥ 1 crore.

viil. The company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government or has not issued
any debentures. Hence reporting under clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or
term loans and hence reporting under clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and
no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions
have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number:117366W / W-100018

Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership number:110815

Bengaluru
April 11, 2018

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18 Infosys BPM Limited | 5



Balance Sheet

in ¥ crore
Particulars Note As at March 31,
2018 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.1 249 256
Capital work-in-progress 3 13
Goodwill 19 19
Financial assets
Investments 2.2 968 916
Loans 2.3 - —
Other financial assets 2.4 31 33
Deferred tax assets net 214 50 41
Income tax assets net 2.14 77 59
Other non-current assets 2.7 27 10
Total non-current assetS 1,424 1,347
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 2.2 458 279
Trade receivables 2.5 569 491
Cash and cash equivalents 2.6 1,303 2,061
Loans 2.3 18 17
Other financial assets 2.4 164 193
Other current assets 2.7 44 55
Total current assets 2,556 3,096
Total assets 3,980 4,443
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 2.9 34 34
Other equity 3,407 3,961
Total equity 3,441 3,995
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 2.10 1 -
Other non-current liabilities 2.12 9 -
Total non-current liabilities 10 -
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 2.11 29 7
Other financial liabilities 2.10 352 317
Other current liabilities 2.12 114 88
Provisions 2.13 22 28
Income tax liabilities net 2.14 12 8
Total current liabilities 529 448
Total equity and liabilities 3,980 4,443
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys BPM Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number:117366W / W-100018

Anand Subramanian Ravikumar Singisetti Anantharaman Radhakrishnan
Partner Chairman and Director Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Membership number: 110815

D.N. Prahlad Sangita Singh Prof. Jayanth R.

Director Director Varma

Director

Bengaluru Nishit Ajitkumar Shah ~ Bindu Raghavan
April 11,2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in ¥ crore, except equity share and per equity share data

Particulars Note No. Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Revenue from operations 3,061 2,940
Other income, net 2.15 219 221
Total Income 3,280 3,161
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.16 1,888 1,728
Cost of technical sub-contractors and professional charges 2.16 210 161
Travel expenses 125 126
Lease rentals 2.17 96 88
Depreciation and amortization expense 2.1 77 74
Other expenses 2.16 242 234
Total expenses 2,638 2,411
Profit before tax 642 750
Tax expense:
Current tax 2.14 182 198
Deferred tax 2.14 9) -
Profit for the year 469 552

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset (3) 4)
©) G))

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Fair value changes on investmens, net of tax ) -
©)) -
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax 5) “)
Total comprehensive income for the year 464 548

Earnings per equity share
Equity shares of par value X 10/- each

Basic }) 138.76 163.14
Diluted }) 138.76 163.14
Weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per share
Basic 2.19 3,38,27,751 3,38,27,751
Diluted 2.19 3,38,27,751 3,38,27,751

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys BPM Limited

Chartered Accountants

Firm’ registration number:117366W / W-100018

Anand Subramanian Ravikumar Singisetti Anantharaman Radhakrishnan
Partner Chairman and Director Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Membership number: 110815

D.N. Prahlad Sangita Singh Prof. Jayanth R.

Director Director Varma

Director

Bengaluru Nishit Ajitkumar Shah ~ Bindu Raghavan
April 11,2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of Changes in Equity

in ¥ crore

Particulars Other equity Total equity
Equity share Reserves and surplus Other attributable to
capital comprehensive  equity holders
Securities Retained  Capital reserve  General reserve Special income of the Company
premium earnings economic zone
account re-investment
reserve!)
Balance as at April 1, 2016 34 25 2,397 1 1,000 - (10) 3,447
Changes in equity for the
year ended March 31, 2017
Fair value changes on - - - - - - - -
investments, net of tax
Remeasurement of the net = = = = = = “4) “)
defined benefit liability /
asset
Profit for the year - - 552 - - - 552
Balance as at March 31, 34 25 2,949 1 1,000 = (14) 3,995
2017
Balance as at April 1, 2017 34 25 2,949 1 1,000 - (14) 3,995
Changes in equity for the
year ended March 31, 2018
Fair value changes on - - - - - - ) @)
investments, net of tax
Remeasurement of the net - - - - - - 3 (3)
defined benefit liability /
asset
Dividends (including - - (1,018) - - - — (1,018)
corporate dividend tax of
%172 crore)
Transfer to Special = - (59) = = 59 = =
Economic Zone Re-
investment Reserve
Transfer from Special - - 35 - - (39) - -
Economic Zone Re-
investment Reserve on
utilization
Profit for the year - - 469 - - - - 469
Balance as at March 31, 34 25 2,376 1 1,000 24 (19) 3,441
2018
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(DThe Special Economic Zone Re-investment Reserve has been created out of the profit of eligible SEZ units in terms of the provisions of Sec 10AA(1) (ii) of Income Tax Act,1961.
The reserve should be utilized by the Company for acquiring new plant and machinery for the purpose of its business in the terms of the Sec 10AA(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number:117366W/ W-100018

Anand Subramanian

Partner

Membership number: 110815

Bengaluru
April 11, 2018

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys BPM Limited

Ravikumar Singisetti
Chairman and Director

D.N. Prahlad

Director

Nishit Ajitkumar Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Anantharaman Radhakrishnan

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Sangita Singh

Director

Bindu Raghavan
Company Secretary

Prof. Jayanth R. Varma
Director



Statement of Cash Flows

in ¥ crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year 469 552
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 77 74
Income tax expense 173 198
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment @h) -
Interest on bank deposits and others (119) (181)
Income on other financial assets (61) (14)
Effect of exchange rate changes on assets and liabilities @h) 22
Allowance for credit loss on financial assets 1 -
Other adjustments (€)) -
Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables and unbilled revenue (92) 5
Loans and other financial assets and other assets 4 (13)
Trade payables 22 3)
Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions 68 (38)
Cash generated from operations 536 602
Income taxes paid (194) (198)
Net cash generated by operating activities 342 404
Cash flow from investing activities
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment net of sale proceeds, including
changes in retention money and capital creditors (58) 92)
Loans to employees @h) -
Deposits placed with corporation (6) -
Interest received on bank deposits and others 180 200
Investment in subsidiary - @)
Payment to acquire financial assets
Non-convertible debentures (104) (298)
Certificates of deposit (363) (270)
Government bonds = (5)
Fixed maturity plans - (50)
Liquid mutual fund units (3,407) (2,872)
Proceeds on sale of financial assets
Liquid mutual fund units 3,387 2,892
Certificates of deposit 279 -
Government bonds 10 -
Net cash used in investing activities (83) (502)
Cash flow from financing activities:
Payment of dividends (including corporate dividend tax) (1,018) -
Net cash used in financing activities (1,018) =
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 1 2N
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (759) (98)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,061 2,186
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,303 2,061

Supplementary information:
Restricted cash balance = =
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys BPM Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number:117366W / W-100018

Anand Subramanian Ravikumar Singisetti Anantharaman Radhakrishnan
Partner Chairman and Director Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
Membership number: 110815

D.N. Prahlad Sangita Singh Prof. Jayanth R.

Director Director Varma

Director

Bengaluru Nishit Ajitkumar Shah ~ Bindu Raghavan
April 11,2018 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Notes to the Standalone Financial
Statements

1. Company Overview and Significant
Accounting Policies

1.1 Company overview

Infosys BPM Limited (‘Infosys BPM’ or ‘the Company’)
(formerly known as Infosys BPO Limited) was incorporated
on April 3, 2002 to provide business process management
services to organizations that outsource their business
processes. Infosys BPM is a majority-owned and controlled
subsidiary of Infosys Limited. The Company helps clients
improve their competitive positioning by managing their
business processes in addition to providing increased value.
The Company is a public limited company incorporated
and domiciled in India and has its registered office at
Bengaluru, Karnataka, India.

With effect from December 18, 2017, the name of the
Company was changed from Infosys BPO Limited to
Infosys BPM Limited.

The standalone financial statements are approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors on April 11, 2018.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These standalone financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS),
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured
at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant
amendment rules issued thereafter.

Effective April 1, 2016, the Company has adopted all the Ind
AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance
with Ind AS 101, First-Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards, with April 1, 2015 as the transition date. The
transition was carried out from Indian Accouting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.

Amounts for the year ended March 31, 2017 were audited by
previous auditors B S R & Co. LLP.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied, except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

1.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
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during the year. the application of accounting policies that
require critical accounting estimates involving complex and
subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in the
standalone financial statements have been disclosed in Note
1.4. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements
in the period in which changes are made and, if material,
their effects are disclosed in the notes to the standalone
financial statements.

1.4 Critical accounting estimates

a. Revenue recognition

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in
accounting for its fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-
of-completion method requires the Company to estimate the
efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the total
efforts or costs to be expended. Efforts or costs expended
have been used to measure progress towards completion as
there is a direct relationship between input and productivity.
Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted
contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses
become probable based on the expected contract estimates
at the reporting date.

b. Income taxes

The Company’s major tax jurisdiction is India even though the
Company also files tax returns in other overseas jurisdiction.
Significant judgments are involved in determining the
provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions.

c. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant
proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining
an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected
residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and
residual values of the Company’s assets are determined by the
Management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed
periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives
are based on historical experience with similar assets as well
as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life,
such as changes in technology.

d. Impairment of goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and
whenever there is an indication that the recoverable amount
of a cash-generating unit (CGU) is less than its carrying
amount based on a number of factors including operating
results, business plans, future cash flows and economic
conditions. The recoverable amount of cash generating units
is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value
less cost to sell. The goodwill impairment test is performed
at the level of the CGU or groups of CGU which are
benefitting from the synergies of the acquisition and which
represents the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purpose.
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Market related information and estimates are used to
determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on
which the Management has based it’s determination of
recoverable amount include estimated long term growth
rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated
operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account
past experience and represent the Management’s best estimate
about future developments.

1.5 Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from business process
management services and related services. Arrangements
with customers for business process management related
services are either on a fixed-price, fixed-timeframe or on a
time-and-material basis.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as
the related services are performed and revenue from the end
of the last billing to the Balance Sheet date is recognized as
unbilled revenues. Revenue from fixed-price, fixed-timeframe
contracts, where there is no uncertainty as to measurement
or collectability of consideration, is recognized as per the
percentage-of-completion method. When there is uncertainty
as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue
recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.
Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress
towards completion as there is a direct relationship between
input and productivity. Provisions for estimated losses, if
any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period
in which such losses become probable based on the current
contract estimates. Costs and earnings in excess of billings are
classified as unbilled revenue, while billings in excess of costs
and earnings are classified as unearned revenue. Deferred
contract costs are amortized over the term of the contract.
Maintenance revenue is recognized rateably over the term of
the underlying maintenance arrangement.

In arrangements for transition-related services and
maintenance services, the Company has applied the guidance
in Ind AS 18, Revenue, by applying the revenue recognition
criteria for each separately identifiable component of a single
transaction. The arrangements generally meet the criteria
for considering transition related services as separately
identifiable components. For allocating the consideration,
the Company has measured the revenue in respect of each
separable component of a transaction at its fair value, in
accordance with principles given in Ind AS 18. The price that
is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the
best evidence of its fair value. In cases where the Company is
unable to establish objective and reliable evidence of fair value
for the transition related services, the Company has used a
residual method to allocate the arrangement consideration. In
these cases, the balance of the consideration, after allocating
the fair values of undelivered components of a transaction,
has been allocated to the delivered components for which
specific fair values do not exist.

Advances received for services and products are reported
as client deposits until all conditions for revenue
recognition are met.

The Company accounts for volume discounts and pricing
incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based on
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the rateable allocation of the discounts / incentives amount
to each of the underlying revenue transaction that results
in progress by the customer towards earning the discount
/ incentive. Also, when the level of discount varies with
increases in levels of revenue transactions, the Company
recognizes the liability based on its estimate of the customer’s
future purchases. If it is probable that the criteria for the
discount will not be met, or if the amount thereof cannot
be estimated reliably, then discount is not recognized until
the payment is probable and the amount can be estimated
reliably. The Company recognizes changes in the estimated
amount of obligations for discounts in the period in which the
change occurs. The discounts are passed on to the customer
either as direct payments or as a reduction of payments
due from the customer.

The Company present revenues net of indirect taxes in its
Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs
directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the
property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended
by the Management. The Company depreciates property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of
assets are as follows:

Building™ 22-25 years
Plant and machinery® 5 years
Computer equipment™” 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures®” 5 years
Office equipment™ 5 years

1 Based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the
Management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for
these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C
of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold improvements are written off over the lower of the

lease term or the useful life of the asset.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified
as capital advances under other non current assets and the
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed
under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures
relating to property, plant and equipment are capitalized only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance
costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements
upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains
or losses are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower
of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.
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1.7 Financial instruments

1.7.1 Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial
liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities
are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for
trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction
price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities,
that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to
the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase
and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

1.7.2 Subsequent measurement

a. Non-derivative financial instruments
(1) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value other

compre hensive income

through

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in
cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election
based on its business model, for its investments which are
classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(iil) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above
categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.
(iv) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, except for contingent
consideration recognized in a business combination which
is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from
the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(v) Investment in subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost in the separate
financial statements.

b. Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments
such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign
currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts
is generally a bank.
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(i) Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value
through profit or loss

This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities
which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives
constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated as
hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109,
is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at fair
value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at
fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at fair
value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains
or losses are included in other income. Assets / liabilities
in this category are presented as current assets / current
liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to
be realized within twelve months after the Balance Sheet date.

(i) Cash flow hedges
The Company designates certain foreign exchange forward
and options contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the

risk of foreign exchange exposure on highly probable
forecast cash transactions.

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging
instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value
of the derivative is recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve. Any
ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative
is recognized immediately in the net profit in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. If the hedging instrument no longer meets
the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires
oris sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or loss
on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging
reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in cash
flow hedging reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs.
The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the
cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the net profit in
the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the
related forecasted transaction. If the forecasted transaction is
no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated
in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to net profit in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

c. Share capital

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares

and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity,
net of any tax effects.

1.7.3 Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from
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the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

1.8 Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the
Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each
reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value
include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted
market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing
fair value result in general approximation of value, and such
value may never actually be realized.

Refer to Note No. 2.8 for the disclosure on carrying value
and fair value of financial assets and liabilities. For financial
assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the
Balance Sheet date and which are not carried at fair value,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to short
maturity of these instruments.

1.9 Impairment

a. Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected
credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are
not fair-valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for
trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount
of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust
the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that
is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment
gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Non-financial assets
(1) Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and
whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be
impaired, relying on number of factors including operation
results, business plans and future cash flows. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to the Company’s cash generating
units (CGU) or groups of CGU’s expected to benefit from the
synergies arising from the business combination. A CGU is
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
flows that are largely independent of the cash flows from
other assets or group of assets. Impairment occurs when the
carrying amount of CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. The recoverable
amount of the CGU if the higher of its fair value less cost to
sell and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of
future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU.

Total impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then
to the other assets of the CGU pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment
loss in goodwill is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss and is not reversed in the subsequent period.
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(i) Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost
to sell or the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

1f such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to
be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured
by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An
impairment loss is reversed in the Statement of Profit and Loss
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that
this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years.

1.10 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
is reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.

a. Post-sales client support

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post
sales support for corrections of errors and support on all its
fixed-price, fixed-timeframe, and time and material contracts.
Costs associated with such support services are accrued
at the time-related revenues are recorded and included
in cost of sales. The Company estimates such costs based
on historical experience and estimates are reviewed on a
periodic basis for any material changes in assumptions and
likelihood of occurrence.

b. Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the
expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting
the future obligations under the contract. The provision is
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established
the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract.
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1.11 Foreign currency
Functional currency
The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees (rounded off to crore; one crore equals ten million).

Transactions and translations

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
are translated into the relevant functional currency at
exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains
or losses resulting from such translations are included in net
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary
assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency and measured at fair value are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and non-monetary
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent
at the date of transaction.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign
currency transactions are included in determining net profit
for the period in which the transaction is settled. Revenue,
expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into the relevant functional currencies using the
exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction.

1.12 Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the
net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is
computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity
share and also the weighted average number of equity shares
that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares
are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value
of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for
any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes
effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by
the Board of Directors.

1.13 Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income
tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case
it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Current
income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at
the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all
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temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities, and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect
of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period
that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment
date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax
losses can be utilized. Deferred income taxes are not provided
on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and branches
where it is expected that the earnings of the subsidiary or
branch will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. The
Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The income tax provision for the interim period is made
based on the best estimate of the annual average tax rate
expected to be applicable for the full financial year. Tax
benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee share
options in excess of compensation charged to income are
credited to share premium.

1.14 Employee benefits

1.14.1 Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit
retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment
to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation
or termination of employment, of an amount based
on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of
employment with the Company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by
actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary at
each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method.
The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to
the Infosys BPO Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust
(the Trust). Trustees administer contributions made to the
Trusts and contributions are invested in a scheme with Life
Insurance Corporation of India as permitted by Indian Law.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined
benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset or liability. Gains
and losses through remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability / asset are recognized in other comprehensive income.
The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of
the yields computed by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in other
comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are
recognized in net profits in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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1.14.2 Superannuation

Certain employees of the Company are participants in a defined
contribution plan. The Company has no further obligations
to the superannuation plan beyond the monthly contribution
to the Infosys BPO Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund
Trust, the corpus of which is invested with the Life Insurance
Corporation of India.

1.14.3 Pension

Certain employees of the Company are participants in a defined
contribution plan. The Company has no further obligations to
the pension plan beyond the monthly contributions.

1.14.4 Provident fund

Eligible employees of the Company are participants in
defined contribution plan. The Company has no further
obligations under the provident fund plan beyond its
monthly contributions.

1.14.5 Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which
are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature.
The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an
independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date using projected
unit credit method on the additional amount expected to
be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement that
has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date. Expense on non-
accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the
period in which the absences occur.

1.15 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby
profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions
of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

Amendment in Ind AS 7:

Effective April 1,2017, the Company adopted the amendment
to Ind AS 7, which requires the entities to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes,
suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising
from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement.
The adoption of amendment did not have any material effect
on the standalone financial statements.

1.16 Other income

Other income primarily comprises interest income, dividend
income and exchange gain / loss on investments and forward
and options contracts and on translation of other assets and
liabilities. Interest income is recognized using the effective
interest method. Dividend income is recognized when the
right to receive payment is established.
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1.17 Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the
date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividends
are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the
Company’s Board of Directors.

1.18 Leases

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. When acquired, such assets are capitalized at fair
value or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments
under operating leases are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis in net profit in the Statement of Profit and
Loss over the lease term.

1.19 Recent accounting pronouncements

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, MCA has
notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS
21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration
which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has
received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

This rule will come into force from April 1, 2018. The Group
has evaluated the effect of this on the consolidated financial
statements and it is not material.

Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On
March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified
the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers.
The core principle of the new standard is that an entity
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Further, the new
standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

e Retrospective approach: This standard will be applied
retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented
in accordance with Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors

¢ Cumulative catch-up approach: Retrospectively with
cumulative effect of initially applying the standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018.

The Group will adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 by
using use the cumulative catch-up transition method and
accordingly comparatives for the year ending March 31, 2018
will not be retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of
Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant.
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2.1 Property, plant and equipment

The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2018 are as follows:

in ¥ crore

Particulars Land- Buildings Leasehold  Plant and Office  Computer  Furniture Total
leasehold @ improvement machinery equipment equipment and fixtures
©) @06) ©) ©)

Gross carrying
value as at April
1,2017 12 153 93 46 111 264 61 740
Additions - - 22 13 3 26 6 70
Deletions — — (D — (D 20) @8 23)
Gross carrying
value as at
March 31, 2018 12 153 114 59 113 270 66 787
Accumulated
depreciation as
at April 1, 2017 1 56 62 30 100 182 53 484
Depreciation - 5 16 7 5 39 5 77
Accumulated
depreciation on
deletions - - (D - (D 20) @8 23)
Accumulated
depreciation as
at March 31,
2018 1 61 77 37 104 201 57 538
Carrying value
as at March 31,
2018 11 92 37 22 9 69 9 249
Carrying value
as at April 1,
2017 11 97 31 16 11 82 8 256
The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2017 are as follows:

in ¥ crore
Particulars Land- Buildings Leasehold  Plant and Office  Computer Furniture Total

leasehold improvement machinery equipment equipment and
fixtures

Gross carrying
value as at April 1,
2016 12 152 71 43 120 237 61 696
Additions - 1 26 3 5 48 6 89
Deletions - - C)) - (14) Q1) 6 45
Gross carrying
value as at March
31,2017 12 153 93 46 111 264 61 740
Accumulated
depreciation as at
April 1, 2016 1 50 54 22 109 166 53 455
Depreciation = 6 12 8 5 37 6 74y
Accumulated
depreciation on
deletions - - (G)) - 14 QD © 45
Accumulated
depreciation as at
March 31, 2017 1 56 62 30 100 182 53 484
Carrying value as at
March 31, 2017 11 97 31 16 11 82 8 256
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Particulars Land- Buildings  Leasehold  Plant and Office  Computer Furniture  Total
leasehold improvement machinery equipment equipment and
fixtures
Carrying value as at
April 1, 2016 11 102 17 21 11 71 8 241

) Gross carrying value of leasehold land represents amounts paid under certain lease-cum-sale agreement to acquire land including agreement where the

Company has an option to purchase or renew the property on expiry of the lease period.
@ Include ¥ 3 crore spent on CSR activities for the year ended March 31, 2018.
© Property, plant and equipment of T 13 crore was transferred from Infosys Limited to Infosys BPM Limited.

The aggregate depreciation has been included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The rental income from the leasing of certain assets to holding company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31,

2017 amounted to ¥ 3 crore and X 8 crore, respectively.

2.2 Investments
in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31
2018 2017
Non-current investments
Equity instruments of subsidiaries 569 569
Non-convertible debentures 346 297
Fixed maturity plan securities 53 50
968 916
Current investments
Liquid mutual fund units 38 -
Government bonds - 9
Certificates of deposit 368 270
Non-convertible debentures 52 -
458 279
Total carrying value 1,426 1,195

in X crore, except as stated otherwise

Particulars As at March 31
2018 2017
Non-current investments
Unquoted
Investments carried at cost
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o0. 3 3
Infosys Poland Sp z.0.0, 5,000 (5,000) equity shares of PLN 500 each, fully paid 59 59
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC 289 289
Portland Group Pty Limited, 17,45,00,000 (17,45,00,000) equity share of AUD 1 each,
fully paid 211 211
Infosys BPO Americas LLC 7 7
569 569
Quoted
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
Non-convertible debentures ( Refer to Note 2.2.3) 346 297
346 297
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss
Fixed maturity plan securities ( Refer to Note 2.2.4) 53 50
53 50
Total Non-current investments 968 916
Current investments
Unquoted
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss
Liquid mutual fund units ( Refer to Note 2.2.1) 38 -
38 -
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
Certificates of deposit ( Refer to Note 2.2.5) 368 270
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Particulars As at March 31
2018 2017
368 270
Quoted
Investments carried at amortized cost
Government bonds ( Refer to Note 2.2.2) - 9
- 9
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
Non-convertible debentures ( Refer to Note 2.2.3) 52 -
52 —
Total current investments 458 279
Total investments 1,426 1,195
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 451 356
Market value of quoted investments (including interest accrued thereon) 451 356
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 975 839
Investment carried at cost 569 569
Investment carried at amortized cost - 9
Investment carried at fair value through other comprehensive income 766 567
Investment carried at fair value through profit or loss 91 50
2.2.1 Details of investments in liquid mutual fund units
The balances held in liquid mutual fund units are as follows:
in X crore
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Units Amount Units Amount
Aditya Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Growth Direct Plan 13,62,562 38 - -
13,62,562 38 - -
2.2.2 Details of investments in government bonds
The balances held in government bonds are as follows:
in X crore
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Units Amount Units Amount
Treasury Notes PHY6972FWQ99 MAT DATE 07 June 2017 - - 3,40,000 4
Treasury Notes PIBL1217C056 MAT DATE 14 Mar 2018 - - 4.00,000 5
- - 7,40,000 9
2.2.3 Details of investments in non-convertible debentures
The balances held in non-convertible debentures are as follows:
in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Units Amount Units Amount
8.60% Life Insurance Corporation Housing Finance Limited
22JUL2020 1,000 107 1,000 108
8.60% Life Insurance Corporation Housing Finance Limited
29JUL2020 350 37 350 38
8.50% Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
31AUG2020 50 54 50 53
8.49% Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
27APR2020 900 49 900 49
8.66% Infrastructure Development Finance Company Bank
Limited 27DEC2018 400 52 400 49
7.78% Housing Development Finance Corporation Ltd
24MAR2020 100 99 = =
2,800 398 2,700 297
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2.2.4 Details of investments in fixed maturity plan securities

The balances held in fixed maturiy plan securities are as follows:
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in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Units Amount Units Amount
ICICI FMP Series 80-1194 D Plan F Div 1,50,00,000 16 1,50,00,000 15
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund-XXXII Series 8-Dividend Plan 1,50,00,000 15 1,50,00,000 15
HDFC FMP 1155D Feb 2017-Direct Growth Series 37 1,00,00,000 11 1,00,00,000 10
Birla Sunlife Fixed Term Plan- Series OD (1145 days) 1,00,00,000 11 1,00,00,000 10
5,00,00,000 53 5,00,00,000 50
2.2.5 Details of investments in certificates of deposit
The balances held in certifictes of deposit are as follows:
in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Units Amount Units Amount
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited CD 23 Feb 18 - - 11,500 109
AXIS Bank Limited CD 19 Jan 18 - - 12,000 114
IDFC Bank Limited CD 07 Mar 18 - - 5,000 47
AXIS Bank Limited CD 24 Jan 19 23,000 217 - -
ICICI Bank Limited CD 14 Feb 19 10,000 95 - -
ICICI Bank Limited CD 21 Feb 19 6,000 56 - -
39,000 368 28,500 270
2.3 Loans
in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31 Particulars As at March 31
2018 2017 2018 2017
Non-current Foreign currency forward
Unsecured, considered contracts = 16
doubtful Others ®® 5 3
Loans to employees 4 6 164 193
Less: Allowance for Total other financial assets 195 226
doubtful loans to ) Financial assets carried at
employees 4 6 amortized cost 195 210
— — @ Financial assets carried at fair value
Current through Profit or Loss - 16
. ® Includes dues from holding
Unsecured, considered company, subsidiaries and other
good group companies ( Refer to Note
Loans to employees 18 17 2.21) 11 2
18 17
Total loans 18 17 Restricted deposits represent deposit with financial
institutions to settle employee related obligations as and when
2 4 Other financial assets they arise during the normal course of business.
inXcrore 2 5 Trade receivables
Particulars As at March 31 in % crore
2018 2017 Particulars As at March 31,
Non-current 2018 2017
Security deposits 2 2 Current
Rental deposits 29 31 Unsecured
31 33 Considered good™ 569 491
Current Considered doubtful 8 8
Security deposits 1 3 577 490
Rental deposits 2 Less: Allowances for credit
Restricted deposits” 81 75 logses 8 3
Unbilled revenues™® 55 42 569 491
Interest accrued but not @ Includes dues from holding
due @ 19 52 company, subsidiaries and other
group companies ( Refer to Note
2.21) 59 37
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As at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, there are no
outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises. There are
no interest due or outstanding on the same.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Balances with banks
In current and deposit
accounts 692 1,311
Cash on hand - -
Others
Deposits with financial
institution 611 750
1,303 2,061

Deposit with more than 12
months maturity - -

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2018 and March
31, 2017 include restricted cash and bank balances of less
than X 1 crore each. This represents restricted bank balance,
in trust account, in accordance with collection agency
licensing requirements.

The deposits maintained by the Company with banks and
financial institutions comprise of time deposits, which can be
withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice
or penalty on the principal.

The details of balances as at Balance Sheet dates with
banks are as follows:

in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017

In current accounts
Bank of America, California, USA 24 17
Bank of America, California- Trust
account, USA*
Bank of Philippine Islands,

Philippines 1 -
Citibank, Philippines - 1
Citi Bank, South Africa 1 1
Citi Bank, Costa Rica 1 5
Citi Bank, Singapore 1 1
Citi Bank, Australia 6 -
Deutsche Bank, India 4 3
Deutsche Bank- EEFC (Euro

account) 1 4
Deutsche Bank- EEFC (UK Pound

Sterling account) 1 1
Deutsche Bank- EEFC

(US Dollar account) 5 3
Deutsche Bank, Netherland 5 -
Deutsche Bank, London, UK 1 1
Deutsche Bank, Philippines

(PHP account) 10 1
Deutsche Bank, Philippines -

(USD account) 3 4
ICICI Bank, India

ICICI Bank- EEFC (Euro account) 1 1

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18

Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
ICICI Bank- EEFC
(UK Pound Sterling account) 11 1
ICICI Bank- EEFC
(US Dollar account) 29 1
Royal Bank of Canada 1 -
State Bank of India, India 1
110 51
In deposit accounts
Axis Bank - 230
HDFC Bank limited 75 120
ICICI Bank 7 282
IDBI Bank 250 -
Kotak Mahindra Bank - 35
South Indian Bank 250 250
Yes Bank - 143
IDFC Bank - 200
582 1,260

(in X crore )

Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Deposits with financial institution
HDFC Limited 611 750
611 750
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,303 2,061

* This represents restricted bank balance, in trust account, in accordance
with collection agency licensing requirements.

2.7 Other assets

in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Non-current
Capital advances 1 1
Advances other than capital
advance
Prepaid gratuity 5 9
Others
Withholding and other tax
receivables 21 —
27 10
Current
Advances other than capital
advance
Payment to vendors for supply
of goods 9 15
Others
Prepaid expenses 6 6
Deferred contract cost - 4
Withholding and other tax
receivables 29 30
44 55
Total other assets 71 65

Deferred contract costs are upfront costs incurred for the
contract and are amortized over the term of the contract.
Withholding and the other taxes primarily consists
of input tax credit.
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2.8 Financial instruments

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2018 are as follows:

in X crore
Particulars Amortized Financial assets / liabilities ~ Financial assets / liabilities Total Total fair
cost at fair value through profit  at fair value through OCI  carrying value
or loss value
Designated =~ Mandatory Equity ~ Mandatory
upon initial instruments
recognition designated
upon initial
recognition
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
(Refer to Note 2.6) 1,303 - - - - 1,303 1,303
Investments
(Refer to Note 2.2)
Non-convertible
debentures - - - - 398 398 398
Liquid mutual fund units - - 38 - - 38 38
Fixed maturity plan
securities - - 53 - - 53 53
Certificates of deposit - - - - 368 368 368
Trade receivables
(Refer to Note 2.5) 569 - - - - 569 569
Loans (Refer to Note 2.3) 18 - - - - 18 18
Other financial assets
(Refer to Note 2.4) 195 = = - = 195 195
Total 2,085 — 91 — 766 2,942
LIABILITIES
Trade payables
(Refer to Note 2.11) 29 - - - - 29 29
Other financial liabilities
(Refer to Note 2.10) 351 = 2 = = 353 353
Total 380 — 2 — — 382
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2017 are as follows:
in ¥ crore
Particulars Amortized Financial assets / liabilities Financial assets / liabilities Total Total fair
cost at fair value through profit  at fair value through OCI  carrying value
or loss value
Designated =~ Mandatory Equity ~ Mandatory
upon initial instruments
recognition designated
upon initial
recognition
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
(Refer to Note 2.6) 2,061 - - - - 2,061 2,061
Investments
(Refer to Note 2.2)
Non-convertible
debentures - - - - 297 297 297
Government bonds 9 - - - - 9 9
Fixed maturity plan
securities - - 50 - - 50 50
Certificates of deposit - - - - 270 270 270
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Particulars Amortized Financial assets / liabilities  Financial assets / liabilities Total Total fair
cost at fair value through profit  at fair value through OCI carrying value
or loss value
Designated =~ Mandatory Equity ~ Mandatory
upon initial instruments
recognition designated
upon initial
recognition
Trade receivables
(Refer to Note 2.5) 491 - - - - 491 491
Loans (Refer to Note 2.3) 17 - - - - 17 17
Other financial assets
(Refer to Note 2.4) 210 = 16 = = 226 226
Total 2,788 - 66 - 567 3421
LIABILITIES
Trade payables
(Refer to Note 2.11) 7 - - - — 7 7
Other financial liabilities
(Refer to Note 2.10) 317 — - - - 317 317
Total 324 — - — — 324
Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities is as follows:

in X crore
Particulars As at March ~ Fair value measurement at end of the
31,2018 reporting period / year using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ASSETS
Investment in non-convertible debentures (Refer to Note 2.2) 398 202 196 -
Investment in Fixed maturity plans (Refer to Note 2.2) 53 - 53 -
Investment in certificates of deposit (Refer to Note 2.2) 368 - 368 -
Investment in liquid mutual funds (Refer to Note 2.2) 38 38 - -
LIABILITIES
Derivative financial instruments - loss on outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts (Refer to Note 2.10) 2 - 2 -

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the non-convertible debentures of Y196 crore were transferred from

Level 1 to Level 2.

The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities is as follows:

in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March  Fair value measurement at end of the
31, 2017 reporting period / year using

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ASSETS
Investments in government bonds (Refer Note 2.2) 9 9 - -
Investment in non-convertible debentures (Refer Note 2.2) 2907 297 - -
Derivative financial instruments - gain on outstanding Foreign
exchange forward contracts (Refer Note 2.4) 16 = 16 =
Investment in Fixed maturity plans (Refer Note 2.2) 50 - 50 -
Investment in certificates of deposit (Refer Note 2.2) 270 = 270 =

The fair value of liquid mutual funds units is based on quoted price. The fair value of government bonds and non-convertible
debentures is based on quoted prices and market-observable inputs. The fair value of fixed maturity plan securities and
certificates of deposit is based on market-observable inputs. Derivative financial instruments are valued based on quoted
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active market or inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
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Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company’ activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s
primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its
financial performance. The primary market risk to the Company is foreign exchange risk. The Company uses derivative financial
instruments to mitigate foreign exchange related risk exposures. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers.

Market risk

The Company operates internationally and a major portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently
the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales and services in the United States and elsewhere, and purchases
from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign
exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The exchange
rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in the
future. Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations are adversely affected as the Rupee appreciates or depreciates
against these currencies.

The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as at March 31, 2018:

in ¥ crore
Particulars US Dollars Euro United Australian Other Total
Kingdom Dollars  currencies
Pound
Sterling
Cash and cash equivalents 61 8 14 6 14 103
Trade receivables 360 55 71 45 5 536
Other financial assets (including
loans) 34 6 6 11 8 65
Trade payables © - ) - ey (14)
Other financial liabilities 57 (14) 3) (11) (16) (101)
Net assets / (liabilities) 389 55 84 51 10 589
The analysis of foreign currency risk from financial instruments as at March 31, 2017 is as follows:
in ¥ crore
Particulars US Dollars Euro United Australian Other Total
Kingdom Dollars  currencies
Pound
Sterling
Cash and cash equivalents 26 6 3 - 7 42
Trade receivables 327 37 58 24 5 451
Other financial assets (including
loans) 46 7 5 9 8 75
Trade payables 3) - - - - 3)
Other financial liabilities “7 (19) 3) “) (25) (98)
Net assets / (liabilities) 349 31 63 29 (5) 467

For the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, every percentage point depreciation or appreciation in the exchange
rate between the Indian Rupee and US Dollar, has affected the Company’s incremental operating margins by approximately
0.44% and 0.40%, respectively.

Sensitivity analysis is computed based on the changes in the income and expenses in foreign currency upon conversion into
functional currency, due to exchange rate fluctuations between the previous reporting period and the current reporting period.
Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes
in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank. These derivative
financial instruments are valued based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.

The details of outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017

In million in ¥ crore In million in T crore

Forward contracts
In US Dollars 59 385 43 279
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Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
In million in ¥ crore In million in ¥ crore
In Euro - - 3 17
In United Kingdom Pound Sterling 6 51 5 42
In Australian Dollars 5 25 5 25
Total forwards 461 363

The foreign exchange forward contracts mature within twelve months. The table below analyzes the derivative financial
instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period as at the Balance Sheet date:

in ¥ crore

Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Not later than one month 134 88
Later than one month and not later than three months 203 159
Later than three months and not later than six months 124 116
461 363

The Company offsets a financial asset and a financial liability when it currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

The quantitative information about offsetting of derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities is as follows:

in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative
financial financial financial financial
asset liability asset liability
Gross amount of recognized financial asset / liability - 2 16 -
Amount set off - - - =
Net amount presented in the Balance Sheet - 2 16 -

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure
to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to ¥ 569 crore and X 491 crore as March
31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively and unbilled revenue amounting to ¥ 55 crore and X 42 crore as at March 31, 2018
and March 31, 2017, respectively. Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue
earned from customers primarily located in the United States.

Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness
of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. As per Ind AS 109, the Company
uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled revenues. The provision matrix takes into account available
external and internal credit risk factors such as credit default swap quotes, credit ratings from international credit rating agencies
and the Company’s historical experience for customers.
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The percentage of revenues generated from top customer and
top ten customers is as follows:

(In %)

Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Revenue from top customer 6% 7%

Revenue from top ten

customers 39% 40%

Credit risk exposure

The (reversal) / allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on
customer balances is less than ¥ 1 crore and ¥ 2 crore for the
year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively.

in X crore

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we
generally invest in deposits with banks and financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international
and domestic credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and
cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from
operations. The Company has no outstanding borrowing.
The Company believes that the working capital is
sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no
liquidity risk is perceived.

As at March 31, 2018, the Company had a working capital of
% 2,027 crore including cash and cash equivalents of ¥ 1,303
crore and current investments of X 458 crore. As at March 31,

Particulars Years ended March 31, 2017, the Company had a working capital of ¥ 2,648 crore
_ 2018 2017 including cash and cash equivalents of ¥ 2,061 crore and
Bala@e at the beglnlzllng 8 5 current investments of ¥ 279 crore.
Provisions recognized / As at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the outstanding
(reversed) - (@)
Write-offs B ~ compensated absences were ¥ 72 crore and X 63 crore,
. . respectively, which have been substantially funded.
Uesdbiiton dilainess > Accordingly no liquidity risk perceived
Balance at the end 8 8 &Y d Y b ’
The table below provides details regarding the
contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities
as at March 31, 2018:
in ¥ crore
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total
Trade payables 29 - - - 29
Client deposits 1 - - 1
Other financial liabilities
(Refer to Note 2.10) 280 - - - 280
The details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at March 31, 2017 are as follows:
in X crore
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total
Trade payables 7 - - - 7
Client deposits 1 - - - 1
Other financial liabilities
(Refer to Note 2.10) 253 - - - 253

2.9 Equity
Equity share capital

in ¥ crore, except as otherwise stated

Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Authorized
Equity shares, ¥ 10/- par value
12,33,75,000 (12,33,75,000) equity shares 123 123
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares, ¥ 10/- par value
3,38,27,751 (3,38,27,751) equity shares fully paid -p 34 34
(Of the above 3,38,22,319 equity shares are held by the holding company, Infosys Limited)

34 34

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/-. Each holder of equity shares

is entitled to one vote per share.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.
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The Board of Directors, in their meeting on October 17, 2017, declared an interim dividend of ¥ 250/- per equity share, which

resulted in cash outflow of ¥ 1,018 crore inclusive of corporate dividend tax of ¥ 172 crore.

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares are as follows:

Name of the shareholder As at March 31,
2018 2017
Number of shares % held Number of shares % held
Infosys Limited, the holding company 3,38,22,319 99.98 3,38,22,319 00.98
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital is as follows:
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Number of shares at the beginning of the
year 3,38,27,751 34 3,38,27,751 34
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Number of shares at the end of the year 3,38,27,751 34 3,38,27,751 34
2.10 Other financial liabilities 2.11 Trade payables
in ¥ crore in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31, Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Non-current Current
Others Trade payables” 29 7
Compensated absences 1 - 29 7
1 = WIncludes dues to holding,
Current subsidiaries and other group
Others companies (refer to note 2.21) 15 6
Accrued compensation o
to employees 132 109 2.12 Other liabilities .
Accrued expenses 132 137 _ inR crore
Compensated absences 71 63 Particulars As at March 31,
Client deposits 1 1 ZL oL
P
Capital creditors 2 2 Non-current
Other payables @ 12 5 Deferred rent —
Foreign currency —
forward contracts 2 - Current
352 317 Unearned revenue 71 49
Total other financial Othgrs -
liabilities 353 317 Withholding and others 39 39
Financial liability carried at Iefered rent —
amortized cost 351 317 R L 88
Financial liability carried at Total other liabilities 123 88
fair value through Profit or o
Loss 2 _ 2.13 Provisions
@ ncludes dues to holding in X crore
company (Refer to Note 2.21) - 2 Particulars As at March 31,
@ Includes dues to holding, 2018 2017
subsidiaries and other group Others
companies (refer to note 2.21) 8 3 Posi-sales diemi support
and others 22 28
22 28
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Provision for post-sales client support and others

The movement in the provision for post-sales client support

and others is as follows :

in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Balance at the beginning 28 33
Provision recognized /
(reversed) 6 )
Provision utilized (11) -
Exchange difference @) -
Balance at the end 22 28

The provision for taxation includes tax liabilities in India on
the company’s global income as reduced by exempt incomes
and any tax liabilities arising overseas on income sourced from
those countries as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Infosys
BPM Limited operations are mainly conducted through
Software Technology Parks (‘STPs’) and Special Economic
Zones (‘SEZs’). At present, income from STP units are taxable.
Income from SEZs Unit is fully tax exempt for the first 5
years, 50% exempt for the next 5 years and 50% exempt for
another 5 years subject to fulfilling certain conditions.

The details of income tax assets and income tax
liabilities are as follows:

in X crore
Provision for post-sales client support and other Particulars As at March 31,
provisions are expected to be utilized over a period of six 2018 2017
months to twelve months. Income tax assets 77 59
2 14 Income taxes Curfent Income tax liabilities (12) (8)
Net income tax assets /
Income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and loss com};rises: (liability) at the end 65 51
m X crore
Particulars Years ended March 31, The gross movement in the current income tax asset /
2018 2017 (liability) is as follows:
Current taxes 182 198 in ¥ crore
Deferred taxes 9) - Particulars Years ended March 31,
Income tax expense 173 198 2018 2017
Net income tax asset /
Current tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2018 (liability) at the beginning 51 52
and March 31, 2017 includes reversal (net of additional T m— 1 (3)
provisions) is ¥2 crore and I3 crore respectively, Income tax paid 194 198
pertaining to earlier periods. Income tax expense (182) (198)
Entire deferred income tax for the year ended March 31,2018 Income tax on other
and March 31, 2017 relates to origination and reversal of comprehensive income 1 2
temporary differences. Net income tax asset /
A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount (liability) at the end 65 5l

computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the
income before income taxes is summarized as follows:

in ¥ crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Profit before income taxes 642 750
Enacted tax rates in India 34.61% 34.61%

Computed expected tax

expense 223 259
Tax effect due to non-taxable

income for Indian tax

purposes (53) (56)
Overseas taxes 5 3
Tax reversals, overseas and

domestic ) 3
Effect of exempt non-

operating income - (D
Effect of non-deductible

expenses ) 3
Others 2 @)
Income tax expense 173 198

The applicable Indian statutory tax rates for fiscal 2018 and
fiscal 2017 is 34.61%.
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The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted
in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

in X crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Deferred income tax assets
Property, plant and
equipment 23 16
Trade receivables 3 6
Compensated absences 20 18
Others 4 1
Total deferred income tax
assets 50 41

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset
wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.
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The deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax Particulars Years ended March 31,
liabilities recoverable within and after 12 months are as follows: 2018 2017
Years ended March 31, Non-convertible

2018 2017 debentures 26 6
Deferred income tax assets to Certificates of deposit 14 -
be recovered after 12 months 38 41 Income on investments
Deferred income tax assets carried at fair value through
to be recovered within 12 profit or loss
months 12 1 Dividend income on liquid
Total deferred income tax mutual funds units 1 3
assets 50 41 Gains / (losses) on liquid

mutual funds units 20 4

In assessing the realizability of deferred income tax assets, Profit on sale of property,
The Management considers whether some portion or all of the plant and equipment 1 1
deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate Rental income from holding
realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon company 3 3
the generation of future taxable income during the periods Exchange gains / (losses) on
in which the temporary differences become deductible. The foreign currency forward
Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred COMITACS 9 39
income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and Exchange gains / (losses) on
tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on translation of other assets
the level of historical taxable income and projections for and liabilities 1 (22)
future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred Miscellaneous income, net™ 25 1
income tax assets are deductible, the Management believes 519 201

that the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible
differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets
considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near
term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry
forward period are reduced.

The gross movement in the deferred income tax
account is as follows:

in ¥ crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Net deferred income tax asset
at the beginning 41 41
Credits / (charge) relating to

temporary differences 9 -
Net deferred income tax asset
at the end 50 41

The credits relating to temporary differences during the year
ended March, 2018 are primarily on account of property, plant
and equipment, compensated absences, and others partially
offset by reversal of credits pertaining to trade receivables.

2.15 Other income, net

in ¥ crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Interest received on financial
assets carried at amortized
cost
Government bonds - -
Deposit with banks and
others 119 181
Interest Income on financial
assets carried at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

2.16 Expenses

W Sale of duty scripts of X 23 crore for the current year.

in ¥ crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries including bonus 1,779 1,634
Contribution to provident
and other funds 81 75
Staff welfare 28 19
1,888 1,728
Cost of technical sub-
contractors and Professional
charges
Cost of technical sub-
contractors 165 115
Legal and professional 22 22
Recruitment and training 23 24
Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory audit fees - -
Reimbursement of
expenses - -
210 161
Other expenses
Consumables 4 4
Brand building and
advertizement 3 2
Marketing expenses 3 4
Rates and taxes 8 5
Contribution towards
Corporate Social
Responsibility
(Refer to Note 2.23) 13 15
Communication expenses 65 65
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Particulars Years ended March 31, Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Power and fuel 25 29 Acquisitions (credit) / cost - @)
Repairs and maintenance 79 78 Remeasurements -
Bank charges and Actuarial (gains) / losses 5 6
commission 5 1 Benefits paid @) (8)
Postage and courier = - Benefit obligations at the end 78 66
Allowances / reversals for Change in plan assets
credit losses on financial Fair value of plan assets at
assets - ) the beginning 75 58
Provision for doubtful Interest income 5 5
loans and advances 1 2 Acquisitions adjustment (@) )
Professional membership Actuarial gain / (loss) - -
and seminar participation Return on plan assets
fees 1 1 greater / (lesser) than
Cost of software for own discount rate 1 1
use 30 21 Contributions 10 22
Insurance 4 9 Benefits paid ) ©)
Others 1 - Fair value of plan assets at
242 234 the end 83 75
Funded status 5 9
2.17 Leases Prepaid gratuity benefit 5 9

Obligations on long-term, non-cancellable operating leases
The lease rentals charged during the period is as follows:

in X crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Lease rentals recognized
during the period 96 88

The obligations on long-term, non-cancellable operating
leases payable as per the rentals stated in the respective
agreements are as follows:

in ¥ crore
Lease obligations payable As at March 31,
2018 2017
Not later than 1 year 64 68
Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 154 149
Later than 5 years 21 29

The operating lease arrangements, are renewable on a periodic
basis and for most of the leases extend upto a maximum of
ten years from their respective dates of inception and relates
to rented premises. Some of these lease agreements have
price escalation clauses.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Gratuity

The funded status of the gratuity plan and the amounts
recognized in the Company’s financial statements is as follows :

in X crore
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Change in benefit obligations
Benefit obligations at the
beginning 66 57
Service cost 10 9
Interest expense 4 4
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The amount for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March
31,2017 recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under
employee benefit expenses is as follows

in ¥ crore

Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Service cost 10 9
Net interest on the net
defined benefit liability /
(asset) (D (1)
Net gratuity cost 9 8

The amount for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March
31,2017 recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income is as follows:

in X crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Remeasurements of the net
defined benefit liability /
(asset)
Actuarial (gains) / losses 5 6
(Return) / loss on plan assets
excluding amounts included
in the net interest on the
net defined benefit liability /
(asset) (1) (@)
4 5
in ¥ crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
(Gain) / loss from change in
demographic assumptions - -
(Gain) / loss from change in
financial assumptions (@Y 1
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Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
(Gain) / loss from change in
experience assumptions 6 5
5 6

The weighted-average assumptions for determining benefit
obligations are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Discount rate 6.9% 7.8%
Weighted average rate of
increase in compensation
levels 7.5% 7.5%

The weighted-average assumptions for determining net
periodic-benefit costs are as follows:

Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Discount rate 6.9% 7.8%

Weighted average rate of

increase in compensation

levels 7.5% 7.5%

Weighted average duration of

defined benefit obligation 6.1 years 6.1 years

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in
accordance with the published statistics by the Life Insurance
Corporation of India.

The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected
long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards.
The discount rate is based on the government securities yield.

As of March 31, 2018, every percentage point increase /
decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit
obligation by approximately X 2 crore.

As of March 31, 2018, every percentage point increase /
decrease in weighted average rate of increase in compensation
levels will affect our gratuity benefit obligation by
approximately ¥ 2 crore.

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed
by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation
of the defined benefit obligation by one percentage, keeping
all other actuarial assumptions constant.

Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a salary
in Indian Rupees and there are no other foreign defined
benefit gratuity plans.

The Company contributes all ascertained liabilities towards
gratuity to the Infosys BPO Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund
Trust. Trustees administer contributions made to the trust. As
of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the plan assets have
been primarily invested in insurer managed funds.

Actual return on assets for the year-ended March 31, 2018
and March 31, 2017 were X 6 crore and X 5 crore, respectively.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
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in ¥ crore

Within 1 year 24
1-2 year 21
2-3 year 19
3-4 year 18
4-5 year 16
5-10 years 42

(b) Superannuation

The Company contributed I 5 crore to the Superannuation
Trust for the year ended March 31, 2018 R 4 crore for the
year ended March 31, 2017).

(c) Provident fund

The Company contributed ¥ 65 crore towards Provident Fund
for the year ended March 31, 2018 (X 63 crore for the year
ended March 31, 2017).

(d) Pension Fund

The Company contributed ¥ 5 crore to pension funds for
the year ended March 31, 2018 (R 5 crore for the year
ended March 31, 2017).

2.19 Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares
used in computing earnings per share

The reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation

of basic and diluted earnings per equity share is as follows:

As at March 31,
2018

Particulars

2017

Basic earnings per equity
share - weighted average
number of equity shares
outstanding

Effect of dilutive common
equivalent shares - -
Diluted earnings per equity
share - weighted average
number of equity shares and
common equivalent shares
outstanding

3,38,27,751 3,38,27,751

3,38,27,751 3,38,27,751

2.20Contingent liabilities and commitments (to
the extent not provided for)

in ¥ crore
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Contingent liabilities :
Claims against
the Company, not
acknowledged as debts"” 175 118
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Particulars As at March 31, W Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts includes demand
5018 2017 from the Indian income tax authorities for payment of tax including
. interest for fiscals 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2015.
[Amount paid to statutory These income tax demands are mainly on account of disallowance of a
authorities X 65 crore X 23 portion of the deduction claimed by the Company under Section 10A
crore)] and / or 10AA of the income Tax Act in respect of export turnover. The
Commitments - above matters are pending before various Appellate Authorities.
Estimated amount of The Company is contesting the demand and the management
contacts remaining to including its tax advisors believes that its position will likely
be executed on capital be upheld in the appellate process. The management believes
contracts and not provided that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have
for (net of advances and a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position
deposits) 30 29 and results of operations.
2.21 Related party transactions
List of related parties
Name of the entity Country Holding as at March 31,
2018 2017
Holding
Infosys Limited India Holding Holding
Company Company
Subsidiaries
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.0." Czech Republic 100% 100%
Infosys Poland Sp z.0.0 Poland 100% 100%
Infosys BPO Americas LLC.%” us 100% 100%
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC uUs 100% 100%
Portland Group Pty Ltd™ Australia 100% 100%
List of fellow subsidiaries
Name of the subsidiary Country
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China
Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB. (Infosys Sweden) Sweden
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China
Infosys Tecnologia DO Brasil LTDA. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil
Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA (Infosys Public Services) Us
Infosys Americas Inc., (Infosys Americas) uUS
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia) Australia
EdgeVerve Systems Limited (EdgeVerve) India
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (Infosys Lodestone) Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc.? Us
Infosys Management Consulting Pty Limited® Australia
Infosys Consulting AG® Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG®H™ Switzerland
Lodestone GmbH®® Switzerland
Infosys Consulting (Belgium) NV (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants Belgium) S.A® Belgium
Infosys Consulting GmbH® Germany
Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd. Singapore
Infosys Consulting SAS® France
Infosys Consulting s.r.0.?) Czech Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH (Loadstone Austria) 47 Austria
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd.® China
Infy Consulting Company Ltd. UK
Infosys Arabia Limited Saudi Arabia
Infy Consulting B.V.% The Netherlands
Infosys Consulting Ltda.® Brazil
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Name of the subsidiary

Country

Infosys Consulting Sp. z.0.0.%

Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda.*®’
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.?

Infosys Consulting S.R.L.%)

Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd."?1%

Infosys Nova Holdings LLC. (Infosys Nova)

Panaya Inc. (Panaya)

Panaya Ltd.®
Panaya GmbH®

Panaya Pty Ltd®®

Panaya Japan Co. Ltd.®

Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems)
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus)

Noah Consulting LLC (Noah)“?

Noah Information Management Consulting Inc. (Noah Canada)©®
Brilliant Basics Holding Limited“?
Brilliant Basics Limited"

Brilliant Basics MENA DMCC"V

Infosys Chile SpAY>

Infosys Middle East FZ-LLC"®

Poland
Portugal
Romania
Argentina
Canada
US

UsS

Israel
Germany
Australia
Japan
India

UsS

US
Canada
UK

UK
Dubai
Chile
Dubai

" Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys BPM Limited

@

3)

Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)
Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

@ Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)

)

Wholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.
© Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah

@ Liquidated effective October 5, 2016

®  Liquidated effective November 16, 2016
© Liquidated effective December 21, 2016

19" On September 8, 2017, Infosys acquired 100% of voting interest in Brilliant Basics Holding Limited, UK

Y Wholly-owned subsidiary of Brilliant Basics Holding Limited

12

4

List of trusts

Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc.

U3 Liquidated effective May 9, 2017

Liquidated effective November 9, 2017

5 Incorporated effective November 20, 2017

19 Tiquidated effective December 20, 2017

47 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Limited, effective February 28, 2018
18 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting Pte. Ltd.

Name of the trust

Nature of relationship

Infosys BPO Limited Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust

Infosys BPO Limited Employees’ Superannuation Fund Trust India

Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys BPM
(Formerly known as Infosys BPO)
Post-employment benefit plan of Infosys BPM
(Formerly known as Infosys BPO)
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The details of the related parties transactions entered into by
the Company are as follows:

The details of amounts due to or due from related
parties are as follows:

in X crore in X crore
Particulars As at March 31, Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Trade Receivables Revenue transactions
Infosys Limited 54 33 Purchase of services
Infosys Poland Sp z.0.0 - - Infosys Limited 70 58
EdgeVerve - - Portland Group Pty
Infosys McCamish Systems Limited 11 4
LLC 2 2 Infosys McCamish Systems
Portland Group Pty Ltd - 1 LLC 1 1
Infosys Public Services 2 1 Infy Consulting Company
Infosys Mexico - - Limited 18 10
Infosys China 1 - Infosys Management
Infy Consulting Company Consulting Pty Limited - -
Limited - - Infosys (Czech Republic)
59 37 Limited s.r.o. 1 -
Other financial assets EdgeVerve 7 3
Infosys Limited 11 2 Infosys Poland Sp z.0.0 5 4
Infosys (Czech Republic) Infosys Consulting Pte.
Limited s.r.0. - - Ltd. 1 -
EdgeVerve - - 114 80
Infosys McCamish Systems Purchase of shared services
LLC - - including facilities and
11 2 personnel
Trade payables Infosys Limited 67 49
Infosys Limited 8 5 Infosys (Czech Republic)
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o. - -
Limited s.r.0. 1 - EdgeVerve - -
Infosys Poland Sp z.0.0 1 - Infosys McCamish Systems
Infy Consulting Company LLC - -
Limited 3 - Infosys Management
EdgeVerve - - Consulting Pty Limited - -
Infosys Consulting Pte. Infosys Brazil = -
Ltd. 1 - 67 49
Infosys McCamish Systems Sale of services
LLC - - Infosys Public Services 17 20
Portland Group Pty Ltd 1 1 Infosys Poland Sp z.0.0 1 2
Infosys Management Infosys Limited 502 390
Consulting Pty Limited - - EdgeVerve 3 4
15 6 Infy Consulting Company
Other financial liabilities Limited 1 -
Infosys Limited 7 3 Infosys Mexico - 1
EdgeVerve 1 - Infosys China - -
Infosys Mexico - - Portland Group Pty Ltd 1 5
Infosys McCamish Systems Infosys McCamish Systems
LLC - - LLC 29 37
Portland Group Pty Ltd - - 554 459
Infosys (Czech Republic) Sale of shared services
Limited s.r.0. - - including facilities and
8 3 personnel
Accrued expense Infosys Limited 21 19
Infosys Limited - 2 Infosys McCamish Systems
- 2 LLC = 1
EdgeVerve Systems Limited - -
21 20
Dividend paid
Infosys Limited 846 -
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Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
846 -

Changes in key management personnel

The following were the changes in key management personnel:

Names
Anup Uppadhayay’

Designation

Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
Independent Director
Independent Director
Company Secretary
Independent Director
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
Chairman and Director
Chief Financial Officer
Director

Director

Chairman and Director

Anantharaman
Radhakrishnan®

Prof. Jayanth R.Varma
Dr. Omkar Goswami®?
Bindu Raghavan @
Roopa Kudva®

Deepak Bhalla®”

A.G.S. Manikantha @
UB Pravin Rao @

Nishit Ajitkumar Shah®
D.N. Prahlad®

Sangita Singh®
Ravikumar Singisetti !

() Resigned as a Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer effective
May 17,2016

@ Appointed as a Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer effective
May 17, 2016

© Resigned as a Director effective November 11, 2016

“ Resigned as a Chief Financial Officer effective July 18, 2016

© Appointed as a Chief Financial Officer effective July 19, 2016

©® Appointed as a Director effective January 6, 2017

(1 Resigned as a Company Secretary effective April 13, 2017

® Appointed as a Company Secretary effective April 14, 2017

© Resigned as Chairman effective July 17,2017

19 Appointed as Chairman effective July 18, 2017

1D Resigned as Director effective March 31, 2018

Transaction with key management personnel

The compensation given to key managerial personnel
comprising directors and executive officers:

in ¥ crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Salaries and other employee

benefits to whole-time

directors and executive

officers 4 5
Commission and other

benefits to non-executive /

independent directors - =

Total 4 5

2.22 Segment reporting

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public
business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures about products and services,
geographic areas, and major customers. The Company’s
operations primarily relate to providing business process
management services to organizations that outsource their
business processes. Based on the ‘management approach’
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as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company’s performance and
allocates resources based on analysis of various performance
indicators by business segments and geographic segements.
Accordingly, information has been presented both along
business segment and geographic segment. The accounting
principles used in the preparation of the financial statements
are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure
in individual segments, and are as set out in the note on
significant accounting policies.

Business segments for the Company are primarily enterprises
in Financial Services and Insurance (FSI) , enterprises
in Manufacturing (MFG), enterprises in the Energy &
utilities, Communication and Services (ECS),enterprises
in Retail, Consumer packaged goods and Logistics (RCL)
and enterprises in Life Sciences and Healthcare (LSH).
Geographic segmentation is based on business sourced from
that geographic region and delivered from both onsite and
offshore locations. North America comprises the United
States of America, Canada and Mexico, Europe includes
continental Europe (both the east and the west), Ireland and
the United Kingdom, and the Rest of the World comprises all
other places except those mentioned above and India.

Revenue and identifiable operating expenses in relation to
segments are categorized based on items that are individually
identifiable to that segment. Allocated expenses of segments
include onsite expenses, which are categorized in relation
to the associated turnover of the segment. Certain expenses
such as depreciation, which form a significant component
of total expenses, are not specifically allocable to specific
segments as the underlying assets are used interchangeably.
The Management believes that it is not practical to
provide segment disclosures relating to those costs and
expenses, and accordingly these expenses are separately
disclosed as ‘unallocated’ and adjusted against the total
income of the Company.

Assets and liabilities used in the Company’ business are not
identified to any of the reportable segments, as these are
used interchangeably between segments. The Management
believes that it is currently not practicable to provide
segment disclosures relating to total assets and liabilities
since a meaningful segregation of the available data is
onerous. Geographical information on revenue and business
segment revenue information is collated based on individual
customers invoiced or in relation to which the revenue is
otherwise recognized.
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Business segments

Details of revenues and expenses from business segments are as follows:

in ¥ crore
Particulars FSI MFG RCL LSH ECS Total
Revenue from operations 875 898 264 89 935 3,061
815 945 241 89 850 2,940
Identifiable operating expenses 363 440 119 41 354 1,317
305 449 113 40 309 1,216
Allocated expenses 356 366 107 36 379 1,244
310 359 93 35 324 1,121
Segment operating income 156 92 38 12 202 500
200 137 35 14 217 603
Unallocable expenses 77
74
Operating profit 423
529
Other income, net 219
221
Profit before tax 642
750
Tax expense 173
198
Net profit for the year 469
552
Depreciation and amortization
expense 77
74
Non-cash expenses other than
depreciation and amortization 1
Geographic segments
Details of revenues and expenses from geographic segments are as follows:
in ¥ crore
Particulars North Europe  Rest of the Total
America World
Revenue from operations 1,704 739 618 3,061
1,675 732 533 2,940
Identifiable operating expenses 707 378 232 1,317
643 372 201 1,216
Allocated expenses 694 300 250 1,244
639 279 203 1,121
Segment operating income 303 61 136 500
393 81 129 603
Unallocable expenses 77
74
Operating profit 423
529
Other income, net 219
221
Profit before tax 642
750
Tax expense 173
198
Net profit for the year 469
552
Depreciation and amortization expense 77
74
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortization 1
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Significant clients
No client individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenues for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.

2.23 Corporate social responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The proposed areas for
CSR activities are eradication of hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting education and healthcare, and rural development
projects. The funds will be allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule
VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

in ¥ crore
Particulars In cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash
(A) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 16 — 16
16 - 16
(B) Amount spent during the year
(1) Construction / acquisition of any asset 3 - 3
(i1) On purposes other than (i) above 13 - 13
16 - 16
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2.24 Function-wise classification of Statement of Profit and Loss

in X crore
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Revenue from operations 3,061 2,940
Cost of sales 2,192 1,993
Gross profit 869 947
Operating expenses
Selling and marketing expenses 166 156
General and administration expenses 280 262
Total operating expenses 446 418
Operating profit 423 529
Other income 219 221
Profit before tax 642 750
Tax expense
Current tax 182 198
Deferred tax 9) -
Profit for the year 469 552
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset 3) “)
3) €))
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Fair value changes on investments, net ) =
2) -
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax 5) “)
Total comprehensive income for the year 464 548

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Infosys BPM Limited

Ravikumar Singisetti
Chairman and Director

Prof. Jayanth R. Varma
Director

Bengaluru
April 11, 2018
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Anantharaman Radhakrishnan
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Nishit Ajitkumar Shah
Chief Financial Officer

D.N. Prahlad

Director

Bindu Raghavan
Company Secretary

Sangita Singh

Director

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18



EDGEVERVE SYSTEMS LIMITED



Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members of EDGEVERVE SYSTEMS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of EDGEVERVE SYSTEMS LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of Change in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. In conducting our audit, we
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under
section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit,
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

¢) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Change in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act.
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e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31, 2018 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’ registration number: 117366W/W-100018

Gurvinder Singh

Partner

Membership number: 110128

Bengaluru
April 11, 2018
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Annexure “A" to The Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members
of EdgeVerve Systems Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EDGEVERVE SYSTEMS LIMITED (“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Director’s of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the Management and
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Gurvinder Singh
Partner

(Membership No.110128)

Bengaluru,
April 11, 2018
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Annexure ‘B’ to The Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members
of EdgeVerve Systems Limited of even date)

i.

il.

1il.

iv.

Vi.

Vii.

Viil.

ix.

Xi.

Xii.

xlil.

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land and building and hence
reporting under clause (i) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is in the business of sale of software licences and providing related software services. Accordingly, it does

not have any physical inventories. Thus, reporting under clause 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability Partnerships or

other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year, the Company has not granted any loan to which the provisions of Section 185 of the Act would be

applicable. In respect of other loans, investments, guarantees and securities, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act has

been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31,

2018 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies

Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Thus reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs
duty, Excise duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs duty, Excise duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) Details of dues of Income Tax which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2018 on account of dispute are given below:

Name of Nature of Dues Forum where Period to Amount Amount
Statute Dispute is which the Involved | Unpaid (Rs.
Pending Amount (Rs. Lakhs) Lakhs)
Relates
Income tax Tax deduction at Source Income tax | FY 2015-16 8 8
Appellate tribunal
(Bengaluru)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
the repayment of dues to debenture holders. The Company does not have any outstanding dues from any financial
institution and banks.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or
term loans and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company

or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / provided
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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xiv. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly

paid convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not

entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of

section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Gurvinder Singh

Partner

(Membership No.110128)

Bengaluru,
April 11, 2018
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Balance Sheet

in ¥ lakh
Particulars Note no. As at March 31,
2018 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.1 4,552 5,345
Capital work-in-progress - 10
Financial assets
Loans 2.3 16 28
Other financial assets 2.4 5,690 1
Deferred tax assets, net 2.14 1,631 1,369
Other non-current assets 2.7 1,457 1,555
Income tax assets, net 2.14 19,120 10,557
Total non-current assets 32,466 18,865
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 2.2 4,263 2,939
Trade receivables 2.5 11,660 12,818
Cash and cash equivalents 2.6 3,810 2,160
Loans 2.3 521 626
Other financial assets 2.4 27,661 27,343
Other current assets 2.7 7,650 7,939
Total current assets 55,565 53,825
Total assets 88,031 72,690
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 2.9 1,31,184 1,31,184
Other equity (2,70917)  (3,02,696)
Total equity (1,39,733) (1,71,512)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 2.10 1,83,659 2,12,900
Other non-current liabilities 2.12 416 -
Total non-current liabilities 1,84,075 2,12,900
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 2.11 9,163 47
Other financial liabilities 2.10 21,841 21,433
Other current liabilities 2.12 11,749 9,819
Provisions 2.13 936 3
Total current liabilities 43,689 31,302
Total equity and liabilities 88,031 72,690
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP Edgeverve Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 117366W/ W-100018
Gurvinder Singh D. N. Prahlad Nitesh Banga Srinivasan Rajam
Partner Chairman Director Director
Membership number: 110128
Bengaluru Sanat Rao Prem Pereira Sudhir Gaonkar
April 11,2018 Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit and Loss

in ¥ lakh, except equity share and per equity share data

Particulars Note no. Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Revenue from operations 2,43915 2,35,141
Other income, net 2.15 1,153 1,443
Total Income 2,45,068 2,36,584
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2.16 82,161 92,053
Cost of technical sub-contractors 39,278 29,430
Travel expenses 2.16 11,816 13,021
Cost of software packages and others 2.16 22,458 17,695
Consultancy and professional charges 10,508 10,992
Depreciation expense 2.1 2,562 3,815
Finance Cost 15,580 19,713
Other expenses 2.16 15,296 13,987
Total expenses 1,99,659 2,00,706
Profit before tax 45,409 35,878
Tax expense
Current tax 2.14 14,479 11,796
Deferred tax 2.14 (264) (466)
Profit for the year 31,194 24,548
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset 585 81
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax 585 81
Total comprehensive income for the year 31,779 24,629
Earnings per equity share
Equity shares of par value of 10 each
Basic and diluted }) 2.38 1.87

Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per

equity share
Basic and diluted

1,31,18,40,000

1,31,18,40,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 117366W/ W-100018

Gurvinder Singh

Partner

Membership number: 110128

Bengaluru
April 11,2018
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Edgeverve Systems Limited

D. N. Prahlad

Chairman

Sanat Rao
Director

Nitesh Banga
Director

Prem Pereira

Chief Financial Officer

Srinivasan Rajam

Director

Sudhir Gaonkar

Company Secretary
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Statement of Change in Equity

in X lakh
Particulars Equity share Other equity Total
capital Reserve and surplus Other
Retained  Debenture Business comprehensive
earnings redemption transfer income
reserve (1)  adjustment
reserve (2)
Balance as of April 1, 2016 1,31,184 18,818 - (3,44,760) (1,383) (1,96,141)
Changes in equity for the year
ended March 31, 2017 =
Transfer to debenture
redemption reserve - (24,548) - - - (24,548)
Transfer from retained earnings - - 24,548 - - 24,548
Profit for the year - 24,548 - - 81 24,629
Balance as of March 31, 2017 1,31,184 18,818 24,548  (3,44,760) (1,302) (1,71,512)
Balance as of April 1, 2017 1,31,184 18,818 24,548  (3,44,760) (1,302) (1,71,512)
Changes in equity for the year
ended March 31, 2018 =
Transfer to debenture
redemption reserve - (24,202) - - - (24,202)
Transfer from retained earnings - - 24,202 - - 24,202
Remeasurement of the net
defined benefit liability / asset,
net of tax effect - - — - 585 585
Profit for the year - 31,194 - - - 31,194
Balance as of March 31, 2018 1,31,184 25,810 48,750 (3,44,760) (717) (1,39,733)

@

The Company has created Debenture Redemption Reserve required under Sec 71 of Companies Act, 2013, from the profit.

@ On adoption of Ind AS, the goodwill and intangible assets have been reversed and transferred to ‘Business Transfer Adjustment Reserve’, in accordance
with Ind AS 103 which requires common control transactions to be recorded at book values.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number: 117366W/ W-100018

Gurvinder Singh

Partner

Membership number: 110128

Bengaluru
April 11, 2018
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Edgeverve Systems Limited

D. N. Prahlad

Chairman

Sanat Rao
Director

Nitesh Banga

Director

Prem Pereira
Chief Financial Officer

Srinivasan Rajam

Director

Sudhir Gaonkar

Company Secretary
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Statement of Cash Flows

in ¥ lakh
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year 31,194 24,548
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash generated by operating activities
Depreciation expense 2,562 3,815
Income tax 14,215 11,330
Allowance for credit losses on financial assets 20 103
Provision / (reversal) for sales and customer support 934 -
Loss on sale of fixed assets 28 -
Finance cost 15,580 19,713
Interest and dividend income (469) (562)
(Gain) / loss on investments (489) -
Exchange difference on translation of assets and liabilities 293 (215)
Changes in assets and liabilities
Trade receivables and unbilled revenue 1,718 23,418
Loans, other financial assets and other assets (6,228) (5,122)
Trade payables 9,060 21
Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisions 8,997 949
Cash generated from operations 77,415 77,998
Income taxes paid (23,042) (12,962)
Net cash generated by operating activities 54,373 65,036
Cash flow from investing activities
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment net of sale proceeds (1,724) (5,246)
Loans to employees 117 376
Payments to acquire financial assets
Liquid mutual fund units (1,37,708) (1,63,333)
Proceeds on sale of financial assets
Liquid mutual fund units 1,36,875 1,63,563
Interest and dividend received on investments 490 544
Net cash generated / used in investing activities (1,950) (4,096)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of debenture to holding company (34,900) (42,000)
Interest paid (15,580) (19,713)
Net cash used in financing activities (50,480) (61,713)
Effect of exchange differences on translation of foreign currency cash and cash
equivalents (293) 215
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,650 (558)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,160 2,718
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,810 2,160
Supplementary information:
Restricted cash balance 19 731
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP Edgeverve Systems Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 117366W/ W-100018
Gurvinder Singh D. N. Prahlad Nitesh Banga Srinivasan Rajam
Partner Chairman Director Director
Membership number: 110128
Bengaluru Sanat Rao Prem Pereira Sudhir Gaonkar
April 11, 2018 Director Chief Financial Officer ~ Company Secretary
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Company overview and significant
accounting policies

1.1 Company overview

EdgeVerve Systems Limited (“the Company”) is a limited
company incorporated in India. It is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Infosys Limited. The address of its registered
office is Plot No. 44, Electronic City, Hosur Main Road,
Bengaluru 560100, Karnataka, India. The Company defines,
develops and operates innovative cloud-hosted business
platforms and software products as part of the Edge Suite
of products or Finacle product which can be deployed
either on premises or on cloud environments depending
on its products. The Company provides implementation,
integration and support services to help its customers realize
benefits from software solutions.

With effect from 1 August 2015, ‘Finacle’ and ‘Edge Services’
business of Infosys Limited was transferred to the Company.
The purchase consideration for the transfer was discharged
by way of issue and allotment of equity shares and non-
convertible unsecured debentures.

The financial statements are approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors on April 11, 2018.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards Ind AS, under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments which are measured at fair values and
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the
extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section
133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Effective April 1, 2016, the Company has adopted all the Ind
AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance
with Ind AS 101, First-Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards, with April 1, 2015 as the transition date. The
transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Sec 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.

Amounts for the year ended March 31, 2017 were audited by
previous auditors - BS R & Co LLP.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except
where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

As the quarter and year figures are taken from the source and
rounded to the nearest digit, the figures already reported for
all the quarters during the year might not always add up to
the year figures reported in the statements.

1.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with Ind AS requires the Management to make estimates,
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judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the year. The application of accounting policies that
require critical accounting estimates involving complex
and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in
these financial statements have been disclosed in Note. 1.4.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements
in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their
effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.4 Critical accounting estimates

a. Revenue recognition

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method
in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. The use of the
percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to
estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion
of the total efforts or costs to be expended. Efforts or costs
expended have been used to measure progress towards
completion as there is a direct relationship between input
and productivity. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on
uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which
such losses become probable based on the expected contract
estimates at the reporting date.

b. Property, plant and equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after
determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and
the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful
lives and residual values of Company’ assets are determined
by the Management at the time the asset is acquired and
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.
The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets
as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact
their life, such as changes in technology.

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is primarily derived from the licensing of software
products and related services. Arrangements with customers
for related services are either on a fixed-price, fixed-timeframe
or on a time-and-material basis.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as
the related services are performed and revenue from the end
of the last billing to the Balance Sheet date is recognized
as unbilled revenues. Revenue from fixed-price and
fixed-timeframe contracts, where there is no uncertainty
as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is
recognized based upon the percentage of completion method.
When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate
collectability revenue recognition is postponed until such
uncertainty is resolved. Cost and earnings in excess of billings
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are classified as unbilled revenue while billings in excess of
cost and earnings is classified as unearned revenue. Provision
for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable
based on the current estimates.

In arrangements for software development and related
services and maintenance services, the Company has applied
the guidance in Ind AS 18, Revenue, by applying the revenue
recognition criteria for each separately identifiable component
of a single transaction. The arrangements generally meet the
criteria for considering software development and related
services as separately identifiable components. For allocating
the consideration, the Company has measured the revenue
in respect of each separable component of a transaction at
its fair value, in accordance with principles given in Ind AS
18. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold
separately is the best evidence of its fair value. In cases where
the Company is unable to establish objective and reliable
evidence of fair value for the software development and
related services, the Company has used a residual method
to allocate the arrangement consideration. In these cases
the balance of the consideration, after allocating the fair
values of undelivered components of a transaction has been
allocated to the delivered components for which specific fair
values do not exist.

License fee revenues are recognized when the general revenue
recognition criteria given in Ind AS 18 are met. Arrangements
to deliver software products generally have three elements:
license, implementation and Annual Technical Services
(ATS). The Company has applied the principles given in Ind
AS 18 to account for revenues from these multiple element
arrangements. Objective and reliable evidence of fair value
has been established for ATS. Objective and reliable evidence
of fair value is the price charged when the element is sold
separately. When other services are provided in conjunction
with the licensing arrangement and objective and reliable
evidence of their fair values have been established, the revenue
from such contracts are allocated to each component of the
contract in a manner, whereby revenue is deferred for the
undelivered services and the residual amounts are recognized
as revenue for delivered elements. In the absence of objective
and reliable evidence of fair value for implementation, the
entire arrangement fee for license and implementation is
recognized using the percentage-of-completion method as the
implementation is performed. Revenue from client training,
support and other services arising due to the sale of software
products is recognized as the services are performed. ATS
revenue is recognized rateably over the period in which the
services are rendered.

The Company accounts for volume discounts and pricing
incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based on
the rateable allocation of the discount or incentive amount
to each of the underlying revenue transactions that result
in progress by the customer towards earning the discount
or incentive. Also, when the level of discount varies with
increases in levels of revenue transactions, the Company
recognizes the liability based on its estimate of the customer’s
future purchases. If it is probable that the criteria for the
discount will not be met, or if the amount thereof cannot
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be estimated reliably, then discount is not recognized until
the payment is probable and the amount can be estimated
reliably. The Company recognizes changes in the estimated
amount of obligations for discounts in the period in which the
change occurs. The discounts are passed on to the customer
either as direct payments or as a reduction of payments
due from the customer.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its
Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.6 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.

a. Post-sales client support

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period post
sales support for corrections of errors and support on all
its fixed-price, fixed-timeframe contracts. Costs associated
with such support services are accrued at the time related
revenues are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
Company estimates such costs based on historical experience
and estimates are reviewed on a periodic basis for any material
changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence.

b. Onerous contracts

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the
expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting
the future obligations under the contract. The provision is
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of
continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established,
the Company recognizes any impairment loss on the assets
associated with that contract.

1.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Costs,
directly attributable to the acquisition are capitalized until
property, plant and equipment are ready for use as intended
by the Management. The Company depreciates property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of
assets are as follows:

Plant and machinery™” 5 years
Computer equipment” 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures”) 5 years
Office equipment") 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are

reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.
" Based on technical evaluation, the Management believes that the
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the

Management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for
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these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C

of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified
as capital advances under other non-current assets and the
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed
under ‘Capital work-in-progress’. Subsequent expenditures
relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance
costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements
upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains
or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Assets to be disposed off are reported at the lower of the
carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell.

1.8 Intangible assets

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software
development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical
and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated,
future economic benefits are probable, the Company has an
intention and ability to complete and use or sell the software
and the costs can be measured reliably. The cost which can
be capitalized include the cost of materials, direct labour,
overhead cost that are directly attributable to preparing the
asset for intended use.

1.9 Financial instruments

1.9.1 Initial recognition

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial
liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities
are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for
trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction
price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities,
that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added
to the fair value on initial recognition and transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities, that are at fair value
are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or
loss. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are
accounted for at trade date.

1.9.2 Subsequent measurement

a. Non-derivative financial instruments

(1) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if
it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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(ii) Financial assets at fair value

comprehensive income

through other

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above
categories are subsequently fair-valued through profit or loss.
(iv) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the
short maturity of these instruments.

b. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares
and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity,
net of any tax effects.

1.9.3 Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from
the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

1.10 Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the
Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each
reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value
include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted
market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing
fair value result in general approximation of value, and such
value may never actually be realized.

Refer to Note 2.8 for the disclosure on carrying value and fair
value of financial assets and liabilities. For financial assets and
liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet
date and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity
of these instruments.

1.11 Impairment

a. Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected
credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are
not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for
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trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other
financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the
12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECL (or reversal) that
is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to
the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as
an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b. Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e.
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent
of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU’)
to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to
be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured
by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets
exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An
impairment loss is reversed in the Statement of Profit And Loss
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that
this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years.

1.12 Retirement benefits to employees

a Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit
retirement plan (‘the Gratuity Plan’) covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment
to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation
or termination of employment, of an amount based
on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of
employment with the Company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by
actuarial valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at
each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method.
The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to
the EdgeVerve Systems Limited Employees Gratuity Fund
Trust (the Trust). Trustees administer contributions made to
the Trust and contributions are invested in a scheme with Life
Insurance Corporation of India as permitted by Indian Law.

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined
benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset or liability. Gains
and losses through remeasurements of the net defined benefit
liability / (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive
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income, net of taxes. The actual return of the portfolio of
plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation
is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. The effect
of any plan amendments are recognized in net profits in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

b Superannuation

Certain employees of EdgeVerve are participants in a defined
contribution plan. The Company has no further obligations
to the Plan beyond its monthly contributions which are
periodically contributed to a trust fund, the corpus of which
is invested with the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

¢ Provident fund

Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund,
which is a defined contribution plan. Both the eligible
employee and the Company make monthly contributions
to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage
of the covered employee’s salary. Amounts collected under
the provident fund plan are deposited in a Government
administered provident fund. The Company has no further
obligations under the provident fund plan beyond its
monthly contributions.

d Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated
absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating
in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated
absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by
an independent actuary using projected unit credit method
on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet
date. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences
is recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

1.13 Foreign currency
Functional currency
The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(rounded off to lakh).

Transactions and translations

Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
are translated into the relevant functional currency at exchange
rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains or losses
resulting from such translations are included in net profit in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured
at fair value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and
measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate
prevalent at the date of transaction.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign
currency transactions are included in determining net profit for
the year in which the transaction is settled. Revenue, expense
and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies are
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translated into the relevant functional currencies using the
exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction.

1.14 Business combinations

Business combinations have been accounted for using the
acquisition method under the provisions of Ind AS 103,
Business Combinations. Business combinations between
entities under common control is accounted for using pooling
of interests method. Accordingly the assets and liabilities of
the combining entities are accounted for at carrying values.
The excess of purchase consideration over the Company’s
interest in the assets and liabilities of the transferor are
recognized in a separate reserve.

Transaction costs that the Company incurs in connection with
a business combination such as finders’ fees, legal fees, due
diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are
expensed as incurred.

1.15 Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income
tax. Income tax expense is recognized on net profit in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it
is recognized in other comprehensive income. Income tax for
current and prior year is recognized at the amount expected
to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect
of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period
that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment
date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax
losses can be utilized. The Company offsets current tax assets
and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

1.16 Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the
net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed
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by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity
share and also the weighted average number of equity shares
that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares
are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares
been actually issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period,
unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity
shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for
any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes
effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by
the Board of Directors.

1.17 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by
profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of
a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

Amendment to Ind AS 7

The Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which
require the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing
activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption
of amendment did not have any material the effect on the
financial statements.

1.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

1.19 Leases

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Such assets acquired are capitalized at fair value of the
asset or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is lower. All other lease are
classified as operating lease. Lease payments under operating
leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis in
the Statement of Profit And Loss over the lease term.

1.20 Recent accounting pronouncements

Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration: On March 28, 2018, MCA has
notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
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Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS
21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration
which clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income, when an entity has
received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

This rule will come into force from April 1, 2018. The
Company has evaluated the effect of this and it is not material.”

Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers: On
March 28, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified
the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers.
The core principle of the new standard is that an entity
should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Further the new
standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature,
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amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

* Retrospective approach: This approach the standard will
be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period
presented in accordance with Ind AS 8, Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

¢ Cumulative catch-up approach: Retrospectively with
cumulative effect of initially applying the standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

* The effective date for adopting Ind AS 115 is financial
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018.

The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 by
using use the cumulative catch-up transition method and
accordingly comparatives for the year ending March 31, 2018
will not be retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of
Ind AS 115 is expected to be insignificant.
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2.1 Property, plant and equipment

Following are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2018:

in ¥ lakh

Particulars Plant and Office ~ Computer Furniture Total

machinery  equipment  equipment and fixtures

Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2017 42 151 9,737 89 10,019
Additions 18 13 1,811 36 1,878
Deletions 42 — 2,159 41 2,242
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2018 18 164 9,389 84 9,655
Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2017 9 40 4,602 23 4,674
Depreciation 16 38 2,466 41 2,562
Accumulated depreciation on deletions 21 - 2,089 23 2,133
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2018 5 78 4,979 41 5,103
Carrying value as of March 31, 2018 13 86 4,410 43 4,552

Following are the changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2017:

in X lakh
Particulars Plant and Office Computer Furniture Total
machinery  equipment  equipment and fixtures
Gross carrying value as of April 1, 2016 8 121 6,977 17 7,123
Additions 34 30 5,100 72 5,236
Deletions - - 2,340 - 2,340
Gross carrying value as of March 31, 2017 42 151 9,737 89 10,019
Accumulated depreciation as of April 1, 2016 2 6 3,190 1 3,199
Depreciation 7 34 3,752 22 3,815
Accumulated depreciation on deletions - - 2,340 - 2,340
Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2017 9 40 4,602 23 4,674
Carrying value as of March 31, 2017 33 111 5,135 66 5,345
2.2 Investments
in ¥ lakh
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Current investments
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss
Liquid mutual fund units 4,263 2,939
Total investments 4,263 2,939
Market value of unquoted investments 4,263 2,939
Liquid mutual funds
The balances held in liquid mutual fund units are as follows:
in X lakh
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Units Amount Units Amount
Particulars
Aditya Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Direct Growth Plan 2,68,992 751 11,24,618 2,939
ICICI Prudential Liquid Direct plan 13,65,687 3,512 - -
16,34,679 4,263 11,24,618 2,939

The fair value of liquid mutual funds as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 is ¥4,263 lakh and ¥2,939 lakh , respectively.

2.3 Loans

in ¥ lakh
Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017

Non-current

Other loans

Loans to employees 16 28
16 28
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Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Current
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Loans to employees 7 2
Less: Allowances for doubtful loans to employees 7 2
Other loans
Loans to employees 521 626
521 626
Total loans 537 654
2.4 Other financial assets
in ¥ lakh
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Non-current
Other customer receivables 5,689 -
Security deposits 1 1
5,690 1
Current
Restricted Deposits 3,906 3,227
Unbilled revenues ¥ 23,390 23,970
Interest accrued but not due 5 26
Others ® 360 120
27,661 27,343
33,351 27,344
Financial assets carried at amortized cost 33,351 27,344
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries (Refer to Note 2.22) 503 19
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries (Refer to Note 2.22) 2 —
2.5 Trade receivables
in ¥ lakh
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Unsecured
Considered good™ 11,660 12,818
Considered doubtful 73 103
11,733 12,921
Less: Allowances for credit losses 73 103
11,660 12,818
11,660 12,818
@ Includes dues from fellow subsidiaries (Refer to Note 2.22) 630 200
2.6 Cash and cash equivalents
in ¥ lakh
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Balances with banks
In current and deposit accounts 3,810 2,160
3,810 2,160
Deposit accounts with more than 12 months maturity 19 705
Balances with banks held as margin money deposits against guarantees 19 731

Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 include restricted cash and bank balances of
T 191lakh and X731 lakh, respectively. The restrictions are primarily on account of bank balances held as margin money
deposits against guarantees.

The deposits which are maintained by the Company with banks and financial institutions comprises of time deposits, which
can be withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.
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The details of balances as on Balance Sheet dates with banks are as follows:

in X lakh
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
In current accounts
ICICI Bank, India 858 161
ICICI Bank, EEFC US Dollar account) 574 186
State Bank of India 9 4
1,441 351
In deposit accounts
ICICI Bank 2,369 1,809
2,369 1,809
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,810 2,160
2.7 Other assets
in X lakh
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Non-Current
Capital advances - 7
Prepaid expenses 29 111
29 118
Advance other than capital advances
Prepaid gratuity
(Refer to Note 2.18) 1,428 1,437
1,457 1,555
Current
Advance other than capital advances
Payment to vendors for supply of goods / services 223 230
Balance with Government authorities 342 2,549
Others
Prepaid expenses 1,771 1,288
Withholding and other taxes receivable 5,314 3,872
7,650 7,939
2.8 Financial instruments
Financial instruments by category
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2018 were as follows:
in ¥ lakh
Particulars Note  Amortized Financial assets / Financial assets / Total Total fair
no. cost liabilities at fair value liabilities at fair value carrying value
through profit or loss through OCI value
Designated Mandatory Equity Mandatory
upon initial instruments
recognition designated
upon initial
recognition
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 2.6 3,810 - - - - 3,810 3,810
Investments-
liquid mutual
funds 2.2 - — 4,263 — — 4,263 4,263
Trade
receivables 2.5 11,660 - = = = 11,660 11,660
Loans 2.3 537 - - - - 537 537
Other financial
assets 2.4 33,351 — — — — 33,351 33,351
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Particulars Note  Amortized Financial assets / Financial assets / Total Total fair
no. cost liabilities at fair value liabilities at fair value carrying value
through profit or loss through OCI value
Designated Mandatory Equity Mandatory
upon initial instruments
recognition designated
upon initial
recognition
Total 49,358 - 4,263 - - 53,621 53,621
Liabilities
Trade payables 2.11 9,163 - - - - 9,163 9,163
Non-convertible
debentures ¢V 2.10 1,78,000 = = — = 1,78,000 1,78,000
Other financial
liabilities 2.10 27,500 - - - - 27,500 27,500
Total 2,14,663 - - - - 2,14,663 2,14,663
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2017 were as follows:
in ¥ lakh
Particulars Note  Amortized Financial assets / Financial assets / Total Total fair
no. cost liabilities at fair value liabilities at fair value carrying value
through profit or loss through OCI value
Designated Mandatory Equity Mandatory
upon initial instruments
recognition designated
upon initial
recognition
Assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 2.6 2,160 — — — — 2,160 2,160
Investments-
liquid mutual
funds 22 - - 2,939 - - 2,939 2,939
Trade
receivables 2.5 12,818 - = - = 12,818 12,818
Loans 2.3 654 - - - - 654 654
Other financial
assets 2.4 27,344 - - - - 27,344 27,344
Total 42,976 - 2,939 - - 45915 45,915
Liabilities
Trade payables ~ 2.11 47 - - - - 47 47
Non-convertible
debentures 2.10 2,12,900 — - — — 2,12,900 2,12,900
Other financial
liabilities 2.10 21,433 - - - - 21,433 21,433
Total 2,34,380 - - - - 2,34,380 2,34,380

) The carrying value of debentures approximates fair value as the instruments are at prevailing market rates
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Fair value hierarchy
Level: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

in ¥ lakh
Particulars As on March Fair value measurement at end of the
31,2018 reporting period / year using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investment in liquid mutual fund units (Refer to Note 2.2) 4,263 4,263 - -
Particulars As on March Fair value measurement at end of the
31,2017 reporting period / year using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Investment in liquid mutual fund units (Refer to Note 2.2) 2,939 2,939 = -
The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2018:
in X lakh
Particulars USD EUR GBP AUD Other Total
currencies
Cash and cash equivalents 574 - - - - 574
Trade receivables 7,069 197 = = 508 7,774
Other financials assets (including
loans) 4,611 237 74 (364) 362 4,920
Trade payables (101) 61) (©)) - 9) (180)
Other financial liabilities (3,530) (16) (11) (391) (381) (4,329)
Net assets / (liabilities) 8,623 357 54 (755) 480 8,759
The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of March 31, 2017:
in ¥ lakh
Particulars USD EUR GBP AUD Other Total
currencies
Cash and cash equivalents 186 - - - - 186
Trade receivables 9,411 61 - - 194 9,665
Other financials assets (including
loans) 10,359 1,084 531 1,711 2,290 15974
Other financial liabilities (869) (10) = 2 (396) (1,273)
Net assets / (liabilities) 19,086 1,135 531 1,713 2,087 24,552
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure
to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to ¥ 11,660 lakh and ¥12,818 lakh as of
March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 respectively and unbilled revenue amounting to 323,390 lakh and ¥23,970 lakh as of
March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, respectively. Credit risk has always been managed through credit approvals, establishing
credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in
the normal course of business. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit losses on the customer
balances based on internal and external factors.

The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017
was X 16 lakh and ¥140 lakh, respectively.

in X lakh

Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017

Balance at the beginning 136 2
Provisions recognized 16 140
Write-offs - -
Translation differences 2 (6)
Balance at the end 154 136
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Liquidity risk

The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from
operations. The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no
liquidity risk is perceived.

As of March 31, 2018, the Company had a working capital of 311,876 lakh including cash and cash equivalents of ¥ 3,810 lakh
and current investments of ¥4,263 lakh. As of March 31, 2017, the Company had a working capital of 22,523 lakh including
liquid assets such as cash and cash equivalents of ¥2,160 lakh and current investments of 2,939 lakh.

As of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the outstanding compensated absences were ¥ 3,009 lakh and ¥2,822 lakh,
respectively, which have been substantially funded. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived.

The details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as of March 31, 2018 ’are as follows:

in ¥ lakh
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total
year
Trade payables 9,163 - - - 9,163
Other liabilities excluding non convertible
debentures* 19,248 1,886 3,773 - 24,907
28,411 1,886 3,773 — 34,070
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total
year
Trade payables 47 - - - 47
Other liabilities excluding non convertible
debentures™® 21,433 = = = 21,433
21,480 — — — 21,480

" The term of redemption of the debentures would be any date as may be decided mutually between the parties but will not exceed 10 years.
2.9 Equity

Share capital
in X lakh, except as otherwise stated

Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Authorized
Equity shares, ¥ 10/- par value
4,100,000,000 ( Previous year 4,100,000,000) equity shares 4,10,000 4.10,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares, ¥10/- par value 1,31,184 1,31,184

1,311,840,000 ( Previous year 1,311,840,000) equity shares
1,31,184 1,31,184

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10/-. Each holder of equity shares
is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets
of the Company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently.

The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are set out below:

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number of % held Number of % held
shares shares
Infosys Limited, holding company 1,31,18,40,000 100% 1,31,18,40,000 100%
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital are as follows:
Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares
Number of shares at the beginning of the year 1,31,18,40,000 13,11,84,00,000 1,31,18,40,000 13,11,84,00,000
Add: Shares issued - - — —
Number of shares at the end of the year 1,31,18,40,000 13,11,84,00,000 1,31,18,40,000 13,11,84,00,000
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2.10 Other financial liabilities Particulars As at March 31,
in ¥ lakh 2018 2017
Particulars As at March 31, Withholding and others 3,934 2,095
2018 2017 11,749 9,819

Non-current

Non-convertible debentures 2.13 Provisions

=0 1,78,000 2,12.900 in ¥ lakh

Other payables 5,659 - Particulars As at March 31,

1,83,659 2,12,900 2018 2017

Current Others

Accrued compensation to Post-sales client support 936 3

employees 4,337 3,357 936 3

Capital creditors 56 -

Compensated absences 3,009 2.822 The movement in provision for post-sales client

Accrued expenses @ 13,651 14,548 support is as follows: _

Other payables © 788 706 in¥lakh

21,841 21,433 Particulars As at March 31,

Total financial liabilities 2,05,500 2,34,333 2018 2017

Financial liability carried at Balance at the beginning 3 562

amortized cost 2,05,500 234333 Provisions recognized /

* The interest rate for the debentures (reversal) 934 (560)
as of March 31, 2018 is 10 years Translation differences (D 1
Government Bond rate plus 1% Balance at the end 936 3
premium to be reset annually.

Currently the interest rate is

7.692%. The interest payment 2.14 Income taxes

o ol It % maey 16 leseled Income tax expense in the Statement of Profitand Loss comprises:
mutually between the parties. in % lakh
The term of redemption of the

debentures would be any date Particulars As at March 31,

as may be decided mutually 2018 2017
between the parties but will not Current taxes 14,479 11,796

o ciczzd L pere - Deferred taxes (264) (466)

Y Includes dues to holding company
(Refer to Note 2.22) 1,78,000  2,12,000  _Income tax expense 14,215 11,330

> -

()Irég:éi?;j::;ggmgCompany 3,184 4524 Current tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2018

® Includes dues to fellow subsidiaries and March 31, 2017 includes provisions / (reversal)
(Refer to Note 2.22) 412 198 amounting to ¥(124) lakh and ¥4,136 lakh respectively

pertaining to prior periods.
2.11 Trade payables A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount
inXlakh  computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the

Particulars As at March 31, income before income taxes is summarized as follows:

2018 2017 in X lakh

Trade payables ¥ 9,163 47 Particulars As at March 31,

9,163 47 2018 2017

® Includes dues to holding Profit before income taxes 45,409 35,878
company / fellow subsidiaries Enacted tax rates in India 34.61% 34.61%
(Refer to Note 2.22) 405 6 Computed expected tax

pu P
As at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, there are no expense 15,716 12,417
outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises. There are Tax effect due t.o non-taxable
no interests due or outstanding on the same. income for Indian tax
purposes - 44
2.12 Other liabilities Overseas taxes, net of FTC 1,030 494
in ¥ lakh Prior year taxes (124) 4136

Particulars As at March 31, Effect of exempt non-

2018 2017 operating income - (134)

Non-Current Effect of differential overseas

Deferred rent 416 = tax rates - 13
416 — Effect of non-deductible
Current expenses (19) 20
Unearned revenue 7,815 7,724
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Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Additional deduction on
research and development
expense 2,173) (5,627)
Others (215) 55
Income tax expense 14215 11,330

The applicable Indian statutory tax rates for fiscal 2018 and
fiscal 2017 is 34.61%.

The details of income tax assets and income tax
liabilities are as follows:

in X lakh
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Income tax assets 47,706 25,721
Current income tax liabilities 28,586 15,164
Net current income tax assets
at the end 19,120 10,557

The gross movement in the current income tax
asset are as follows:

in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Net current income tax assets
at the beginning 10,557 9,885
Income tax paid 23,042 12,960
Current income tax expense
(Refer to Note 2.14) (14,479) (12,288)
Net current income tax assets
at the end 19,120 10,557

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted
in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
in ¥ lakh
As at March 31,
2018

Particulars

2017

Deferred income tax assets
Trade receivables 317 49

Compensated absences 1,052 977
MAT credit entitlement - 494
Others 490 153
Total deferred income tax
assets 1,859 1,673
Deferred income tax
liabilities
Property, plant and
equipment 228 304
Total deferred income tax
liabilities 228 304
Deferred income tax assets
after set off 1,631 1,369

Deferred income tax
liabilities after set off = -
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The gross movement in the deferred income tax
account is as follows:

in ¥ lakh

Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Net deferred income tax asset
at the beginning 1,369 409
Credits relating to temporary
differences
(Refer to Note 2.14) 264 958
Temporary differences on
other comprehensive income ) 2
Net deferred income tax asset
at the end 1,631 1,369

MAT credit are being recognized if there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal tax and the
resultant asset can be measured reliably. The income tax
paid under MAT provisions being over and above normal tax
liability can be carried forward for a period of ten years from
the year of recognition (with effect from AY 2018-19, MAT
credit can be carried forward up to fifteen years from the
year of recognition) and is available for set off against future
tax liabilities computed under normal tax provisions, to the
extent of excess of MAT liability. The Deferred income tax
asset for MAT credit entitlement is Nil and Y494 lakh as on
March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset
wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and where
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

2.15 Other income

in ¥ lakh
Particulars Year ended March 31,
2018 2017

Interest received on financial
assets-carried at amortized
cost:

Deposits with banks and

others 469 340

Dividend received on

investments carried at fair

value through profit or loss - 222
Exchange gain / (loss) on

translation of other assets

and liabilities 42 714
Gain / (loss) on investment

carried at fair value

through profit or loss 489 -
Miscellaneous income 153 167
1,153 1,443
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2.16 Expenses

in X lakh

As at March 31,
2018

Lease obligations payable®

2017

in ¥ lakh
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Employee benefit expenses
Salaries including bonus 77,661 87,269
Contribution to provident
and other funds 3,568 3,940
Staff welfare 932 844
82,161 92,053
Travel expenses
Overseas travel expenses 10,449 11,794
Travelling and conveyance 1,367 1,227
11,816 13,021
Cost of software packages
and others
For own use 3,971 2,021
Third party items bought
for service delivery to
clients 18,487 15,674
22,458 17,695
Other expenses
Repairs and maintenance 2,320 2,276
Brand and marketing 2,128 2,416

Communication expenses 878 835
Operating lease payments

(Refer to Note 2.17) 5,231 5,055
Rates and taxes 75 222
Commission charge 2,249 2,738
Fuel and power 727 347
Consumables 224 129
Provision for post-sales

client support 934 (560)
Commission to non-whole

time directors 20 18

Impairment loss

recognized on financial

assets 20 140
Contributions towards

Corporate Social

Responsibility 155 -
Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory audit fees 25 36
Others 310 335
15,296 13,987
2.17 Leases

Obligations on long-term, non-cancellable operating leases

The lease rentals charged during the year and the obligations
on long-term, non-cancellable operating leases payable as per
the rentals stated in the respective agreements are as follows:

in ¥ lakh
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Lease rentals recognized
during the year 5,231 5,055
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Within one year of the
Balance Sheet date 705 656
Due in a period between one
year and five years
Due after five years

3,213 210
2,161 —

The operating lease arrangements, are renewable on a periodic
basis and are extendable upto a maximum of ten years from
the date of inception and relates to rented premises and have
price escalation clauses.

(" Lease obligation payable as on March 31, 2018 pertains to balance
period of entire lease term.

2.18 Employee benefits
Gratuity

The funded status of the gratuity plans and the amounts
recognized in the Company’ financial statements are as follows:

in ¥ lakh
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Change in benefit obligations
Benefit obligations at the
beginning 7,058 6,091
Service cost 915 869
Interest expense 456 460
Transfer of obligation (311) 254
Remeasurements -
Actuarial (gains) / losses (758) 29)
Benefits paid (640) (587)
Benefit obligations at the end 6,720 7,058
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at
the beginning 8,496 6,165
Interest income 553 521
Transfer of assets (344) 124
Remeasurements-Return
on plan assets excluding
amounts included in
interest income 83 73
Contributions - 2,200
Benefits paid (640) (588)
Fair value of plan assets at
the end 8,148 8,495
Funded status 1,428 1,437
Prepaid gratuity benefit 1,428 1,437

Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss under
employee benefit expenses:

in X lakh

Particulars Years ended March 31,

2018 2017
Service cost 915 869
Net interest on the net
defined benetfit liability /
asset 97) (61)
Net gratuity cost 818 808
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Amount recognized in Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income
in ¥ lakh
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Remeasurements of the net
defined benefit liability /
(asset)
Actuarial (gains) / losses (758) 29
(Return) / loss on plan
assets excluding amounts
included in the net interest
on the net defined benefit
liability / (asset) (83) (73)
(841) (102)
in X lakh
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
(Gain) / loss from change in
financial assumptions (364) 539
(Gain) / loss from change in
experience (394) (568)
(758) 29

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit
obligations are as follows

Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017

Discount rate 7.5% 6.9%

Weighted average rate of

increase in compensation

levels 10.0% 10.0%

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net
periodic benefit cost are as follows

Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Discount rate 7.5% 6.9%

Weighted average rate of

increase in compensation

levels 10.0% 10.0%

Weighted average duration of

defined benefit obligation 6.1 years 6.1 years

As of March 31, 2018, every percentage point increase /
decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit
obligation by approximately ¥ 582 lakh.

As of March 31, 2018, every percentage point increase /
decrease in weighted average rate of increase in compensation
level will affect our gratuity benefit obligation by
approximately ¥522 lakh.

Sensitivity to significant actuarial assumptions is computed
by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of
the defined benefit obligation by one percentage, keeping all
other actuarial assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis
is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is not probable, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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Gratuity is applicable only to employees drawing a
salary in Indian Rupees and there are no other foreign
defined benefit plans.

The Company contributes all ascertained liabilities towards
gratuity to the Edgeverve Systems Limited Employees’ Gratuity
Fund Trust. Trustees administer contributions made to the
trust. As of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the plan
assets have been primarily invested in insurer managed funds.

Actual return on assets for the year ended March 31, 2018 and
March 31, 2017 were X636 lakh and ¥594 lakh respectively.

The Company assesses these assumptions with its projected
long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards.
The discount rate is based on the government securities yield.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

in ¥ lakh
Within 1 year 600
1-2 year 614
2-3 year 679
3-4 year 804
4-5 year 835
5-10 years 5,037

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set in
accordance with the published statistics by the Life Insurance
Corporation of India.

2.19 Provident fund

The Company contributed I2,104 lakh during the
year ended March 31, 2018 (X1,955 lakh for the year
ended March 31, 2017).

2.20  Superannuation

The Company contributed X615 lakh during the year ended
March 31,2018 R 693 lakh for the year ended March 31,2017).

2.21 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to
the extent not provided for)
in X lakh
As at March 31,
2018

Particulars

2017

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company,

not acknowledged as debts @ 8 -
Commitments

Estimated amount of

unexecuted capital contracts

(net of advances and

deposits) 733 1,255

@

As at March 31, 2018, claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debts in respect of income tax matters amounts to I8 lakh. These
matters are pending before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) and
the Management and its tax advisors expect that its position will likely
be upheld on ultimate resolution and will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.
Amount paid to statutory authorities against the
above tax claims is Nil.

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims,
which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The
Company’s Management does not reasonably expect that
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these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s

results of operations or financial condition.

2.22 Related party transactions

List of holding companies

Name of the holding company

Country _ Holding as at March 31,

2018 2017
Infosys Limited India 100% 100%
List of fellow subsidiaries
Name of the subsidiary Country
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (Infosys China) China
Infosys Technologies S. de R. L. de C. V. (Infosys Mexico) Mexico
Infosys Technologies (Sweden) AB. (Infosys Sweden) Sweden
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited (Infosys Shanghai) China
Infosys Tecnologia DO Brasil LTDA. (Infosys Brasil) Brazil
Infosys Nova Holdings LLC. (Infosys Nova) Us
Lodestone Management Consultants GmbH (Lodestone Austria)®) Austria
Skava Systems Pvt. Ltd. (Skava Systems) India
Kallidus Inc. (Kallidus) us
Infosys Chile SpA® Chile
Infosys Arabia Limited® Saudi Arabia
Infosys Americas Inc., (Infosys Americas) uUS
Infosys Technologies (Australia) Pty. Limited (Infosys Australia)® Australia
Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA (Infosys Public Services) uUS
Infosys Canada Public Services Ltd.®® Canada
Infosys BPM Limited (formerly Infosys BPO Limited) India
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.0.?” Czech Republic
Infosys Poland, Sp z.0.0™” Poland
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC Us
Portland Group Pty Ltd® Australia
Infosys BPO Americas LLC.?” Us
Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Infosys Lodestone) Switzerland
Lodestone Management Consultants Inc.®® Us
Infosys Management Consulting Pty Limited® Australia
Infosys Consulting AG® Switzerland
Infosys Consulting GmbH® Germany
Infosys Consulting SAS® France
Infosys Consulting s.r.0.® Czech Republic
Lodestone Management Consultants Co., Ltd.® China
Infy Consulting Company Ltd® UK
Infy Consulting B.V.®) The Netherlands
Infosys Consulting Sp. z.0.0® Poland
Lodestone Management Consultants Portugal, Unipessoal, Lda. ® Portugal
S.C. Infosys Consulting S.R.L.® Romania
Infosys Consulting S.R.L.® Argentina
Lodestone GmbH®® Switzerland
Lodestone Augmentis AG /00D Switzerland
Infosys Consulting (Belgium) NV (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants (Belgium) S.A.)12 Belgium
Infosys Consulting Ltda."? Brazil
Panaya Inc. (Panaya) uUs
Panaya Ltd.1? Israel
Panaya GmbH"® Germany
Panaya Japan Co. Ltd®®? Japan
Panaya Pty Ltd.">% Australia
Noah Consulting LLC (Noah)"” US
Noah Information Management Consulting Inc. (Noah Canada)®®*" Canada
Brilliant Basics Holdings Limited"® UK
Brilliant Basics Limited"® UK
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Name of the subsidiary Country

Brilliant Basics (MENA) DMCC"® Dubai
Infosys Consulting Pte Limited™ Singapore
Infosys Middle East FZ LLC®? Dubai

' Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Limited
@ Incorporated effective November 20, 2017
© Subsidiary of Infosys Limited

@ Under liquidation

" Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Public Services, Inc.

© Liquidated effective May 9, 2017

" Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys BPM (formerly Infosys BPO Limited).

®  Wholly-owned subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

© Liquidated effective December 21, 2016

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting AG (formerly Lodestone Management Consultants AG)

1Y Liquidated effective October 5, 2016

12 Majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries of Infosys Consulting Holding AG (formerly Lodestone Holding AG)

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Panaya Inc.

U9 Liquidated effective November 16, 2016

U5 Liquidated effective November 9, 2017

19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Noah

U7 Liquidated effective December 20, 2017

18 On September 8, 2017, Infosys acquired 100% of the voting interests in Brilliant Basics Holdings Limited., UK. Refer note no. 2.1
19 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Brilliant Basics Holding Limited.

20 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Infosys Consulting Pte Ltd

List of associates Country
DWA Nova LLCV®@ Us

M Associate of Infosys Nova Holdings LLC
@ DWA Nova LLC, has been liquidated w.e.f Novemeber 17, 2017

List of other related parties

Name of the entity Country Nature of relationship
Edgeverve Systems Limited Employees Gratuity Fund Trust India Post-employment benefit plan of Edgeverve
Edgeverve Systems Limited Employees Superannuation Fund Trust India Post-employment benefit plan of Edgeverve

List of key management personnel

Directors

¢ Srinivasan Rajam (appointed on July 8, 2014)

* Jonathan Heller (resigned on July 10, 2017)

* Sanat Rao (appointed on November 16, 2016)

¢ Ritika Suri (resigned on August 15, 2017)

* D N Prahlad (appointed on January 6, 2017)
 Sanjay Purohit (resigned on September 30, 2016)
* Roopa Kudva (resigned on November 11, 2016)
* Arun Krishnan (resigned on April 30, 2017)

¢+ Sandeep Dadlani (resigned on June 23, 2017)

* Deepak Padaki (appointed on July 10, 2017)

* Inderpreet Sawhney (appointed on September 1, 2017)
* Pervinder Johar (resigned on October 13, 2017)
 Nitesh Banga (appointed on December 1, 2017)

* Executive officers

e Prem Pereira, Chief Financial Officer

 Sudhir Shridhar Gaonkar, Company Secretary
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The details of amounts due to or due from related
parties are as follows:

in ¥ lakh
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Trade receivables
Infosys Public Services 49 7
Infosys BPM Limited 3 -
Infosys Poland 135 -
Infosys China 443 193
630 200
Other receivables
Infosys China 1 =
Infosys Mexico 1 -
Non convertible debentures
Infosys Limited 1,78,000 2,12,900
1,78,000 2,12,900
Trade payables
Infosys Limited 318 )
Infosys Consulting 61 -
Infosys BPM Limited 26 8
405 6
Other payables
Infosys BPM Limited - 22
Infosys China - 24
Infosys Mexico 32 -
Panaya Ltd. 380 152
412 198
Unbilled Revenue
Infosys Public Services 315 10
Infosys Consulting
(Singapore) 7 -
Infosys China 33 -
Infosys BPM Limited 126 -
Infosys Poland 45 9
593 19
Accrued expenses
Infosys Limited 3,184 4,524
3,184 4,524

Note: Excludes certain balances due to / from Infosys, which
are pertaining to contracts pending novation upon business
transfer and held in trust by Infosys.

in ¥ lakh
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS
Financing transactions
Debentures
Infosys Limited (34,900) (42,000)
Revenue transactions
Sale of services
Infosys Public Services 494 141
Infosys Poland 231 -
Infosys China 278 177

70 | EdgeVerve Systems Limited

Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Infosys Consulting
(Singapore) 74 -
Infosys BPM Limited 698 120
1,775 438
Purchase of shared services
including facilities and
personnel
Infosys Limited 44,742 34,445
Infosys Mexico 176 -
Infosys Consulting 271 -
Infosys BPM Limited 306 251
Panaya Ltd. 1,470 1,288
46,965 35,984
Finance cost
Infosys Limited 15,580 19,713

Note: Excludes certain transactions with Infosys, which are pertaining
to contracts pending novation upon business transfer and held
in trust by Infosys.

Transaction with key managerial personnel

The compensation given to key managerial personnel which
comprise directors and executive officers:

in X lakh

Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Salaries and other employee
benefits to whole-time directors
and executive officers 1,039 221
Commission and other benefits
to non-executive / independent
directors 20 18
Total 1,059 239

2.23 Research and development expenditure
in X lakh

Year ended March 31,
2018 2017

Particulars

Expenditure at Department
of Scientific and Industrial
Research (DSIR) approved
R&D centers (eligible for
weighted deduction)
Capital Expenditure
Revenue Expenditure
Other R&D Expenditure
Capital Expenditure
Revenue Expenditure
Total R&D Expenditure
Capital Expenditure
Revenue Expenditure

12,560 16,258

19,980 23,909

32,540 40,167

" During the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the
Company has claimed weighted tax deduction on eligible research
and development expenditure based on the approval received from
Department of Scientific and Industrial Research (DSIR) which is
valid upto March 31, 2020 and upto March 31, 2017 respectively. The
weighted tax deduction is equal to 150% and 200% respectively of such
expenditure incurred.
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2.24 Segment-reporting

The Company’s business activity, falls within a single primary business segment, i.e. providing products and platforms and
related services. Accordingly, disclosures as required under Ind AS 108, Segment-Reporting, has not been separately presented
in the financial statements since the information is available directly from the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.25Corporate social responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, a corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee was formed by the Company.
The proposed areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting education and healthcare
and rural developement projects. The funds will be allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which
are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is 155 lakh.

b) The details of the amount spent during the year on CSR activities are as follows:

in ¥ lakh
S 1. Particulars In cash To be paid in Total
No. cash
(1)  Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
(ii) For purposes other than (i) above 155 - 155
2.26 Function wise classification of Statement of Profit and Loss
in ¥ lakh
Particulars Year ended March 31,
2018 2017
Revenue from operations 2,43915 2,35,141
Cost of sales 1,44,685 1,38,191
Gross profit 99,230 96,950
Selling and marketing expenses 17,350 19,935
General and administration expenses 22,044 22,867
Total operating expenses 39,394 42,802
Operating profit 59,836 54,148
Other Income 1,153 1,443
Profit before interest and tax 60,989 55,591
Finance cost 15,580 19,713
Profit before tax 45,409 35,878
Tax expense:
Current tax 14,479 11,796
Deferred tax (264) (466)
Profit for the year 31,194 24,548
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset 585 81
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax 585 81
Total comprehensive income for the year 31,779 24,629

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Edgeverve Systems Limited

D. N. Prahlad Nitesh Banga Srinivasan Rajam
Chairman Director Director

Sanat Rao Prem Pereira Sudhir Gaonkar
Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Bengaluru

April 11,2018
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INFOSYS PUBLIC SERVICES, INC.



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of
Infosys Public Services, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Infosys Public Services, Inc. (the “Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2018 and the related statement of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year
ended March 31, 2018 and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Infosys

Public Services Inc as of March 31, 2018, the results of its operations, changes in shareholder’s equity and its cash flows for
year ended March 31, 2018, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Predecessor’s Auditors’ Opinion on March 31, 2017 Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017 were audited by other auditors whose
report, dated May 15, 2017 expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Bengaluru, India
May 4, 2018
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Balance Sheet

in US$
Particulars Note no. As at March 31,
2018 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2.1 59,290,602 39,981,209
Trade accounts receivables 2.2 14,887,404 21,158,978
Unbilled revenue 13,637,740 8,153,920
Loan to fellow subsidiaries 8,500,000 =
Prepayments and other current assets 2.3 1,436,902 476,921
Total current assets 97,752,648 69,771,028
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.4 44,292 137,771
Deferred tax assets 1,871,352 2,850,004
Income tax assets 90,001 3,058,014
Total non-current assets 2,005,645 6,045,789
Total assets 99,758,293 75,816,817
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade accounts payables 2.5 9,165,973 9,764,690
Income taxes payable 96,460 -
Unearned revenue 11,856,891 1,311,021
Client deposit 220,000 =
Employee benefit obligations 2.6 800,153 845,813
Provisions 2.8 589,745 261,364
Other liabilities 2.7 6,003,973 3,918,934
Total current liabilities 28,733,194 16,101,821
Total liabilities 28,733,194 16,101,821
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, US$ 0.50 par value, authorized : 40,000,000
shares; Issued and outstanding : 35,000,000 17,500,000 17,500,000
Retained earnings 53,525,098 42,214,996
Total stockholders’ equity 71,025,098 59,714,996
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 99,758,293 75,816,817

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Income

in US$
Particulars Note no. Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Revenue 147,619,878 201,734,128
Cost of revenue 2.10 121,810,785 159,968,637
Gross profit 25,809,092 41,765,491
Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses 2.10 2,329,674 2,479,306

Administrative expenses 2.10 4,434,406 5,130,092
Total operating expenses 6,764,080 7,609,398
Operating income 19,045,013 34,156,093

Other (expenses) / income 2.11 702,124 (605,083)
Profit before income taxes 19,747,137 33,551,010

Income tax expense 2.13 8,437,034 14,794 462
Net profit for the year 11,310,102 18,756,548
Earnings per equity shares
Earnings per equity share of $0.5 each 0.32 0.54

Equity shares used in computing earnings per equity 35,000,000 35,000,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

in US$
Particulars Common stock Retained Total
earnings stockholders’
equity
Shares Amount
Balance as of April 1, 2016 35,000,000 17,500,000 23,458,448 40,958,448
Changes in stockholders’ equity for the year
ended March 31, 2017
Net income - - 18,756,548 18,756,548
Balance as of March 31, 2017 35,000,000 17,500,000 42,214,996 59,714,996
Balance as of April 1, 2017 35,000,000 17,500,000 42,214,996 59,714,996
Changes in stockholders’ equity for the year
ended March 31, 2018
Net income - - 11,310,102 11,310,102
Balance as of March 31, 2018 35,000,000 17,500,000 53,525,098 71,025,098

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

in US$
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Operating activities
Net Profit 11,310,102 18,756,548
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 106,244 108,167
Income tax expense 8,437,034 14,794,462
Provisions for doubtful trade receivable (152,383) 559,934
Interest income on loan to fellow subsidiary (124,966) -
PSCS, net of reversals 321,983 (308,723)
Forex gain or loss on cash and cash equivalents (457,989) 354,019
Other adjustments 1,494
Changes in working capital
Trade receivables 6,549,081 17,158,227
Prepayments and other assets (956,356) 979,684
Unbilled revenue (5,608,943) 8,449,995
Trade payables (598,717) (14,129,988)
Client deposits 220,000 (558,668)
Unearned revenue 10,545,869 (777,525)
Other liabilities and provisions 2,045,453 (3,936,781)
Cash generated from operations 31,636,414 41,450,844
Income taxes paid (4,393,910) (17,650,936)
Net cash generated from operating activities 27,242,504 23,799,908
Investing activities
Loan to fellow subsidiaries (8,500,000) -
Expenditure on property, plant and equipment, net of sale proceeds, including
changes in retention money and capital creditors (12,429) (28,774)
Loans to employees 121,329 (11,429)
Net cash used in investing activities (8,391,100) (40,203)
Financing activities:
Increase in share capital - -
Net cash used in financing activities = -
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 457,989 (354,019)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 18,851,404 23,759,705
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 39,981,209 16,575,523
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 59,290,602 39,981,209

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Company overview and significant
accounting policies

1.1 Company overview

Infosys Public Services Inc. (‘the Company’) was incorporated
on October 9, 2009. The Company is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Infosys Limited, India. The company provides
end-to-end business solutions that leverage technology, thereby
enabling its clients to enhance business performance. The
Company’s operations are to provide solutions that span the
entire software lifecycle encompassing technical consulting,
design, development, re-engineering, maintenance, systems
integration, package evaluation and implementation, testing
and infrastructure management services.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with US generally-accepted accounting principles
to reflect the financial position and results of operations of
the Company. The financial statements have been presented
in United States Dollars.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are authorized
for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 4, 2018.

1.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP)
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. Significant estimates and assumptions are
used for, but not limited to, accounting for costs and efforts
expected to be incurred to complete performance under
software development arrangements, allowance for doubtful
accounts, future obligations under employee benefit plans,
the useful lives of plant and equipment and income tax
valuation allowances. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the
Management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected
in the financial statements in the period in which changes are
made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.

1.4 Revenue

Revenue is primarily derived from software development and
related services. Arrangements with customers for software
development and related services are either on a fixed-price,
fixed-timeframe or on a time-and-material basis.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as
the related services are performed and revenue from the end
of the last billing to the Balance Sheet date is recognized
as unbilled revenues. Revenue from fixed-price and fixed-
timeframe contracts, where there is no uncertainty as to
measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognized
based on the percentage of completion method. When there
is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability,
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revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty
is resolved. Cost and earnings in excess of billings are
classified as unbilled revenue while billings in excess of cost
and earnings is classified as unearned revenue. Provision
for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable
based on the current estimates.

The Company accounts for volume discounts and pricing
incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based on the
ratable allocation of the discount / incentive amount to each
of the underlying revenue transactions that result in progress
by the customer towards earning the discount / incentive.
Also, when the level of discount varies with increases in levels
of revenue transactions, the Company recognizes the liability
based on its estimate of the customer’s future purchases. If it
is probable that the criteria for the discount will not be met,
or if the amount thereof cannot be estimated reliably, then
discount is not recognized until the payment is probable and
the amount can be estimated reliably. The Company recognizes
changes in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts
using a cumulative catchup approach. The discounts are
passed on to the customer either as direct payments or as a
reduction of payments due from the customer.

Reimbursements for out-of-pocket expenses are included
in revenue in the accompanying statements of operations
in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 605-45, Revenue
Recognition — Principal Agent Considerations.

When the Company receives advances for services and
products, such amounts are reported as client deposits until
all conditions for revenue recognition are met. The Company
accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to
customers using the guidance in FASB ASC Topic 605-
50, Customer Payments and Incentives. Consistent with
the guidance in FASB ASC Topic 605-0-3, the Company
continues to present revenues net of sales and value added
taxes in its Statement of Income.

1.5. Plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation. Costs directly attributable to
acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and
equipment are ready for use, as intended by the Management.
The Company depreciates plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Plant and machinery 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the lesser of the remaining lease term or the estimated
useful life of the asset.

The Company evaluates the recoverability of these assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Recoverability
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of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison
of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted
net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such
assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying
value of the assets exceeds the fair value. Assets to be disposed
are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value
less the cost to sell.

1.6 Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months
or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks.

1.7 Trade accounts receivables

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount.
The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts
to provide coverage for losses from client receivables.
In establishing the required allowance, the Management
considers historical losses adjusted to take into account
current market conditions and customers’ financial condition,
the amount of receivables in dispute, the current receivables
aging and current payment patterns. Account balances
are charged off against the allowance after all means of
collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery
is considered remote.

1.8 Employee benefit obligations

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated
absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating
in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated
absences is determined by actuarial valuation based on the
additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet
date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is
recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

1.9 Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability
method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities, and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax
assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the
period that includes the enactment date. The measurement
of deferred tax assets is reduced, if necessary, by a valuation
allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or
all of the assets will not be realized. Changes in valuation
allowance from period to period are reflected in the income
statement of the period of change.

The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 740. ASC
740 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an entity’s financial statements and prescribes
a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
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financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. It
prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
income tax uncertainties with respect to positions taken
or expected to be taken in income tax. For the year ended
March 31, 2018, the Board of Directors identified no material
uncertain income tax positions relevant to the jurisdictions
where the Company is required to file income tax return.

1.10 Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments,
the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at
each Balance Sheet date. The methods used to determine
fair value include discounted cash flow analysis and
dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in
general approximation of value, and such value may never
actually be realized. For all financial instruments including
cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivables and
other current assets, accounts payable and other current
liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due
to the short maturity of those instruments. The fair value
of securities, which do not have an active market, is not
reasonably estimable. Financial instruments that potentially
subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of cash equivalents, and trade accounts
receivable. By nature, all such financial instruments involve
risk, including the credit risk of non-performance by
counterparties. In the Management’s opinion, as of March
31, 2018 and 2017, there was no significant risk of loss
in the event of non-performance of the counterparties to
these financial instruments, other than the amounts already
provided for in the financial statements, if any. Exposure to
credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing
credit limits and monitoring procedures. The factors which
affect the fluctuations in the Company’s provisions for bad
debts and write-offs of uncollectible accounts include the
financial health and economic environment of the clients.
The Company specifically identifies the credit loss and then
makes necessary provisions.

1.11 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that is
reasonably estimable, and it is probable that amount flow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability.

1.12 Recent accounting pronouncements

a) In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(‘FASB’) issued Accounting Standards Update (‘ASU’) 2014-
09, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (Topic 606). The
new standard, as amended, sets forth a single comprehensive
model for recognizing and reporting revenues. The standard
also requires additional financial statement disclosures that
will enable users to understand the nature, amount, timing and
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uncertainty of revenues and cash flows relating to customer
contracts. The standard allows for two methods of adoption:
the full retrospective adoption, which requires the standard
to be applied to each prior period presented, or the modified
retrospective adoption, which requires the cumulative effect
of adoption to be recognized as an adjustment to opening
retained earnings in the period of adoption. For non-public
entities this standard is effective for fiscal years, beginning
after December 15, 2018. The Company is yet to evaluate
the requirements of the standards and the impact on the
financial statements.

b) In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02,
Leases (Topic 842). The new standard replaces the existing
guidance on leases and requires the lessee to recognize
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with
lease terms equal to or greater than twelve months. For
finance leases, the lessee would recognize interest expense
and amortization of the right-of-use asset, and for operating
leases, the lessee would recognize total lease expense on a
straight-line basis. This standard is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019. Upon adoption, entities
will be required to use a modified retrospective transition
which provides for certain practical expedients. Entities are
required to apply the new standard at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented. Early adoption of this
new standard is permitted. The Company is yet to evaluate
the requirements of the standards and the impact on the
financial statements.

c) In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-12,
Derivatives and Hedging. The update expands and refines
hedge accounting for both financial and nonfinancial
hedging strategies to better align hedge accounting with
the Companies’ risk management strategies. The update
also amends the presentation and disclosure requirements
and changes how companies assess effectiveness of their
hedges. Adoption methods will differ by type of hedge. The
effective date for adoption is January 1, 2019. The Company
does not have any impact on the financial statements upon
adoption of the update.

d) In June 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial
Instruments - Credit Losses, which require a financial asset (or
a group of financial assets) measured at amortized cost basis
to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected.
The allowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is
to be deducted from the amortized cost basis of the financial
asset(s) to present the net carrying value at the amount
expected to be collected on the financial asset. For non-public
entities the new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2020, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. The amendment should be applied through
a modified retrospective approach. Early adoption as of the
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 is permitted.
The adoption of ASU No. 2016-13 is not expected to have a
material effect on the Company financial statements.

e) In August 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15,
Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments.
The amendments apply to all entities that are required to
present a Statement of Cash Flows under Topic 230. The
amendments are an improvement to GAAP because they
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provide guidance for each of the eight issues, thereby reducing
the current and potential future diversity in practice. For non-
public entities the amendments are effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2018 should be applied using a
retrospective transition method to each period presented. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this ASU to have a
material effect on its financial position or results of operations.

f) In November 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18,
Statement of Cash Flows - Restricted Cash. The amendments
apply to all entities that have restricted cash or restricted
cash equivalents and are required to present a Statement
of Cash Flows under Topic 230. The amendments in this
update require that a Statement of Cash Flows should explain
the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted
cash or restricted cash equivalents. For non-public entities
the amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted with an
adjustment reflected as of the beginning of the fiscal year in
which the amendment is adopted. The Company does not
expect the adoption of this ASU to have a material effect on
the presentation of its Statement of Cash Flows.

g) In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04,
Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment (Topic 350),
which eliminates Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test.
A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a
reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, however,
the loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of
goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. For non-public
entities the update is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted for interim
or annual goodwill impairment tests performed after January
1, 2017 and should be applied prospectively. The Company
does not have any impact on the financial statements upon
adoption of the update.

h) In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, Income
Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income and this
update provides an option for entities to reclassify standard
tax effects caused by the newly-enacted Tax Cuts and Jobs Act,
or Tax Reform Act, from accumulated other comprehensive
income to retained earnings. Upon adoption, entities have the
option to apply the update retrospectively or in the period
of adoption. Early adoption of this update is permitted. The
effective date for adoption is January 1, 2019. The Company
does not have any impact on the financial statements upon
adoption of the update.

1) In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Balance
Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes that requires companies
to classify all deferred tax assets and liabilities as non-current
on the Balance Sheet rather than separately disclosing deferred
taxes as current and non-current. This standard is effective
for us for annual periods beginning after December 15,2017
and can be early adopted and applied either prospectively or
retrospectively to all periods presented upon adoption. The
Company has elected to early adopt the new guidance from
the current year on a retrospective basis.
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2.1 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are as follows:

in US$ in US$
Particulars As at March 31, Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017 2018 2017
Cash and bank Computer equipment 547,109 536,017
balances 59,290,602 39,981,209 plant and machinery 10,053 10,053
59,290,602 39,981,209 Office equipment 37,701 37,701
Furniture and fixtures 174,363 174,363
The details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows: 769226 758.134
in US$
Accumulated
Particulars As at March 31, depreciation 724,934 620,363
2018 2017 Carrying value 44,292 137,771
Currents Accounts
Bank of America 35,183,567 28,068,098 The depreciation expense amounted to US$ 106,244
Royal Bank of and US$ 108,167 for year ended March 31, 2018
Canada 24,107,035 11,913,111 and March 31, 2017, which has been included in
Total 59,290,602 39,981,209 cost of revenues.

2.2 Trade accounts receivables

Accounts receivable as at March 31, 2018 is US$ 14,887,404
(previous year - US$ 21,158,978), net of allowances recorded
of US$ 374,398 (previous year - US$ 648,252). The Company
maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based on
financial condition of the customer and ageing of the accounts
receivable. Accounts receivables are not collateralized.

Trade accounts receivables are as follows :

2.5 Trade accounts payables

Trade accounts payable are as follows:

in US$

Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Accounts receivable,
gross* 15,261,802 21,807,230
Less: Allowance for
doubtful debts 374,398 648,252
14,887,404 21,158,978

*Includes dues from related parties (Refer to Note 2.14).
2.3 Prepayments and other assets
Prepayments and other assets are as follows:

in US$
Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Current
Loans and advances
to employees 96,761 218,090
Accrued Interest
on loan to Fellow
Subsidiaries 124,966
Prepaid expenses 62,839 55,198
Advance payments to
vendors for supply of
goods and services 41,243 86,520
Withholding taxes 295,933 95,987
Other receivables
from related party
(Refer Note 2.14) 806,279 17,703
Other assets 8,882 3,423
1,436,902 476,921
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in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Due to related parties
(Refer to Note 2.14) 8,545,840 9,675,296
Other accounts
payable 620,133 89,394
9,165,973 9,764,690
2.6 Employee benefit obligation
Employee benefit obligation are as follows:
in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Provision for
compensated
absences 800,153 845,813
800,153 845,813
2.7 Other liabilities
Other liabilities are comprised as follows:
in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Current
Accrued
compensation to
employees 1,800,460 1,284,033
Accrued expenses 1,363,766 2,138,145
Withholding taxes
payable 400,505 326,263
Retention money 88,483 88,483
Payable to related
parties 2,346,301 63,175
Others 4,458 18,834
6,003,973 3,918,934
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* Accrued expenses primarily consists of cost of technical Particulars As at March 31,
sub-contractors US$ 879,385 (previous year - 1,480,210), 7018 2017

legal and professional charges US$ 144,378 (previous Liabilities
year 433,365) and others US$ 340,003 (previous year Trade accounts
224,568). payables 9,165,973 9,764,690
¢ Accrued compensation to employees consists of salary Client deposit 220,000 _
payable US$ 388,413 (previous year - US$ 319,850) and Employee benefit
bonus and incentives payable US$ 1,412,047 (previous obligation
year - US$ 964,183). (Refer to Note 2.6) 800,153 845,813
2 8 Provisions Accrued expenses
o ‘ o (Refer to Note 2.7) 1,363,766 2,138,145
Other liabilities consists of the following: s Retention money
(Refer to Note 2.7) 88,483 88,483
Particulars As at March 31, Aceried
_ 2018 2017 compensation to staff
Provision for post- (Refer to Note 2.7) 1,800,460 1,284,033
sales customer Other financial
support 589,745 261,364 liabilities
589,745 261,364 (Refer note 2.7) 2,350,759 82,009
Total 15,789,594 14,203,173

The movement in provision for post-sales client

support is as follows:

All the above financial instruments are carried at amortized

Particulars As at March 31, cost and the carrying value approximates their fair value.
2018 2017 .
Balance at the 2.10 Operating expenses
beginning 261,364 563,834 Break up of expenses by nature is as follows: .
Provision 328,381 = in US$
Provision utilized = - Particulars Years ended March 31,
Reversal = 302,470 2018 2017
Balance at the end 589,745 261,364 Employee benefit
costs 18,224,883 21,745,640
2.9 Financial instruments Depreciation 106,244 108,167
. ) . . Travelling costs 1,227,693 1,390,732
The carrying value of financial instruments is as follows:
in US$ Consultancy and
. professional charges 089,838 930,534
Particulars Aszzgll\élarch 31, — Software packages for
A own use 795 815,957
Séetsh d cach Cost of technical sub-
as! aln [Cas contractors 5,586,416 4,036,683
equivalents Cost of technical sub-
(Refer to Note 2.1) 59,290,602 39,081,209 ost oF teehiea” su
Trad . contractors - related
rade accounts .
receivables paries
(Ref N 2.2) 14.887 404 51.158.978 (Refer to Note 2.14) 101,320,619 137,328,090
eler to Note 2. 057, 295, Rates and taxes 72,970 155,760
Unbilled revenue 13,637,740 8,153,920 .
L . | Branding and
oans to employees .
(Reler to Nolt)e 2Y3) 96.761 518.090 marketing expenses 114,249 156,831
o el : ’ ’ Provision / (reversal)
O;nf N ov1; f for post-sales client
U 1\?1 ”21635)( eler 8.500.000 support 321,983 (308,723)
fAO oted = rerest = = (Reversal) / provision
cclrue mfelrles for doubtful account
Onb 93?1 to lellow receivables (152,383) 559,934
SUDSICIATIES Rent 391,262 299,036
(Refer to Note 2.3) 124,966 - .
P q Commission to Non-
rlipayments an Executive Director
?ﬁegra;siz oy 815 161 o116 (Refer to Note 2.14) 41,667 100,000
. : : Others 328,629 259,394
Total 900038 69533323 gy 128,574,865 167,578,034
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Cost of revenue

in US$
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Employee benefit
costs 13,349 371 16,954,959
Depreciation 106,244 108,167
Travelling costs 963,165 995,379
Software packages for
own use 795 815,957
Cost of technical sub-
contractors 5,586,416 4,036,683
Cost of technical sub-
contractors - related
parties
(Refer to Note 2.14) 101,320,619 137,328,090
Provision/(reversal)
for post-sales client
support 321,983 (308,723)
Rent 92,306 9,234
Others 69,886 28,891
Total 121,810,785 159,968,637
Selling and marketing expenses
in US$
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Employee benefit
costs 2,009,808 1,970,502
Travelling costs 167,689 295,515
Consultancy and
professional charges 27,524 28,274
Branding and
marketing expenses 114,249 156,831
Rent — 16,475
Others 10,404 11,709
Total 2,329,674 2,479,306
Administrative expenses
in US$
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Employee benefit
costs 2,865,704 2,820,179
Travelling costs 96,839 09,838
Consultancy and
professional charges 962,314 902,260
Rates and taxes 72,970 155,760
Provision for doubtful
account receivables (152,383) 559,034
Rent 298,956 273,327
Commission to Non-
Executive Director
(Refer to Note 2.14) 41,667 100,000
Others 248,339 218,794
Total 4,434,406 5,130,092
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2.11 Other income

Other income / (expense) are as follows:

in US$
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Interest Income 124 966 -
Exchange gains /
(losses) 571,963 (609,762)
Others 5,196 4,679
702,124 (605,083)

2.12 Operating leases

Total rental expenses under operating leases was US$ 391,262
and US$ 299,036 during the year ended March 31, 2018
and March 31, 2017, respectively. The schedule of future
minimum rental payments in respect of non-cancellable
operating leases is as follows:

in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Within one year of
the Balance Sheet date 366,468 269,027
Due in a period
between one year and
five years 158,089 407,820
Due after five years - -
2.13 Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises:
in US$
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Current tax 7,458,382 14,415,625
Deferred tax 978,652 378,837
Income tax expense 8,437,034 14,794 462

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount
computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the
income before income taxes is summarized as follows:

in US$

Particulars Years ended March 31,

2018 2017
Profit before incomes
taxes 19,747,137 33,551,010
Enacted tax rate 32% 35%
Computed expected
tax expense 6,230,222 11,742,853
State taxes 1,528,045 2,348,571
Overseas taxes 143,848 123,432
Disallowed
Items - meals and
entertainment 63,618 50,220
Change in tax rate 914,922 -
Tax pertaining to
prior year (442,804) 490,428
Others (818) 38,958
Income tax expense 8,437,034 14,794 462
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The types of temporary differences that give rise to significant
portions of the Company’s deferred tax assets as at March
31, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

in US$

Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Plant and equipment 400,343 1,088,706
Compensated
absences 232,044 355,241
Accrued
compensation 410,096 405,383
Provision for post-
sales customer
support 171,026 109,773
Accounts receivables 218,351 379,470
Others 439,492 511,431
Total deferred income
tax assets 1,871,352 2,850,004

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the
Management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not
be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which the temporary differences become
deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals
of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income,
and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based
on the level of historical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred
tax assets are deductible, the Management believes that it
is more likely than not that the Company will realize the
benefit of the deductible differences at March 31, 2018.
Accordingly, the Management has recorded deferred tax asset
in its financial statements.

2.14 Related party transactions

(a) The Company has identified
to be related parties.

the following

Key management personnel

Prof. Jeffrey S. Lehman (Non-Executive Director) - Date of
resignation is August 24, 2017.

Eric Paternoster (Whole-time Director and CEO)

Other companies within
there were transactions

the group with which

Infosys Limited (‘IL - holding company)
Infosys BPM Ltd. (‘IBPM’ - fellow subsidiary)
Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Ltd. (‘IC'- fellow subsidiary)

Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. (‘Infosys
Shanghai’- fellow subsidiary)

Edgeverve Systems Limited (‘EV’ - fellow subsidiary)
Noah Consulting, LLC (‘Noah’ - fellow subsidiary)
Panaya Inc. (‘Panaya’ - fellow subsidiary)

Lodestone Management Consultants Inc. (‘Lodestone’
- fellow subsidiary)

Infosys Middle East FZ LLC(‘CMA - fellow subsidiary)
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Brilliant Basics Holdings (‘BB’ - fellow subsidiary)

Infosys BPO Americas LLC (‘BPO Americas’ - fellow subsidiary)
Infosys McCamish Systems LLC (‘McCamish Systems’
- fellow subsidiary)

Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. (‘Infosys Shanghai’
- fellow subsidiary)

(b) The details of amounts due to or due from as at March 31,
2018 and March 31, 2017 are as follows:

in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Trade accounts
receivables
IL 263,204 418,351
263,204 418,351
Trade accounts
payables
IL 8,158,828 9,444,936
IBPM 286,956 183,241
Noah - 22,662
EV 75,069 11,128
IC 14,032 13,328
Infosys Shanghai 10,955 -
8,545,840 9,675,295
Other receivables
Panaya 13,034 11,807
Lodestone - -
IL 806,279 17,703
819,313 29,510
Other payables
EV 485,655 15,886
IL 963,792 47,289
McCamish System 896,854 -
2,346,301 63,175
Loan to fellow
subsidiaries
McCamish Systems 5,500,000 -
BB 1,000,000 =
BPO Americas 500,000 -
CMA 1,500,000 -
8,500,000 -
Accrued interest
on loan to fellow
subsidiaries
McCamish Systems 112,637 -
BB 4,247 -
BPO Americas 1,096 -
CMA 6,986 -
124,966 -
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(c) The details of the related party transactions entered into by
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March
31, 2017 are as follows:

in US$
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Revenue transactions:
Sale of services
IL 3,478,958 3,328,669
EV — 370,049
3,478,958 3,698,719
Purchase of services
IL 97,396,745 133,182,395
IBPO 2,678,780 3,045,840
EV 761,910 576,011
Noah 148,778 265,294
Panaya 37,873 23,613
IC 187,702 234937

Infosys Shanghai 108,830 -
101,320,618 137,328,090

The compensation given to key managerial personnel which
comprise directors are as follows:

in US$

Particulars Years ended March 31,

2018 2017
Commission and
other benefits to
non-executive/
independent directors 41,667 100,000
Salary paid to WID
and CEO 913,441 1,133,005
Total 955,108 1,233,005

2.15 Commitments and contingencies

The Company is currently not involved in any significant
lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings, including
patent and commercial matters, which arises in the ordinary
course of business. There are no pending matters that are
expected to have material effect on these financial statements.

2.16 Subsequent events

The Company has evaluated all events or transactions that
occurred after March 31, 2018 up through April 15, 2018,
the date the financial statements were issued. Based on
this evaluation, the Company is not aware of any events or
transactions that would require recognition or disclosure in
the financial statements.

54 | Infosys Public Services, Inc.

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18



INFOSYS TECHNOLOGIES(CHINA) CO. LIMITED



Auditors’ Report

De Shi Bao (Shen) Zi (18) No. P02624
The Board of Directors of Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited

1. Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (‘the Company’), which

comprise the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2017, the Income Statement, the Cash Flow Statement, and the Statement of
Changes in Owners’ Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company is prepared and presented fairly, in all material respects,
the Company’s financial position as of December 31, 2017, and the Company’ results of operation and cash flow for the year
ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics for Chinese Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
that is necessary to enable the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company’ ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’ financial reporting process.

4. Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with China Standards
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

(2)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

(3)  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Management.

(4)  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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(5)  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements (including the disclosures), and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Chinese Certified Public Accountant
Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, China

April 4, 2018

The auditors’ report and the accompanying financial statements are English translations of the Chinese auditors’ report and statutory financial statements
prepared under accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the People’s Republic of China. These financial statements are not intended
to present the financial position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in
other countries and jurisdictions. In case the English version does not conform to the Chinese version, the Chinese version prevails.
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Statement of Balance Sheet

in RMB
Particulars Notes VII As at December 31,
2017 2016
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 1 96,705,984.42 59,009,387.84
Accounts receivable 2 263,661,629.54 370,482,593.73
Prepayments 2,294,383.02 340,299.83
Interest receivable 1,490,958.91 =
Other receivables 3 69,031,286.61 22.174,136.36
Total current assets 433,184,242.50 452,006,417.76
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 4 11,137,530.30 14,666,714.99
Long-term deferred expenses 5 1,594,897.51 1,578,695.82
Total non-current assets 12,732,427 .81 16,245,410.81
Total assets 445916,670.31 468,251,828.57
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS EQUITY
Current liabilities
Short-term loans 6 69,915,940.00 74.,225,900.00
Accounts payable 95,399,302.85 52,355,005.41
Employee benefits payable 7 39,559,844.50 72,513,017.44
Taxes payable 8 2,085,005.03 4.113,020.73
Interest payable 7,440,305.55 3,525,896.53
Other payables 24.214,920.66 49,640,726.93
Other current liabilities 54,193,884.20 82,895,068.80
Total current liabilities 292,809,202.79 339,268,635.84
Total liabilities 292.,809,202.79 339,268,635.84
Owners’ equity
Paid-in capital 9 398,980,400.00 295,636,400.00
Capital reserve 10 51,575,614.42 51,575,614.42

Accumulated losses
Total owners’ equity
Total liabilities and owners’ equity

(297,448,546.90)

(218,228,821.69)

153,107,467.52

128,983,192.73

445,916,670.31

468,251,828.57

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.

The financial statements on page 90 to 108 were signed by the following.

Head of the Company
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Chief Financial Officer

Head of Accounting
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Statement of Income

in RMB

Particulars Notes VII Year ended December 31,
2017 2016
1. Operating income 11 953,645,129.10 1,066,322,836.77
Less: Operating costs 916,186,083.93 969,542,338.56
Taxes and surcharges 1,463,750.63 1,868,322.68
Selling expenses 25,654,275.46 31,986,332.62
Administrative expenses 90,096,488.02 131,963,432.05
Financial expenses 12 525,119.18 8,191,441.97
Impairment losses (reversal) 13 10,975,748.44 (1,620,965.73)
1. Operating loss 16 (91,256,336.56) (75,608,065.38)
Add: Non-operating income 14 12,036,611.35 15,298,927.45
Loss before taxation (79,219,725.21) (60,309,137.93)

III. Less: Income tax expense 15 =

IV. Net loss for the year
V. Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
VI. Total comprehensive loss for the year

(79,219,725.21)

(60,309,137.93)

(79,219,725.21)

(60,309,137.93)

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

in RMB

Particulars Notes VII

Year ended December 31,

2017

2016

I.Cash flows from operating activities
Proceeds from rendering of services
Refund of taxes

Proceeds from other operating activities
Sub-total of cash inflows

Payment for services

Payment to and for employees

Payment of various taxes

Payment for other operating activities
Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from operating activities 17
11.Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for acquisition of fixed assets and other long-
term deferred expenses

Payment for Loan to related parties
Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash outflow from investing activities
111. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from investors

Proceeds from borrowings

Sub-total of cash inflows

Net cash inflow from financing activities
IV. Effect of exchange rate changes

1,086,495,678.88
862,700.74
20,715,009.89

991,520,305.89
3,060,324.36
9,732,279.08

1,108,073,389.51

1,004,312,909.33

268,137,318.61
711,460,757.61

32,832,454.52
101,422,434.10

98,666,877.07
927,897,031.85
32,821,902.04
73,646,198.91

1,113,852,964.84

1,133,032,009.87

(5,779,575.33)

(128,719,100.54)

6,412,102.27 9,808,703.31
50,000,000.00 —
56,412,102.27 9,808,703.31

(56,412,102.27)

(9,808,703.31)

103,344,000.00

65,656,000.00
74,225,900.00

103,344,000.00

139,881,900.00

103,344,000.00

139,881,900.00

(3,455,725.82)

1,354,096.15

V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 17 37,696,596.58

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

year 59,009,387.84 57,655,291.69
VL. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 17 96,705,984 .42 59,009,387.84

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Owners' Equity

in RMB

Particulars

Paid-in capital

Capital reserve

Accumulated losses Total owners’ equity

1. Balance at January 1, 2017
1. Changes in equity during the
year
1. Total comprehensive income
2. Owners’ contributions
Balance at December 31, 2017
I.Balance at January 1, 2016
11.Changes in equity during the
year
1. Total comprehensive income
2. Owners’ contributions
Balance at December 31, 2016

295,636,400.00

51,575,614.42

(218,228,821.69) 128,983,192.73

103,344,000.00

(79,219,725.21) (79,219,725.21)
- 103,344,000.00

398,980,400.00

51,575,614.42

(297,448,546.90) 153,107,467.52

229,980,400.00

51,575,614.42

(157,919,683.76) 123,636,330.66

65,656,000.00

(60,309,137.93) (60,309,137.93)
65,656,000.00

295,636,400.00

51,575,614.42

(218,228,821.69) 128,983,192.73

The accompanying notes form part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

[. Basic information

Infosys Technologies (China) Co. Limited (the ‘Company’),
formerly known as Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co.
Limited, is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in
Shanghai in the People’s Republic of China (PRC) by Infosys
Limited (formerly Infosys Technologies Limited) registered in
India. The Company obtained an approval certificate Wai Jing
Mao Hu Zhang Du Zi Zi (2003) No. 2893 from the Shanghai
Municipal Government on September 25, 2003, and a
business license (Qi Du Hu Pu Zong Zi No.317745 (Pudong))
on October 10, 2003, issued by Shanghai Administration of
Industry and Commerce of the PRC. The original registered
capital was US$ 5,000,000.

In 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to
change the Company’s name from Infosys Technologies
(Shanghai) Co. Limited to Infosys Technologies (China) Co.
Limited and to increase the Company’s registered capital from
US$ 5,000,000 to US$10,000,000. The Company obtained
a revised approval certificate Wai Jing Mao Hu Zhang Du Zi
Zi (2003) No0.2893 and a revised business licence (Qi Du
Hu Pu Zong Zi No0.317745 (Pudong)) on July 14, 2006 and
December 14, 2006, respectively.

The Company’s Board of Directors resolved to increase
the Company’s registered capital by US$ 13,000,000. The
registered capital was increased from US$ 10,000,000 to
US$23,000,000. The Company obtained approval from the
Shanghai Municipal Government for the change on January
15, 2009. The Company also obtained a revised approval
certificate Shang Wai Zi Hu Pu Du Zi Zi (2003) No.2893 and
a revised business license N0.310115400134785 (Pudong)
on January 15, 2009 and March 13, 2009, respectively.

In 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to increase
the Company’s registered capital from US$ 23,000,000 to
US$33,000,000. The Company obtained approval from the
Shanghai Municipal Government for the change on March
5, 2015. The Company also obtained a revised approval
certificate Shang Wai Zi Hu Pu Du Zi Zi (2003) No0.2893 and
a revised business license N0.310115400134785 (Pudong)
on March 5, 2015 and May 18, 2015, respectively.

In 2016, the Company’s Board of Directors resolved to increase
the Company’s registered capital from US$ 33,000,000 to
US$58,000,000. The Company obtained approval from the
China (Shanghai) Free Trade Zone Management Committee
for the change on June 1, 2016. The Company also obtained
arenewed business licence with the unified social credit code
0f 913101157547751363 on June 7, 2016.

The Company’s period of operation is 50 years and its
principal activities are to carry out research, develop, design
and produce software; sell self-produced products; provide
related technology consulting services and after sale services;
develop computer and network technology; provide testing
and maintenance of software solutions; provide business
consulting services and business process management; export
and import computer hardware and software, wholesale,
commission agency (excluding auction); offshore call
center service and etc.
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Il. Basis for the preparation of financial
statements

Going concern

The Management has asscessed the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern for the 12 months commercing

December 31,2017, and noticed no items will raise substantial

doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.

Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on

the going concern basis.

[ll.  Statements of compliance with the ASBE
The financial statements have been prepared on the

going concern basis.

IV.  Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates

The following significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates have been determined in accordance with ASBE.

1. Accounting year

The accounting year of the
January 1 to December 31.

Company is from

2. Functional currency

Renminbi Yuan (RMB) is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates. The
functional currency of the Company is RMB.

3. Basis of accounting and principle of
measurement

The Company has adopted the accrual basis of accounting,.
Except for certain financial instruments which are measured
at fair value, the Company has adopted the historical cost
as the principle of measurement of the financial statements.
Where assets are impaired, provisions for asset impairment
are made in accordance with relevant requirements.

Where the historical cost is adopted as the measurement
basis, assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash
equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given
to acquire them at the time of their acquisition. Liabilities
are recorded at the amount of proceeds or assets received or
the contractual amounts for assuming the present obligation,
or, at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be
paid to settle the liabilities in the normal course of business.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using valuation technique. Fair value measurement and
/ or disclosure in the financial statements are determined
according to the above basis.

Fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:
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o Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits that can be readily
withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are the Company’s
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

5. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. For financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs are immediately recognized in profit or loss.
For other financial assets and financial liabilities, transaction
costs are included in their initial recognized amounts.

5.1 Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability
(including a group of financial assets or financial liabilities)
and of allocating the interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period, using the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial asset or financial liability (without
considering future credit losses), and also considers all fees
paid or received between the parties to the contract giving
rise to the financial asset and financial liability that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs,
and premiums or discounts, etc.

5.2 Classification,recognition and
measurement of financial assets

On initial recognition, the Company’s financial assets are
classified into one of the four categories, including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.
The Company’ financial assets mainly represent loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
fair value through profit or loss.
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The financial assets held by the Company are mainly classified
to loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Financial assets classified as loans and
receivables by the Company include accounts receivable.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gain or
loss arising from derecognition, impairment or amortization
is recognized in profit or loss.

5.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date the carrying
amounts of financial assets other than those at fair value
through profit or loss. If there is objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired, the Company determines the
amount of any impairment loss. Objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired is evidence that, arising from one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset,
which can be reliably measured, have been affected.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired includes
the following observable events:

I. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

2. A breach of contract by the borrower, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

3. The lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrowers financial difficulty, granting a concession to the
borrower;

4. It becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

5. The disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties of the issuer;

6. Upon an overall assessment of a group of financial assets,
observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group. Such observable data includes
- Adverse changes in the payment
status of  borrowers in the group;
- Economic conditions in the country or region of the
borrower which may lead to a failure to pay the company
of assets;

~

. Significant adverse changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer
operates, indicating that the cost of the investment in the
equity instrument may not be recovered by the investor;

8. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost;

9. Other objective evidence indicating there is an impairment
of a financial asset.
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Impairment of financial assets measured at
amortized cost

If financial assets carried at amortized cost are impaired, the
carrying amounts of the financial assets are reduced to the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The amount
of reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in profit
or loss. If, subsequent to the recognition of an impairment
loss on financial assets carried at amortized cost, there is
objective evidence of a recovery in value of the financial
assets which can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment is recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed. However, the reversal is made
to the extent that the carrying amount of the financial asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortized cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognized.

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the
Company assesses the asset individually for impairment. For a
financial asset that is not individually significant, the Company
assesses the asset individually for impairment or includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
If the Company determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset
(whether significant or not), it includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively reassesses them for impairment. Assets for
which an impairment loss is individually recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

5.4 Classification, recognition and
measurement of financial liabilities

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified
in accordance with the economic substance of the contractual
arrangements instead of the legal form as well as the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument;
on initial recognition, financial instruments or their
component parts are classified as either financial liabilities
or equity instruments.

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial liabilities. The Company’s financial liabilities
mainly represent other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss consist
of financial liabilities held for trading and those designated
as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

The financial liabilities held by the Company mainly include
other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, except liabilities of financial
guarantee contracts, are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, with
gain or loss arising from derecognition or amortization
recognized in profit or loss.
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5.5 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability (or part of
it) only when the underlying present obligation (or part
of it) is discharged. An agreement between the Company
(an existing borrower) and an existing lender to replace
the original financial liability with a new financial liability
with substantially different terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.

When the Company derecognizes a financial liability or a
part of it, it recognizes the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid (including
any non-cash assets transferred or new financial liabilities
assumed) in profit or loss.

5.6 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

When the Company has a legal right that is currently
enforceable to set off the recognized financial assets and
financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the financial asset and settle the financial liability
simultaneously, financial assets and financial liabilities
are offset with the net amounts presented on the Balance
Sheet. Otherwise, financial assets and financial liabilities are
separately presented on the Balance Sheet without offsetting.

6. Fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others,
or for administrative purposes, and have useful lives of more
than one accounting year. A fixed asset is recognized only
when it is probable that economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. Fixed assets are initially measured at cost.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for the fixed asset are
included in the cost of the fixed asset and if it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the
Company and the subsequent expenditures can be measured
reliably. Meanwhile, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. Other subsequent expenditures are recognized
in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

A fixed asset is depreciated over its useful life using the straight-
line method from the month subsequent to the one in which
it is ready for intended use. The depreciation method, useful
life, estimated net residual value rate and annual depreciation
rate of each category of fixed assets are as follows:

Category Estimated Residual Annual

useful life value rate depreciation
rate

Computer

equipment 3-5 years 0% 20-33%

Office

equipment 5 years 0% 20%

Transportation

vehicles 5 years 0% 20%
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Estimated net residual value of a fixed asset is the estimated
amount that the Company would currently obtain from
disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs
of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the
condition expected at the end of its useful life.

If a fixed asset is upon disposal or no future economic benefits
are expected to be generated from its use or disposal, the fixed
asset is derecognized. When a fixed asset is sold, transferred,
retired or damaged, the amount of any proceeds on disposal
of the asset net of the carrying amount and related taxes is
recognized in profit or loss for the period.

The Company reviews the useful life and estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation method
applied at least once at each financial year-end, and account
for any change as a change in an accounting estimate.

7. Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at its actual costs. The
actual costs include various construction expenditures during
the construction period and other relevant costs. Construction
in progress is not depreciated. Construction in progress is
transferred to a fixed asset when it is ready for intended use.

8. Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses represent expenses incurred
that should be borne and amortized over the current and
subsequent periods (together of more than one year).
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using the
straight-line method over the expected periods in which
benefits are derived.

Long-term deferred expenses include leasehold improvement,
which are amortized on the straight-line method over their
beneficial period of 2 years.

9. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company reviews the fixed assets, construction in
progress and other long-term assets at each Balance Sheet
date to determine whether there is any indication that they
have suffered an impairment loss. If an impairment indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful life and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that the
assets may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is estimated on individual basis. If it
is not practical to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the recoverable amount of the asset group
to which the asset belongs will be estimated. The recoverable
amount of an asset or asset group is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and the present value of the future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset.

If such recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
a provision for impairment losses in respect of the deficit is
recognized in profit or loss for the period.

Once the impairment loss of such assets is recognized, it is
not be reversed in any subsequent period.
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10. Employee benefits

Actually occurred short-term employee benefits are recognized
as liabilities, with a corresponding charge to the profit or
loss for the period or in the costs of relevant assets in the
accounting period in which employees provide services to the
Company. Staff welfare expenses incurred by the Company
are recognized in profit or loss for the period or the costs of
relevant assets based on the actually occurred amounts when
it actually occurred. Non-monetary staff welfare expenses are
measured at fair value.

Company’s contributions for employees’ social security,
such as premiums or contributions on medical insurance,
work injury insurance and maternity insurance, etc. and
payments of housing funds, as well as trade union fund
and employee education fund provided in accordance with
relevant requirements, are calculated according to prescribed
bases and percentages in determining the amount of
employee benefits and recognized as relevant liabilities, with
a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the period or
the costs of relevant assets in the accounting period in which
employees provide services.

During the accounting period of rendering service to employees
of the Company, amount which should be paid according to
defined contribution plans is recognized as liabilities, and
recognized in profit or loss or related costs of assets.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized in profit
or loss for the period at the earlier of when the Company
cannot unilaterally withdraw from the termination plan or
the redundancy offer and when the Company recognizes any
related restructuring costs or expenses.

11. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably; it is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the enterprise; the stage of completion of
the transaction can be determined reliably; and the associated
costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably.
Revenue from rendering of services is recognized using the
percentage of completion method at the Balance Sheet date.
The stage of completion of a transaction for rendering for
services is determined based on work performed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering
of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognized
only to the extent of the costs incurred that will be recoverable,
and the costs incurred are recognized as expenses for the
period. When it is not probable that the costs incurred will
be recovered, revenue is not recognized.

12. Government grants

Government grants are monetary assets and non-monetary
assets from the government to the Company at no
consideration. A government grant is recognized only when
the Company can comply with the conditions attaching to the
grant and the Company will receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary
asset, it is measured at the amount received or receivable.
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For a government grant related to income, if the grant is a
compensation for related expenses or losses to be incurred
in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred
income over the periods in which the related costs or losses
are recognized; If the grant is a compensation for related
expenses or losses already incurred, the grant is recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

A government grant related to the Company’ daily activities
is recognized in other income or written off related cost
and expense based on the nature of economic activities;
a government grant is not related to the Company’s daily
activities is recognized in non-operating income and expenses.

13. Income taxes

Tax expense comprises current tax expense.

13.1.Current income taxes

At the Balance Sheet date, current income tax liabilities (or
assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be paid (or recovered) according to the
requirements of tax laws.

13.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities
For temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
certain assets or liabilities and their tax base, or between the
nil carrying amount of those items that are not recognized as
assets or liabilities and their tax base that can be determined
according to tax laws, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized using the Balance Sheet liability method.

Deferred tax is generally recognized for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary
differences are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. However, for temporary
differences associated with the initial recognition of goodwill
and the initial recognition of an asset or liability arising from
a transaction (not a business combination) that affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profits (or deductible
losses) at the time of transaction, no deferred tax asset or
liability is recognized.

For deductible losses and tax credits that can be carried
forward, deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized.

At the Balance Sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the tax rates, according to tax laws, that are
expected to apply in the period in which the asset is realized
or the liability is settled.

Current and deferred tax expenses or income are recognized
in profit or loss for the period, except when they arise from
transactions or events that are directly recognized in other
comprehensive income or in owners’ equity, in which case they
are recognized in other comprehensive income or in owners’
equity; and when they arise from business combinations, in
which case they adjust the carrying amount of goodwill.

At the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred
tax assets is reviewed and reduced if it is no longer probable
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that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future
to allow the benefit of deferred tax assets to be utilized. Such
reduction in amount is reversed when it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

13.3. Income tax offsetting

When the Company has a legal right to settle on a net basis
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, current tax assets and
current tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.

When the Company has a legal right to settle current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets
and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are
expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.

14. Transactions denominated in foreign
currencies

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial
recognition, by applying the spot exchange rate on the
date of the transaction.

At the Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items
are translated into RMB using the spot exchange rates at the
Balance Sheet date. Exchange differences arising from the
differences between the spot exchange rates prevailing at the
Balance Sheet date and those on initial recognition or at the
previous Balance Sheet date are recognized in profit or loss for
the period, except that (1) exchange differences related to a
specific-purpose borrowing denominated in foreign currency
that qualify for capitalization are capitalized as part of the
cost of the qualifying asset during the capitalization period,;
(2) exchange differences related to hedging instruments
for the purpose of hedging against foreign currency risks
are accounted for using hedge accounting; (3) exchange
differences arising from available-for-sale non-monetary
items (such as shares) denominated in foreign currencies and
changes in the carrying amounts (other than the amortized
cost) of available-for-sale monetary items, are recognized as
other comprehensive income and included in capital reserve.

Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at historical
cost are translated to the amounts in functional currency
at the spot exchange rates on the dates of the transactions
and the amounts in functional currency remain unchanged.
Foreign currency non-monetary items measured at fair value
are re-translated at the spot exchange rate on the date the
fair value is determined. Difference between the re-translated
functional currency amount and the original functional
currency amount is treated as changes in fair value (including
changes of exchange rate) and is recognized in Profit and Loss
or as Other Comprehensive Income.
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15. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

15.1 The Company as lessee under operating
leases

Operating lease payments are recognized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease, and are either
included in the cost of related asset or charged to profit or
loss for the period. Initial direct costs incurred are charged to
profit or loss for the period. Contingent rents are charged to
profit or loss in the period in which they are actually incurred.

V. Basis of determining significant accounting
policies and key assumptions and uncertainties in
accounting estimates

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 1V, the Company is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of items in the financial statements that
cannot be measured accurately, due to the internal uncertainty
of the operating activities. These judgements, estimates
and assumptions are based on historical experience of the
Management as well as other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The aforementioned judgements, estimates and assumptions
are reviewed regularly on a going concern basis. The effect of
a change in accounting estimate is recognized in the period
of the change, if the change affects that period only; or
recognized in the period of the change and future periods, if
the change affects both.

Key assumptions and uncertainties in accounting
estimates

The following are the key assumptions and uncertainties in
accounting estimates at the Balance Sheet date, which have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in future periods.

Deferred tax assets

The Management of the Company considers that it is
uncertain for the Company to obtain enough income tax
payable in the future, so the Company did not recognize RMB
225,217,980.12 of deductible losses as deferred tax assets at
the end of this year according to Note VII. 15.

Impairment of receivables

According to Note IV. 5, the Company will examine the book
value of receivables at each Balance Sheet date to recognize
impairment loss when it is higher than the expected cash
flow which is recognized by applying judgment and estimate.
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Useful life and expected residual value of fixed
assets

According to Note IV. 6, the Company reviews the useful
life and expected residual value of fixed assets at the end
of each year at least. The useful life and expected residual
value of fixed assets are estimated based on historical
experience in actual useful life and residual value of fixed
assets with similar nature and function and may be changed
significantly due to technical renovation. The Company will
change accounting estimate when the expected useful life
and expected net residual value of fixed assets are different
from the previous ones.

V. Taxation
Value-added tax

Value-added tax (‘VAT") on sales is calculated at 6% on revenue
of redering serivices according to the relevant requirements
of tax laws and paid after deducting input VAT on purchases.

The Company is recognized as advanced technology-
based service company, of which overseas revenue
is exempted from VAT.

Income tax

The statutory income tax rate of the Company is 25%. The
applicable income tax rate for the year is a preferential rate
of 15% (in 2016: 15%). Pursuant to Pu Shui Jiu Suo [2011]
071 issued by Shanghai Pudong State Administration of Tax
No. 9 Branch on December 27, 2011, the Company is entitled
a preferential tax treatment for software company. According
to the notice, the Company was exempted from corporate
income tax for 2010 and 2011. Further, the Company is
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 12.5% for 2012-2014 and
a preferential tax rate of 15% for 2015-2018. The Company
has cumulative operating loss as at December 31, 2017.
Therefore, no income tax is provided.

Other taxes

* Urban maintenance and construction tax is levied at 1%
of the paid-in turnover tax.

* Educational surcharge is levied at 3% of the paid-in
turnover tax.

* Local educational tax is levied at 2% of the paid-in
turnover tax.

* River management charges are levied at 1% of the paid-in
turnover tax.
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VIIl. Notes to the financial statements

1. Cash and bank balances

in RMB
Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016
Deposits with banks 96,705,984.42 59,009,387.84
2. Accounts receivable
(1) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:
in RMB
Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016
Amounts due from related parties 17,281,358.02 13,103,983.97
Amounts due from other customers 267,941,594.33 368,416,395.70
Sub-total 285,222 .952.35 381,520,379.67
Less : Provision for bad and doubtful debts (21,561,322.81) (11,037,785.94)
Total 263,661,629.54 370,482,593.73
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(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

in RMB
Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016
Ageing Bad debt Bad debt
Amount Ratio % provision Book value Amount Ratio % provision Book value
Within 1 year 276,668,111.64 97.00 13,006,482.10 263,661,629.54 377,137,242.82 98.85 6,654,649.09 370,482,593.73
1 to 2 years 4,171,703.86 146  4,171,703.86 - 2,591,653.17 0.68 2,591,653.17 0.00
Over 2 years 4,383,136.85 1.54  4,383,136.85 - 1,791,483.68 0.47 1,791,483.68 0.00
Total 285,222,952.35 100.00 21,561,322.81 263,661,629.54 381,520,379.67 100.00 11,037,785.94 370,482,593.73
(3)An analysis of the movements of provisions for bad and doubtful debts for the year is as follows:
in RMB
Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provision during the year

Reversals during the year
Written-off during the year

Recovery of the written-off bad debts during the year

Balance at the end of the year

11,037,785.94
10,975,748.44

452,211.57

12,302,212.30

(1,620,965.73)

356,539.37

21,561,322.81

11,037,785.94

3. Other receivables

The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

in RMB

Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016
Ageing Bad debt Bad debt
Amount Ratio % provision Book value Amount Ratio % provision Book value

Within 1 year 60,940,042.65 88.28 - 60,940,042.65 17,446,147.05 78.68 - 14,446,147.05
1 to 2 years 690,300.00 1.00 - 690,300.00 212,624.60 0.96 - 3,212,624.60
2-3 years 3,000,000.00 4.35 - 3,000,000.00 - - - -
Over 3 years 4,400,943.96 6.38 - 4,400,943.96  4,515,364.71 20.36 - 4,515364.71
Total 69,031,286.61 100.00 - 69,031,286.61 22,174,136.36 100.00 - 22,174,136.36

Note:

Other receivables due within 1 year include RMB 50,000,000.00 loan to Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Limited in 2017. As at the Balance Sheet date, RMB 1,490,958.91
of interest income has been recognized. For more details, please refer to Notes VIIL (3) (b).

Other receivables due over 3 years are lease deposits.



4. Fixed assets

in RMB

Particulars Electronic Office Transportation Total
equipment equipment vehicles

Cost
January 1, 2016 91,498,034.07 56,768,936.78 248,000.00 148,514,970.85
Additions during the year 5,552,428.15 1,067,162.44 - 6,619,590.59
Disposals during the year (269,359.83) (10,569.65) - (279,929.48)
December 31, 2016 96,781,102.39 57,825,529.57 248,000.00 154,854,631.96
Additions during the year 2,697,254.88 1,343,402.51 = 4,040,657.39
Disposals during the year (2,667,220.38) (8,014,577.70) - (10,681,798.08)
Balance at December 31, 2017 96,811,136.89 51,154,354.38 248,000.00 148,213,491.27

Accumulated depreciation
January 1, 2016

Charge for the year
Written-off on disposals

(80,980,647.23)
(4,399,920.52)
264,961.63

(51,957,260.01)
(2,952,020.49)
10,569.65

(124,000.00)
(49,600.00)

(133,061,907.24)
(7,401,541.01)
275,531.28

December 31, 2016

(85,115,606.12)

(54,898,710.85)

(173,600.00)

(140,187,916.97)

Charge for the year
Written-off on disposals

(5,467,053.82)
2,446,389.67

(1,552,896.50)
7,735,116.65

(49,600.00)

(7,069,550.32)
10,181,506.32

Balance at December 31, 2017

(88,136,270.27)

(48,716,490.70)

(223,200.00)

(137,075,960.97)

Carrying amounts
At December 31, 2017

8,674,866.62

2,437,863.68

24,800.00

11,137,530.30

At December 31, 2016

11,665,496.27

2,926,818.72

74,400.00

14,666,714.99

5. Long-term deferred expenses

in RMB
Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016
Leasehold improvement 1,594,807.51 1,578,695.82
6. Short-term loans
in RMB
Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016

Unsecured loans

69,915,940.00

74,225,900.00

Short-term loans include a loan from Infosys Limited for the purposes of business operation. The principal of the loan is
US$10,000,000.00 (equivalent to RMB 65,342,000.00), bearing interest per annum at 6%. The term of loan was 1 year. The
loan was subsequently extended to February 2019.

Another short-term loan is from Infosys Poland Sp. z o0.0. for the purpose of business operation. The principal of the loan is
US$700,000.00 (equivalent to RMB4,573,940.00), bearing interest per annum at 6% will become due in December 2018.

7. Employee benefits payable

in RMB

Items

Opening balance

as at January 1,
2017

Provision for

the year

Payment in

the year

Closing balance

as at December 31,

2017

Wages or salaries, bonus,
allowances, subsidies

Social security contributions
Including: Premiums or
contributions on medical insurance
Unemployment insurance
Maternity and work injury
insurance

Defined contribution plans .
Housing funds

72,513,017.44

525,458,600.20
40,497,108.41

33,839,678.89
2,199,248.92

4,458,180.60
63,810,587.56
31,908,993.91

(558,411,779.14)
(40,497,108.41)

(33,839,678.89)
(2,199,248.92)

(4,458,180.60)
(63,810,587.56)
(31,908,993.91)

39,559,844.50

Total

72,513,017.44

661,675,296.08

(694,628,469.02)

39,559,844.50

) Defined contribution plans
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The Company participates in basic pension insurance plan established by government in accordance with the relevant
requirements. According to the plan, the Company makes a monthly contribution equivalent to the ratio of 20%, 14% and
18%, in Shanghai, Hangzhou and Dalian, respectively, of the employee’s monthly basic wage based on last year’s salary. The
Company no longer undertake further payment obligation. The corresponding cost charges to the profit or loss for the current

period or the cost of a relevant asset when occur.

8. Taxes payable

in RMB

Category As at December 31,
2017 2016
Value-added tax — (1,023,309.41)
Individual income tax 2,085,005.03 5,136,330.14
Total 2,085,005.03 4,113,020.73

9. Paid-in capital

The registered capital of the Company is US$ 58,000,000.00 which has been in place as at December 31, 2017. The contribution

by the investor according to the Articles of Association is as follows:

Particulars December 31,

2017 2016

US$ Ratio  Equivalent to Us$ Ratio

% RMB %
100.00 398,980,400.00 43,000,000.00

Infosys Limited 58,000,000.00

Equivalent to
RMB

100.00 295,636,400.00

10. Capital reserve

13. Impairment losses (reversal)

Capital reserve represents accounts payable that was waived

in RMB

by the Company and Infosys companies. Particulars Year ended December 31,
2017 2016
11.Operating income Bad debt losses 10,075,748.44 (1,620,965.73)
in RMB
14. Non-operating income
Particulars Year ended December 31, P 9 in RMB
2017 2016
Operating Particulars Year ended December 31,
income from 2017 2016
rincipal Government grants
Ectivities (Refer to Note 1) 12,036,611.35 12,743,510.55
Rendering of Others - 2,555,416.90
services 953,645,129.10  1,066,322,836.77 ol 12,036,61135 15,298,927.45
Total 953,645,129.10  1,066,322,836.77 Note 1 Government grants
in RMB
12. Financial expenses Particulars Year ended December 31,
in RMB 2017 2016
Particulars Year ended December 31, Business tax and
2017 5016 surcharge refund = 2,311,000.00
Interest Income tax service
expenses from charges refund 862,700.74 -
loans 3,954,096.01 3,525,896.53 Government grant for
e — training 7,763,754.00 6,148,200.00
mecme o Subsidy on import
deposits (2.535.055.66) (647.810.62) and export contract 2,590,000.00 1,890,000.00
Net exchange S ) Subsidy Qn job
(gains) / losses (893.921.17) 5313.356.06 stabilization 641,656.61 1,644,986.19
Total 525,110.18 8,101,441.07  Others NN 749,324.36
: — Total 12,036,611.35 12,743,510.55
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15. Income tax expense Particulars Year ended December 31,
in RMB 2017 2016
Particulars Year ended December 31, Rental payments (19,078,039.45) (44,225,578.12)
2017 2016 Financial expense (525,119.18) (8,191,441.97)

Income tax expenses for the

current period - -
Deferred income tax

expenses - -
Total - -

No provision for income tax has been made as the Company
had a tax loss for the year.

As described in Note V, the Management is uncertain that
there will be sufficient taxable profit in future periods, so the
deferred tax assets related to the accumulated deductible losses
as at December 31, 2017 amounting to RMB225,217,980.12
is not recognized. Among the accumulated deductible
losses, RMB45,401,665.81, RMB17,397,287.70, RMB
41,463,934.32, RMB 54,149,412.24 and RMB 66,805,680.05
will expire in 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, respectively.
Reconciliation of income tax expenses to the accounting
profit is as follows:

in RMB

2016
(60,309,137.93)

2017
(79,219,725.21)

Particulars
Accounting losses
Income tax benefit
calculated at rate of
15%

Tax effect of non-

(11,882,958.78)  (9,046,370.69)

deductible expenses 215,744.51 157,360.99
Unused deductible

loss 10,020,852.01 6,252,422.13
Temporary differences

for deferred tax assets

not recognized 1,646,362.26 2,636,587.57

Income tax expense = =

16. Supplement to Income Statement

Expenses in the Income Statement are analyzed by their nature :
in RMB

Year ended December 31,
2017 2016
053,645,129.10 1,066,322,836.77

Particulars

Operating income
Less: Employee
benefits expenses
Depreciation

and amortization
expenses

(661,675,296.08) (930,675,739.23)

(8,836,019.19) (8,639,583.33)
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Other expenses

(354,786,991.76) (150,198,559.50)

Operating loss

(91,256,336.56)  (75,608,065.38)

17. Supplement to Cash Flow Statement

(1) Reconciliation of

operating activities

net loss to cash flows from

in RMB

Particulars Year ended December 31,
2017 2016
Net loss (79,219,725.21) (60,309,137.93)

Add: Accrued

/ (reversal)
impairment
provisions against
bad debt
Depreciation of
fixed assets
Amortization of
long-term deferred
expenses

Financial expenses
Losses on disposal
of fixed assets
Decrease (increase)
in operating
receivables
(Decrease) increase
in operating

payables

10,975,748.44 (1,620,965.73)

7,069,550.32 7,401,541.01
1,766,468.87 1,238,042.32
1,569,215.93 3,525,896.53

500,291.76 4,398.20

97,615,549.43 (112,284,967.51)

(46,056,674.87) 33,326,092.57

Net cash outflow
from operating
activities

(5,779,575.33) (128,719,100.54)

(2) Change in cash and cash equivalents

in RMB

Particulars

2017 2016

Cash and cash
equivalents at the end
of the year

Less: Cash and cash
equivalents at the
beginning of the year
Net increase in cash
and cash equivalents

96,705,984.42  59,009,387.84

59,009,387.84 57,655,291.69

37,696,596.58 1,354,096.15
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VIIl.  Related party relationships and transactions

(1) Related parties where a control relationship exists

Name of the Registered address Nature of business Registered capital Ratio  Voting
Company ratio
Infosys Limited India Rendering of information technical

consultation service and management

consultation %11.48 billion 100% 100%

(2) Related parties where a control relationship does not exist

Name

Relationship with the Company

Infosys Limited

Infosys Poland Sp. z o.0.

Infosys Consulting AG

EdgeVerve Systems Limited

Infosys Public Services Inc

Infosys Consulting GmbH

Panaya Ltd

Lodestone Management Consultants (China) Co. Ltd
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Limited

Parent company
Controlled by the same parent company
Controlled by the same parent company
Controlled by the same parent company
Controlled by the same parent company
Controlled by the same parent company
Controlled by the same parent company
Controlled by the same parent company
Controlled by the same parent company

(3) Significant transactions between the Company and the related parties in current year

(a) Sales and purchase

Sales and purchases between the Company and its related parties are as follows:

in RMB

Particulars

Year December 31,

2017

2016

Sales
Infosys Limited
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Limited
Infosys Public Services Inc

Purchases
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Limited
Infosys Limited
Panaya Ltd
EdgeVerve Systems Limited
Infosys Consulting AG
Lodestone Management Consultants (China) Co. Ltd
Infosys Consulting GmbH
Infosys BPM Limited

100,744,974.04
11,290,211.03
1,245,074.16

119,616,238.27
1,855,109.87
1,767,792.13

113,280,259.23

123,239,140.27

210,163,454.14
21,197,984.22
2,228,815.62
2,027,299.08
945,882.27
725,597.26
163,121.05
123,377.31

12,739,625.93
1,661,204.00
963,399.00
550,119.00

270,048.00

237,575,530.95

16,184,395.93

(b) Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings between the Company and related parties are as follows:

in RMB
Particulars Incurred As at December Incurred As at December Annual interest
amount in 2017 31,2017 amount in 2016 31,2016 rate
Borrowings from
Infosys Limited —  65,342,000.00 69,370,000.00 69,370,000.00 6.00%
Infosys Poland Sp. z 0.0. = 4,573,940.00 4,855,900.00 4.855,900.00 6.00%
—  69,915940.00 74,225,900.00 74,225,900.00
Loans to
Infosys Technologies
(Shanghai) Co. Limited 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 - — 6.00%

50,000,000.00  50,000,000.00

Note: The Company lent RMB50,000,000.00 to Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Limited in 2017 in total bearing interest at 6% per annum.
RMB 15,000,000.00 and RMB 35,000,000.00 will be due in May and July 2018 respectively. Both borrowings have been extended by one year

to 2019, subsequently..
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in RMB

Particulars Year ended December 31,
2017 2016
Interest expenses
Infosys Limited 3,747,955 .47 3,525,896.53
Infosys Poland Sp. z 0.0. 206,140.54 -
3,954,096.01 3,525,896.53
Interest income
Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Limited 1,490,958.91 -
(¢) Amounts due to / from related companies
in RMB
Accounts Name of the related parties 2017 2016
Accounts receivable Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Limited 9,860,888.79 2,170,122.40
Infosys Limited 7,366,854.21 10,712,727.12
Infosys Public Services Inc 53,615.02 221,134.45

Accounts payable

Interest payable

Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Limited

Infosys Limited

EdgeVerve Systems Limited

Panaya Ltd

Infosys Consulting AG

Lodestone Management Consultants (China) Co. Ltd
Infosys BPM Limited

Infosys Consulting GmbH

Infosys Limited

17,281,358.02

13,103,983.97

59,090,477.70
22,519,227.93

40,933,442.01

Infosys Poland Sp. z 0.0.

Interest receivable

Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Co. Limited

3,566,513.20 1,661,204.00
2,228,815.62 -
945,882.27 963,398.61
504,048.37 294,503.76
393,425.60 278,358.64
163,121.05 =
89,411,511.74  44,130,907.02
7,234,165.01 3,525,896.53
206,140.54 —
7,440,305.55 3,525,896.53
1,490,958.91 -

IX.Financial instruments and risk
management

The Company’s major financial instruments include accounts
receivable, interest receivable, other receivables, short-term
loans, accounts payable, interest payable and other payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in Note
VII. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

The Company adopts sensitivity analysis technique to analyse
how the profit and loss for the period and owners’ equity
would have been affected by reasonably possible changes in
the relevant risk variables. As it is unlikely that risk variables
will change in an isolated manner, and the interdependence
among risk variables will have significant effect on the amount
ultimately influenced by the changes in a single risk variable,
the following are based on the assumption that the change in
each risk variable is on a stand-alone basis.

1. Risk management objectives and policies

The Company’ risk management objectives are to achieve
proper balance between risks and yield, minimize the
adverse impacts of risks on the Company’s operation
performance, and maximize the benefits of the shareholders
and other equity investors. Based on these risk management
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objectives, the Company’s basic risk management strategy
is to identify and analyse the industry’s exposure to various
risks, establish appropriate bottom line for risk tolerance,
implement risk management, and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that losses will occur because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure
to the foreign currency risk is primarily associated with US$,
INR, HKD and TWD. The Company’s principal activities are
settled in RMB. As at December 31, 2017, the balance of
the Company’ assets and liabilities are both denominated
in RMB except that the assets and liabilities set out below
are denominated in foreign currencies. Foreign currency risk
arising from the assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies may have impact on the Company’s performance.
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in RMB
Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016
Cash and bank
balances 20,150,260.84 19,767,186.77

25,129,034.04 58,771,880.56
(69,915,940.00) (74,225,900.00)
(7,440,305.55)  (3,525,896.53)
(39,458,081.18) (37,845,015.07)
(71,535,031.85) (37,057,744.27)

Accounts receivable
Short-term loans
Interest payable
Accounts payable

Credit risk

As at December 31, 2017, the Company’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Company
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties.

The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each Balance Sheet date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Management considers that the
Company credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit rating.

Currency risk

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may be difficult

to raise enough funds to repay due debts relating to
financial instruments.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Company
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the Management to finance the
Company’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The Management monitors use of loans and
ensures to observe loan agreements.

2. Fair value

The Management of the Company considers the carrying
amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortized cost is close to their fair value.

3. Sensitivity analysis

The Company adopts sensitivity analysis technique to analyse
how the profit and loss for the period, and owners’ equity
would have been affected by reasonably possible changes in
the relevant risk variables. As it is unlikely that risk variables
will change in an isolated manner, and the interdependence
among risk variables will have significant effect on the amount
ultimately influenced by the changes in a single risk variable,
the following are based on the assumption that the change in
each risk variable is on a stand-alone basis.

in RMB

Item Changes in

2017 2016

exchange rate

Effect on profit

Effect on  Effect on profit Effect on

owners’ equity owners’ equity

10% increase
against RMB
10% increase
against RMB

All foreign currencies

All foreign currencies

(7,153,503.19)

7,153,503.19

(7,153,503.19)  (3,705,774.43) (3,705,774.43)

7,153,503.19 3,705,774.43 3,705,774.43

X. Capital management

The Company’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Company defines ‘capital’ as including all components of equity. The balance of related party transactions are not regarded

by the Company as capital.

The Company’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital management practices of
the Infosys Limited Group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions affecting the Company. The results of the Board of Directors’ review of the Company’ capital structure
are used as a basis for the determination of the level of dividends, if any, that are declared.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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XI.Commitments

(1) Capital commitments

in RMB

Particulars As at December 31,
2017 2016
Purchase contracts for fixed assets that have been entered in or are to be performed 726,200.00 4,648,149.84

(2) Operating lease commitments

As of the Balance Sheet date, the Company had the following commitments in respect of non-cancellable operating leases:

in RMB

Particulars

As at December 31,

2017

2016

Within 1 year
1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years
Over 3 years
Total

20,125,368.07
21,490,151.01
15,910,565.30

1,958,366.73

20,102,550.85
20,129,158.45
21,490,151.01
17,868,932.03

59,484,451.11

79,590,792.34
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Infosys BPM Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Infosys McCamish Systems, LLC (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet

as at March 31, 2018, and the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Member’s Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
March 31, 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with US generally
accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with US generally
accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as the Management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company’ ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’ financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified during our audit.

Bengaluru, India
May 9, 2018
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Balance Sheet

in US$
Particulars Note no. As at March 31,
2018 2017
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13,829,151 8,313,231
Accounts receivables, net of doubtful balances 4 22,425,123 9,105,641
Unbilled revenue 10,325,907 9,827,227
Income tax assets 43,711 111,536
Prepayments and other assets 5 17,342,383 7,771,858
Total current assets 63,966,275 35,129,493
Non-current assets
Deferred tax assets 14 518,351 2,991,510
Property, plant and equipment 6 1,421,030 1,687,559
Goodwill 30,594,094 30,594,094
Intangible assets 7 770,372 2,000,928
Prepayments and other assets 5 9,522,104 115,480
Total non-current assets 42,825,951 37,389,571
Total assets 106,792,226 72,519,064
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Loan from related parties 15 5,612,637 -
Trade payables 9 12,413,200 697,100
Unearned revenue 19,373,985 9,746,313
Provisions 10 892,290 780,672
Other liabilities 11 17,652,862 14,891,809
Total current liabilities 55,944 974 26,115,894
Non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities 11 58,744 =
Total non-current liabilities 58,744 -
Total liabilities 56,003,718 26,115,894

MEMBERS’ EQUITY
Members’ equity
Additional paid-in-capital
Accumulated deficit

Total member’s equity

Total liabilities and member’s equity

36,070,038 36,070,038

16,424,108 16,424,108
(1,705,638) (6,090,976)
50,788,508 46,403,170
106,792,226 72,519,064

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Comprehensive Income

in US$
Particulars Note no. Years ended March 31,
2018 2017

Revenue 110,968,301 69,848,292

Cost of revenue 13 93,056,227 55,529,474
Gross profit 17,912,074 14,318,818
Other expenses:

Selling and marketing expenses 13 324,535 1,046,585

Administrative expenses 13 8,905,618 8,996,156

Amortization of intangible assets 7 1,230,556 1,335,556
Total other expenses 10,460,709 11,378,297
Operating profit 7,451,365 2,940,521

Interest expense 112,637 -

Other expenses / (income)

Exchange differences 54,776 30,275
Miscellaneous income (4,159) -

Profit before income taxes 7,288,111 2,910,246

Income tax expense 14 2,902,773 882,286
Net profit 4,385,338 2,027,960
Other comprehensive income = -
Total comprehensive income 4,385,338 2,027,960

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Changes in Members' Equity

in US$
Particulars Member’s Additional Accumulated  Total Members
Equity paid in capital deficit equity
Balance as of April 1, 2016 36,070,038 16,424,108 (8,118,936) 44375210
Changes in members equity for the year ended
March 31, 2017
Net profit for the year - 2,027,960 2,027,960

Balance as of March 31, 2017 36,070,038 16,424,108

(6,090,976) 46,403,170

Changes in members equity for the year ended
March 31, 2018
Net profit for the year - =

4,385,338 4,385,338

Balance as of March 31, 2018 36,070,038 16,424,108

(1,705,638) 50,788,508

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

in US$
Particulars Years ended March 31,
2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit for the year 4,385,338 2,027,960

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash provided by operating activities:

Income tax expense 2,902,773 881,840
Provision for service level risk on revenue contracts 111,617 (225,604)
Allowance for doubtful accounts 226,766 (127,994)
Depreciation 907,037 791,647
Exchange difference 54,776 30,275
Amortization of intangible assets 1,230,556 1,335,556
Interest expense 112,637 -

Cash operating profit 9,931,500 4,713,680
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (13,541,400) (3,162,781)
Prepayments and other assets (18,983,187) (7,271,843)
Unbilled revenues (552,267) (8,577,683)
Trade payables 11,716,100 (266,929)
Unearned revenue 0,627,672 9,128,175
Other liabilities and provisions 2,819,800 9,494,714
Income taxes paid (361,790) (40,022)
Net cash (used in) / provided by operating activities 656,428 4,017,311
Cash flows from investing activities

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment (640,508) (534,053)
Net cash used in investing activities (640,508) (534,053)
Cash flows from financing activities

Loan from related parties 5,500,000 -
Net cash used in financing activities 5,500,000 -
Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 5,515,920 3,483,258
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,313,231 4,829,973
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13,829,151 8,313,231

Supplementary information:
Interest paid during the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements (in United States Dollars, except where

stated otherwise)

1. Company overview and significant
accounting policies

1.1 Company overview

Infosys McCamish Systems, LLC, (the Company) is a platform
based business process outsourcer (BPO) that provides end to
end administrative services to the financial services industry
in support of life insurance and annuity products, non-
qualified retirement plans and the distribution organizations
that sell these products. The Company leverages its suite of
proprietary intellectual property and deep domain expertise
to provide services through a myriad of deployment options
including comprehensive BPO, SaaS (Software as a Service),
license and other hybrid service models. The Company’s
clients, which include many of the largest financial services
companies in the United States of America (‘United States’
/ “USA / ‘US’) and a growing number outside of the United
States, hire the Company to support single products, a single
line of business or the client’s entire product portfolio.

The Company was formed in December 1994 as a limited
liability company under the provisions of the Georgia Limited
Liability Company Act (the Act), limited by members’
interest. The Company was acquired by Infosys BPM Limited
(formerly Infosys BPO Limited), a subsidiary of Infosys
Limited, an SEC registrant, on December 4, 2009. The terms
of formation were specified by the operating agreement of the
Company. The Company will continue until December 31,
2060, unless terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of the
operating agreement. On September 1, 2012, the Company
acquired the revenue contracts and employees of Marsh Inc.’s
BPO division — Seabury & Smith Inc. (Marsh BPO).

In May 2013, the name of the Company was changed
from ‘McCamish Systems LLC’ to ‘Infosys McCamish
Systems LLC following approval of the name change by
the Company’s member.

1.2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared
in conformity with US. Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles to reflect the financial position and results of
operations of the Company. The financial statements have
been presented in United States Dollars.

1.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with
US. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US. GAAP)
which requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities. Significant estimates and assumptions
are used for, but not limited to, accounting for costs and
efforts expected to be incurred to complete performance
under software development arrangements, allowance for
uncollectible accounts receivable, future obligations under
employee benefit plans, the useful lives of property, plant and

116 | Infosys McCamish Systems, LLC

equipment and intangible assets and income tax provisions.
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements
in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their
effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

1.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue from consulting services, which principally relates
to implementation, enhancement, training and support
services associated with the Company’s products, is derived
under both time-and-material and fixed-price agreements.
Revenue on time-and-material contracts is recognized as the
related services are rendered. Revenue related to fixed-price
agreements is recognized on a percentage of completion basis
over the term of the agreement. In measuring progress towards
completion, the input (efforts expended) method has been
used. Provision for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted
contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses
become probable based on the current estimates. Costs and
earnings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenue
while billings in excess of costs and earnings are classified as
unearned revenue. Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably
over the term of the underlying maintenance agreement.

The Company also derives revenues from consultancy
services, software subscription, sale of software license and
maintenance services. Arrangements with customers for the
Company's services are either on a time and material or on a
fixed price, fixed timeframe basis.

License fee revenues are recognized when persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the license
fee is fixed and determinable, and the collection of the fee
is probable. Arrangements to deliver software products
generally have three elements: license, implementation and
Annual Technical Services (ATS). The Company has applied
the principles in ASC 605 to account for revenue from these
multiple element arrangements. Vendor specific objective
evidence (VSOE) of fair value has been established for ATS.
VSOE of fair value is the price charged when the element
is sold separately. When other services are provided in
conjunction with the licensing arrangement, the revenue from
such contracts are allocated to each component of the contract
using the residual method, whereby revenue is deferred
for the undelivered services and the residual amounts are
recognized as revenue for delivered elements. In the absence
of an established VSOE of fair value for implementation,
the entire arrangement fee for license and implementation
is recognized as the implementation is performed. Revenue
from client training, support and other services arising due
to the sale of software products is recognized as the services
are performed. ATS revenue is recognized ratably over the
period in which the services are rendered.

The Company also derives revenues from business process
management services through third-party administration of
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the Company’s products outsourced to its customers and
data center hosting. Business process outsourcing services
are provided as a fixed-price per measure of output contract
or as a fixed-price contract. Revenue is recognized in the
period the services are provided using an objective measure
of output over the term of the contract; the amount of revenue
recognized is based on the services delivered in the period.
Revenue from the data center hosting contracts is recognized
ratably over the term of the contract.

The Company provides its clients with a fixed-period
warranty for corrections of errors and telephone support on
all its fixed-price, fixed-timeframe contracts. Costs associated
with such support services are accrued at the time related
revenues are recorded and included in cost of revenues. The
Company estimates such costs based on historical experience
and estimates are reviewed on a periodic basis for any material
changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence.

Reimbursements for out-of-pocket expenses are included in
revenue in the accompanying Statement of Comprehensive
Income in accordance with ASC 605-45.

When the Company receives advances for services and
products, such amounts are reported as client deposits until
all conditions for revenue recognition are met. The Company
accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to
customers using the guidance in ASC 605-50.

Consistent with the guidance in ASC 605-0-3, the Company
continues to present revenues net of sales and value-added
taxes in its Statement of Comprehensive Income.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation. The Company depreciates property and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Computer equipment
Office furniture and equipment

3-5 years
5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the lesser of the remaining lease term or the estimated
useful life of the asset.

The cost of software purchased for internal use is accounted
under ASC 350-40. Deposits paid towards the acquisition
of these long lived assets outstanding at each Balance Sheet
date and the cost of assets not put to use before such date
are disclosed under “Capital work-in-progress”. Costs of
improvements that substantially extend the useful life of
particular assets are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance cost
are charged to earnings when incurred. The cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the financial
statements upon sale or disposition of the asset.

The Company evaluates the recoverability of these assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Recoverability
of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison
of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted
net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such
assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying
value of the assets exceeds the fair value. Assets to be disposed

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18

are reported at the lower of the carrying value or the fair value
less the cost to sell.

1.6 Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a
remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months
or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks.

1.7 Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount.
The Company’s accounts receivable relate principally to
revenue earned from customers located in the United States.
The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts
to provide coverage for losses from client receivables.
In establishing the required allowance, the Management
considers historical losses adjusted to take into account
current market conditions and customers’ financial condition,
the amount of receivables in dispute, the current receivables
aging and current payment patterns. Account balances
are charged off against the allowance after all means of
collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery
is considered remote.

1.8 Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated
absences which is non-accumulating in nature. Expense on
non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the
period in which the absences occur.

1.9 Research, development and cost of
software package

The Company expense research costs as and when the
same are incurred. Software product development costs
are expensed as incurred unless technical and commercial
feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic
benefits are probable, we have the intention and ability to
complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be
measured reliably. The costs which can be capitalized include
the cost of material, direct labor, overhead costs that are
directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use.
Research and development costs and costs software package
incurred under contractual arrangements with customers are
accounted as cost of revenues.

1.10 Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability
method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities, and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax
assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the
period that includes the enactment date. The measurement
of deferred tax assets is reduced, if necessary, by a valuation
allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or
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all of the assets will not be realized. Changes in valuation
allowance from period to period are reflected in the income
statement of the period of change.

The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 740. ASC
740 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in an entity’s financial statements and prescribes
a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. It
prescribes a comprehensive model for the financial statement
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
income tax uncertainties with respect to positions taken
or expected to be taken in income tax. For the year ended
March 31, 2018, the Board of Directors identified no material
uncertain income tax positions relevant to the jurisdictions
where the Company is required to file income tax returns.

1.11 Fair value of financial instruments and
concentration of credit risk

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments,
the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at
each Balance Sheet date. The methods used to determine
fair value include discounted cash flow analysis and dealer
quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may never actually
be realized. For all financial instruments including cash
and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivables, prepaid
expenses and other current assets, accounts payable and
other current liabilities, the carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments.
The fair value of securities, which do not have an active
market, is not reasonably estimable. Financial instruments
that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of
credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents, and trade
accounts receivable. By nature, all such financial instruments
involve risk, including the credit risk of non-performance by
counterparties. In the Management’s opinion, as of March
31, 2018 and 2017 there was no significant risk of loss
in the event of non-performance of the counterparties to
these financial instruments, other than the amounts already
provided for in the financial statements, if any. Exposure to
credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing
credit limits and monitoring procedures. The factors which
affect the fluctuations in the Company’s provisions for bad
debts and write offs of uncollectible accounts include the
financial health and economic environment of the clients.
The Company specifically identifies the credit loss and then
makes the provision.

For the years ending March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017,
the revenue earned from 2 customers respectively, who
each contributed to more than 10% of revenues, accounted
approximately 32% and 27% respectively of the revenues
earned in those years.
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1.12 Business combinations, goodwill and
intangible assets

The Company accounts for its business combinations by
recognizing the identifiable tangible and intangible assets
and liabilities assumed, and any non-controlling interest
in the acquired business, measured at their acquisition
date fair values. All assets and liabilities of the acquired
businesses, including goodwill, are assigned to reporting
units. Contingent consideration arrangements are fair
valued at the acquisition date and included on that basis in
the purchase price consideration and transaction costs are
expensed as incurred.

All assets and liabilities of an acquired business including
goodwill are assigned to reporting units. The Company does
not amortize goodwill but instead tests goodwill for impairment
at least annually, using a two-step impairment process.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08, Testing
Goodwill for Impairment, which provides an entity the option
to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether
it is more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount prior to performing the
two-step goodwill impairment test. If this is the case, the
two-step goodwill impairment test is required. If it is more-
likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting is greater than
its carrying amount, the two-step goodwill impairment test is
not required. The Company adopted this guidance in 2012.

1f the two-step goodwill impairment test is required, first, the
fair value of the reporting unit is compared with its carrying
amount (including goodwill). If the fair value of the reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount, an indication of goodwill
impairment exists for the reporting unit and the entity must
perform step two of the impairment test (measurement).
Under step two, an impairment loss is recognized for any
excess of the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill
over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair
value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value
of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a purchase price
allocation and the residual fair value after this allocation is the
implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. Fair value
of the reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash
flow analysis. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds
its carrying amount, step two does not need to be performed.

Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The estimated
useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a
number of factors including the effects of obsolescence,
demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the
stability of the industry, and known technological advances),
and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset. Intangible assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by
the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds
the fair value of the assets.
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2. Recent accounting pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Topic 606). The new standard, as amended, sets forth a
single comprehensive model for recognizing and reporting
revenues. The standard also requires additional financial
statement disclosures that will enable users to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and
cash flows relating to customer contracts. The standard allows
for two methods of adoption: the full retrospective adoption,
which requires the standard to be applied to each prior period
presented, or the modified retrospective adoption, which
requires the cumulative effect of adoption to be recognized
as an adjustment to opening retained earnings in the period
of adoption. For non-public entities this standard is effective
for fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The
Company is yet to evaluate the requirements of the standards
and the impact on the financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). The new standard replaces the existing guidance
on leases and requires the lessee to recognize a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability for all leases with lease terms equal
to or greater than twelve months. For finance leases, the lessee
would recognize interest expense and amortization of the
right-of-use asset, and for operating leases, the lessee would
recognize total lease expense on a straight-line basis. This
standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2019. Upon adoption, entities will be required to use a
modified retrospective transition which provides for certain
practical expedients. Entities are required to apply the new
standard at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented. Early adoption of this new standard is permitted.
The Company is yet to evaluate the requirements of the
standards and the impact on the financial statements.

In August 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-12,
Derivatives and Hedging. The update expands and refines
hedge accounting for both financial and nonfinancial
hedging strategies to better align hedge accounting with
companies’ risk management strategies. The update also
amends the presentation and disclosure requirements and
changes how companies assess effectiveness of their hedges.
Adoption methods will differ by type of hedge. The effective
date for adoption is January 1, 2019. The Company does
not have any impact on the financial statements upon
adoption of the update.

In June 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial
Instruments - Credit Losses, which require a financial asset (or
a group of financial assets) measured at amortized cost basis
to be presented at the net amount expected to be collected.
The allowance for credit losses is a valuation account that is
to be deducted from the amortized cost basis of the financial
asset(s) to present the net carrying value at the amount
expected to be collected on the financial asset. For non-public
entities the new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2020, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. The amendment should be applied through
a modified retrospective approach. Early adoption as of the
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 is permitted.
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The adoption of ASU No. 2016-13 is not expected to have a
material effect on the Company’ financial statements.

In August 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Classification
of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments. The amendments
apply to all entities that are required to present a statement
of cash flows under Topic 230. The amendments are an
improvement to GAAP because they provide guidance for
each of the eight issues, thereby reducing the current and
potential future diversity in practice. For non-public entities
the amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018 should be applied using a retrospective
transition method to each period presented. The Company
does not expect the adoption of this ASU to have a material
effect on its financial position or results of operations.

In November 2016, FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement
of Cash Flows - Restricted cash. The amendments apply to all
entities that have restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents
and are required to present a statement of cash flows under
Topic 230. The amendments in this update require that a
statement of cash flows should explain the change during
the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and amounts
generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents. For non-public entities the amendments are
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018.
Early adoption is permitted with an adjustment reflected as
of the beginning of the fiscal year in which the amendment
is adopted. The Company does not expect the adoption of
this ASU to have a material effect on the presentation of its
Statement of Cash Flows.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Simplifying
the Test for Goodwill Impairment (Topic 350), which
eliminates Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. A
goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a
reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, however,
the loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of
goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. For non-public
entities the update is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted for interim
or annual goodwill impairment tests performed after January
1, 2017 and should be applied prospectively. The Company
does not have any impact on the financial statements upon
adoption of the update.

In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-02, Income
Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income and this
update provides an option for entities to reclassify stranded
tax effects caused by the newly-enacted Tax Cuts and Jobs Act,
or Tax Reform Act, from accumulated other comprehensive
income to retained earnings. Upon adoption, entities have the
option to apply the update retrospectively or in the period
of adoption. Early adoption of this update is permitted. The
effective date for adoption is January 1, 2019. The Company
does not have any impact on the financial statements upon
adoption of the update.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, Income
Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred
Taxes. This guidance requires companies to classify deferred
tax assets and liabilities as noncurrent on the Balance Sheet
rather than separately disclosing deferred taxes as current
and noncurrent. This standard is effective for annual periods
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beginning after December 15, 2017 and can be early adopted
and applied either prospectively or retrospectively to all
periods presented upon adoption. The Company has elected
to early adopt the new guidance from the current year on a
retrospective basis.

3. Member's equity

At March 31, 2018, the Company had one member, Infosys
BPM Limited (formerly Infosys BPO Limited) (the “Member”).
The Member owns 100% of the interests of the Company.
Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of the Company,
the Member is entitled to receive 100% of the available net
assets of the Company. No contribution was made during the
year ended March 31, 2018.

4. Accounts receivables, net of doubtful
balances

Accounts receivable, net of doubtful balances, as on March
31, 2018 and 2017 is US$22,425,123 and US$9,105,641
respectively. The Company maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on financial condition of the
customer and ageing of the accounts receivable. Accounts
receivables are not collateralized. During the year ended
March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the Company had
allowance amounting to US$223,494 and US$ 60,726
respectively, towards doubtful accounts receivable.

Receivables includes dues from related parties amounting to
US$78,941 and US$ 16,596 as at March 31, 2018 and March
31, 2017, respectively. (Refer to Note 15).

5. Prepayment and other assets

Prepayment and other assets are as follows:

in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Current
Prepaid expenses 16,274,617 7,673,594
Deposits 40,500 3,000
Other current
assets" 1,027,266 95,264
17,342,383 7,771,858
Non-current
Prepaid expenses 9,435,344 28,720
Deposits 86,760 86,760
9,522,104 115,480
26,864,487 7,887,338

) Includes dues from related parties (Refer to Note 15).
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6. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are as follows:

in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Computer equipment 7,080,787 6,973,807
Office furniture
and equipment
and leasehold
improvements 1,585,990 1,126,457
8,666,777 8,100,264
Accumulated
depreciation (7,245,747) (6,415,249)
1,421,030 1,685,015
Capital work-in-
progress = 2,544
1,421,030 1,687,559

Depreciation expense amounted to US$907,037 and
US$ 791,647 for the year ended March 31, 2018 and March 31,
2017 respectively which has been allocated to cost of revenue.

7. Intangible assets

The identified intangible customer contracts and relationships
are being amortized over a period of nine years whereas
the identified intangible computer software platform was
amortized over a period of four months ended March 31,
2010, based on the Management’s estimate of the useful
life of these assets.

Intangible assets as on March 31, 2018 and March 31,
2017 are as follows:

in US$
Customer Computer
contracts and software
relationships platform
March 31, 2018
Gross carrying value 11,300,000 2,950,000
Less: Accumulated
amortization 10,529,628 2,950,000
Net carrying value 770,372 -
March 31, 2017
Gross carrying value 11,300,000 2,950,000
Less: Accumulated
amortization 9,299,072 2,950,000
Net carrying value 2,000,928 -

The aggregate amortization expense for the year ended March
31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 amounted to US$ 1,230,556
and US$ 1,335,556, respectively.

The estimated amortization expense for intangible assets for
the succeeding annual year is the US$ 770,372.

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18



8. Leases

Minimum rent payments under operating leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Additionally, the Company is obligated under non-cancelable
operating lease for office and residential space that are
renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the lessor
and the lessee. The current lease for office space in Atlanta
expires on June 30, 2018 and for office space in DesMoines
expires on December 22, 2021. Future minimum lease
payments below only include lease payments through that
date. Future minimum lease payments associated with the
lease renewal will be disclosed in these financial statements
as a subsequent event. Total rental expenditure under the
operating leases, cancelable and non-cancelable was US$
879,914 and US$ 858,521 during the year ended March 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases as on March 31, 2018 are:

in US$
Particulars Amount
FY 2018 492,314
FY 2019 280,163
FY 2020 280,163
FY 2021 203,344
FY 2022 and
thereafter -
9. Trade payables
Trade payables as on March 31 are as follows:

in US$
Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017
Dues to related
parties (Refer to Note
15) 11,122,549 436,339
Other trade payables 1,290,651 260,761
12,413,200 697,100

10. Provisions
Provisions as on March 31 are as follows:

in US$
Particulars As at March 31,

2018 2017

Provision for service
level risk on revenue
contracts 892,290 780,672
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11.Other liabilities

Other liabilities as on March 31 are as follows:

in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017

Current

Accrued

compensation to

staff 1,502,579 1,033,321

Withholding taxes

payable - -

Provision for

expenses

(includes amount

for related parties)

(Refer to Note 15) 15,789,775 13,383,108

Rent holiday

accrual 78,376 345,562

Others (includes

dues to related

parties)

(Refer to Note 15) 282,132 129,818

17,652,862 14,891,809

Non-current

Rent holiday

accrual 58,744 —

58,744 —
17,711,606 14,891,809

" Provision for expenses at March 31, 2018 primarily consists of
professional charges and audit fees US$ 589,169, computer and software
costs US$12,757,211, contract labor US$445,183, postage and
other communication costs US$ 965,776, employee health insurance
US$ 536,265 and others US$496,171.

" Provision for expenses at March 31, 2017 primarily consists of
professional charges and audit fees US$ 243,394, computer and
software costs US$ 11,127,410 contract labor US$ 495,535, postage and
other communication costs US$ 797,696 , employee health insurance
US$486,472 and others US$232,601.
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12. Financial instruments

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories is as follows:

in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
amount amount
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 13,829,151 13,829,151 8,313,231 8,313,231
Accounts receivables (refer note 4) 22,425,123 22,425,123 9,105,641 9,105,641
Unbilled revenue 10,325,907 10,325,907 9,827,227 9,827,227
Other financial assets 1,063,830 1,063,830 125,267 125,267
Total 47,644,011 47,644,011 27,371,366 27,371,366
Liabilities:
Loan from related parties 5,612,637 5,612,637 = -
Trade payable (refer note 9) 12,413,200 12,413,200 697,100 697,100
Provision for expenses (refer note 11) 15,789,775 15,789,775 13,383,108 13,383,108
Accrued compensation to staff (refer note 11) 1,470,584 1,470,584 1,033,321 1,033,321
Other financial liabilities (refer note 11) 68,744 68,744 129,818 129,818
Total 35,354,940 35,354,940 15,243,347 15,243,347
13. Operating expenses
Operating expense for the year ended March 31 are as follows:
in US$
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Employee benefit expenses 28,058,346 27,733,308
Cost of technical sub-contractors 24,426,971 8,152,254
Office expenses 1,158,284 333,814
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,137,593 2,127,203
Cost of software packages 38,233,629 21,762,341
Rent (Refer to Note 8) 879,914 858,521
Travel expenses 430,181 396,298
Communication expenses 1,722,615 1,220,422
Professional charges 2,310,211 608,521
Insurance charges 152,727 98,189
Postage and couriers 3,439,018 3,376,337
Other expenses 567,447 240,563
103,516,936 66,907,771
Function wise classification of operating expenses for the year ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
in US$
Particulars Cost of revenues General and Selling and Total
administration marketing
expenses expenses
Years ended March 31, 2018
Employee benefit expense 25,413,671 2,341,923 302,752 28,058,346
Cost of technical subcontractors 24,426,971 - - 24,426,971
Office expenses 107,398 1,050,617 269 1,158,284
Depreciation 907,037 - - 907,037
Cost of software packages 37,572,728 658,901 2,000 38,233,629
Rent 839,400 40,514 - 879,914
Travel expenses 414,894 15,287 - 430,181
Communication expenses 1,148,530 573,846 239 1,722,615
Professional charges 2,028,641 281,570 - 2,310,211
Insurance 121,199 31,528 — 152,727
Postage and courier - 3,439,018 - 3,439,018
Other expenses 75,758 458,469 33,220 567,447
93,056,227 8,891,673 338,480 102,286,380
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Particulars Cost of revenues General and Selling and Total
administration marketing
expenses expenses

Year ended March 31, 2017
Employee benefit expense 24,230,634 2,624,050 878,624 27,733,308
Cost of technical subcontractors 8,152,254 - - 8,152,254
Office expenses 9,602 324,129 83 333,814
Depreciation 791,647 - - 791,647
Cost of software packages 20,758,717 973,624 30,000 21,762,341
Rent 837,898 20,623 - 858,521
Travel expenses 270,180 27,685 08,433 396,298
Communication expenses 67,000 1,147,439 5,983 1,220,422
Professional charges 298,043 310,478 = 608,521
Insurance 72,700 25,489 - 08,189
Postage and courier - 3,376,337 - 3,376,337
Other expenses 40,799 166,302 33,462 240,563

55,529,474 8,996,156 1,046,585 65,572,215
14. Income taxes
The income tax expense during the year ended March 31 are as follows:

inUS$

Particulars 2018 2017
Current taxes 429,614 45,966
Deferred taxes 2,473,159 836,320
Income tax expense 2,902,773 882,286

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income

before income taxes is summarized below:

inUS $
Particulars 2018 2017
Profit before incomes taxes 7,288,111 2,910,246
Statutory Tax Rate 32% 34%
Computed expected tax expense 2,299,399 989,484
State Taxes 210,351 16,320
Withholding Taxes 58,596 15,413
Disallowed Items 11,435 9,939
Deferred tax — change in tax rates 352,049 -
Effect of true up of previous year taxes 21,968 (7,064)
Other Adjustments (51,025) (141,806)
Income tax expense 2,902,773 882,286

The types of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liability as of

March 31 are set forth below:

inUS $
Particulars 2018 2017
Deferred tax assets:
Carry forward business losses 3,746,078 7,940,097
Accruals 214,149 283,761
Accrued Compensation 230,673 216,414
Deferred rent 32,909 125,606
Depreciation and amortization 1,154,404 1,743,565
Others 273,863 58,519
5,652,076 10,367,962
Deferred tax liability:
Goodwill (2,829,725) (3,771,379)
Prepaid expenses - (115,634)
Accruals including contingent consideration reversal (2,304,000) (3,489,439)
Total deferred tax liability (5,133,725) (7,376,452)
Less: Valuation allowance - -
Deferred tax asset / (liability), net 518,351 2,991,510
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The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the Management’s assessment of the Company’s ability to
generate taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Management’s assessment
in the near term is subject to change if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced. At March
31, 2018, the Company has federal net operating loss carry forwards for income tax purpose of US$ 15,608,660 expiring in
years 2030 through 2035.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, the Management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred tax
liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of
historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, the Management believes that it is more likely than not the Company will realize the benefit of any deductible
differences at March 31, 2018.

15. Related party transactions

(@) The Company has identified the following to be related parties:

Key Management personnel

Mr. Anup Uppadhayay, Chairman and Director

Mr. Anantharaman Radhakrishnan @

Mr. Deepak Bhalla, Director

Mr. Nishit Ajit Shah, Director

Mr. Ravikumar S., Director

Mr. Kapil Jain, Director

Mr. Gordon Beckham, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Mr. Rishi Kumar Jain, Chief Operating Officer and Director ©
Mr. Richard Magner, Chief Executive Officer and Director ©

Mr. Thothathri V, Director ©

W resigned wee.f. July 19, 2016.

@ appointed w.e.f. July 19, 2016 and ceased to be director w.e.f. July 11, 2017,
® resigned w.e.f. October 8, 2016.

@ resigned w.e.f. April 17, 2017.

© appointed as Chief Executive Officer we.f. April 18, 2017 (formerly acted in position of Sales Head).
© appointed w.e.f. July 11, 2017.

Enterprise in which Key Management personnel has significant influence
Magner Networks LLC

Other companies within the Group with which the Company has transactions during the year
Infosys Limited , Ultimate holding company (IL)

Infosys BPM Limited, the holding company (IBPM) (formerly Infosys BPO Limited)

Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA (IPS)

(b) The following is a summary of significant transaction with related parties:
inUS$
Particulars Year ended March 31, 2018
Key Management ~ Other companies
personnel  within the Group

Revenue transactions:

Purchase of services from IL — 17,488,276
Purchase of services from IBPM - 4,449,067
Purchase of shared services from IL - 67,564
Sale of services to IL - 496,582
Sale of services to IBPM = 222,303
Sale of shared services to IBPM - 33
Interest expense on loan from IPS = 112,637
Remuneration to key managerial personnel 510,684 -
Capital transactions (Financing) :

Loan taken from IPS - 5,500,000
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in US $

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2017
Key Management  Other companies
personnel  within the Group

Revenue transactions:

Purchase of services from IL = 191,258
Purchase of services from IBPM - 5,593,981
Purchase of services from Magner Network, LLC 100,340 -
Purchase of shared services from IL - 42,137
Purchase of shared services from IBPM - 88,886
Sale of services to IL - 38,685
Sale of services to IBPM - 172,279
Sale of shared services to IBPM - 541
Remuneration to key managerial personnel 1,030,888 -

(c) The details of amounts due to or due from related parties as at March 31, 2018 and March 31,
2017 are as follows:

inUS $
Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017
Loan Taken
Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA 5,612,637 -
5,612,637 -
Trade payables
Infosys Limited 10,790,940 77,775
Infosys BPM Limited ( formerly Infosys BPO Limited) 331,609 358,564
11,122,549 436,339
Account receivables
Infosys Limited 59,717 -
Infosys BPM Limited ( formerly Infosys BPO Limited) 19,224 16,596
78,941 16,596
Other receivables
Infosys Limited 3,071 -
Infosys BPM Limited ( formerly Infosys BPO Limited) 385 -
Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA 896,854 -
900,310 —
Other payables
Infosys Limited 33,689 43,648
33,689 43,648
Provision for expense
Magner Network, LLC = 13,210
= 13,210

On May 16, 2017, Company entered into a loan agreement with Infosys Public Services, Inc. USA to finance the Company’s
operations, for the amount of US$ 5,500,000. The loan was processed on June 6, 2017 and is subject to a market rate of interest
set at 2.50% p.a. for the period from loan inception date to repayment.The maturity date for principal amount is set at twelve
months from the effective date of the loan agreement, unless extended by written consent of both the parties. The interest is
payable at repayment of loan or anniversary date each year, whichever is earlier.

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18 Infosys McCamish Systems, LLC | 125



16. Commitments and contingencies

The Company has not executed any bank guarantees as on March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital contracts and not provided for as at March 31, 2018
and March 31, 2017 amounts to US$ 286,924 and US$ 544,413, respectively.

Contingencies and lawsuits

The Company is currently not involved in any significant lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings, including patent
and commercial matters, which arises in the ordinary course of business. There are no such pending matters that are expected
to have material effect on these financial statements.

17.Subsequent events

The Company has evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after March 31,2018 up through May 9, 2018, the date
the financial statements were issued. Based on this evaluation, the Company is not aware of any other events or transactions
that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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Director’s responsibilities statement for the year ended December 31, 2017

The director is responsible for preparing the strategic report, the director’s report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the director has elected
to prepare the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (‘FRS102’). Under company law the director must not approve the
financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the director is required to:
* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
* make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable him to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. He is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Infy Consulting Company
Limited for the year ended December 31, 2017

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Infy Consulting Company Limited (the ‘Company’) for the year ended December
31, 2017, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2017, the profit and loss account, the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

In our opinion the financial statements:
¢ give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2017 and of its profit for the year then ended;
* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where :
o the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

¢ the director has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the Company’ ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue.

Other information

The director is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

¢ the information given in the strategic report and the director’s report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

¢ the strategic report and the director’s report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we

have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the director’s report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

report to you if, in our opinion:

 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

* certain disclosures of director’s remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the director’s responsibilities statement on page 129, the director is responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the director
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the director is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
director either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at : www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Christopher Shepherd (senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Blick Rothenberg Audit LLP
Statutory Auditor

16 Great Queen Street
Covent Garden
London

WC2B 5AH

February 9, 2018
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Profit and Loss account for the year ended December 31, 2017

in £

Note no. 2017 2016

Turnover 3 47,768,483 65,836,543
Cost of sales (42,806,428) (61,678,552)
Gross profit 4,962,055 4,157,991
Administrative expenses (3,042,395) (3,006,148)
Other operating income 124,470 10,100
Operating profit 4 2,044,130 1,161,943
Interest receivable and similar income 7 206,913 137,899
Interest payable and similar expenses 8 (390) (2,530)
Profit before tax 2,250,653 1,297,312
Tax on profit 9 (493,535) (431,508)
Profit for the financial year 1,757,118 865,804

There are no items of other comprehensive income for either the year or the prior year other than the profit for the year.
Accordingly, no statement of other comprehensive income has been presented.
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Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2017

in £
Note no. 2017 2016
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 11 56,187 129,761
Current assets
Debtors: Amounts falling due within one year 12 11,752,783 22,411,652
Cash at bank and in hand 3,822,169 651,722
15,574,952 23,063,374
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 13 (13,150,944) (18,270,058)
Net current assets 2,424,008 4,793,316
Net assets 2,480,195 4923077
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 15 50,000 50,000
Profit and loss account 16 2,430,195 4,873,077
Total equity 2,480,195 4923077

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the sole director.

S P Kingston
Director

Date : February 9, 2018
The notes form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity as at December 31, 2017

inf
Called up Profit and loss  Total equity
share capital account
As at January 1, 2016 50,000 4,007,273 4,057,273
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial year - 865,804 865,804
As at December 31, 2016 and January 1, 2017 50,000 4.873,077 4,923,077
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the financial year - 1,757,118 1,757,118
Dividends: Equity capital -  (4,200,000)  (4,200,000)
Total transactions with owners —  (4,200,000) (4,200,000)
As at December 31, 2017 50,000 2,430,195 2,480,195
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017

1. General information

Infy Consulting Company Limited provides the Management
consultancy services.

The Company is a private company limited by shares and is
incorporated in England. The address of its registered office
and principal place of business is 14th Floor, 10 Upper Bank
Street, Canary Wharf, London, E14 5NP.

The financial statements are presented in UK Pound Sterling (£).

2. Accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention unless otherwise specified within
these accounting policies and in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 102, the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland (‘FRS102")
and the Companies Act 2006.

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure
exemptions in preparing these financial statements, as
permitted by FRS 102:

¢ Section 3 Financial Statement Presentation paragraph
3.17(d) (inclusion of Statement of Cash Flows);

» Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows (inclusion of Statement
of Cash Flows);

¢ Section 11 Financial Instruments paragraph 11.39 to
11.48A (disclosure relating to financial instruments);

¢ Section 26 Share based payments (disclosure of share
based payments);

* Section 33 Related Party Disclosures paragraph 33.7
(disclosures of key management personnel compensation).

The Company’s financials will be included in the consolidated
financial statements of Infosys Limited for the year ended 31
March 2018 and these financial statements may be obtained
from www.infosys.com.

The following principal accounting policies have been applied :

2.2 Going concern

After making enquiries, the director has a reasonable
expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence and meet its liabilities as
they fall due for the foreseeable future, being a period of at
least twelve months from the date these financial statements
were approved. Accordingly, he continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

2.3 Revenue

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured as
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
excluding discounts, rebates, value added tax and other
sales taxes. The following criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognized:
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Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized in
the period in which the services are provided in accordance
with the terms of the contract. At each year end revenue
from unbilled services provided are included within accrued
income and any amounts invoiced in advance are deferred to
the accounting period when those services will be provided.

The stage of completion is determined on the basis of the
actual completion of a proportion of the total services to
be rendered. An expected loss on a contract is recognized
immediately in the profit and loss account.

2.4 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Management.

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less
their residual value over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

Depreciation is provided on the following basis:

Leasehold improvements 33%  straight-line
Fixtures and fittings 33%  straight-line
Computer equipment 33%  straight-line

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation
methods are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if
appropriate, or if there is an indication of a significant change
since the last reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in
the profit and loss account.

2.5 Financial instruments

The Company has elected to apply Sections 11 and 12 of FRS
102 in respect of financial instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
when the Company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities.

The Company’s policies for its major classes of financial assets
and financial liabilities are set out below.

Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including trade and other debtors,
cash and bank balances, intercompany working capital
balances, and intercompany financing are initially recognized
at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction, where the transaction is measured
at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a
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normal business terms or is financed at a rate of interest that
is not a market rate.

Such assets are subsequently carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other creditors,
and loans from fellow group companies, are initially recognized
at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured
at the present value of the future payments discounted at a
market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument. Financing
transactions are those in which payment is deferred beyond
normal business terms or is financed at a rate of interest that
is not a market rate.

Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortized cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets measured at cost and amortized cost
are assessed at the end of each reporting period for
objective evidence of impairment. If objective evidence of
impairment is found, an impairment loss is recognized in the
profit and loss account.

For financial assets measured at cost less impairment, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount
the Company would receive for the asset if it were to be sold
at the reporting date.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. If the financial asset has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from
an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that
the current carrying amount does not exceed what the
carrying amount would have been had the impairment not
previously been recognized. The impairment reversal is
recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities

Financial assets are derecognized when (a) the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled, or
(b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the asset are transferred to another party or (c) despite having
retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership,
control of the asset has been transferred to another party
who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset
to an unrelated third party without imposing additional
restrictions.Financial liabilities are derecognized when
the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the Balance Sheet when there is an enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial
institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more
than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature in no more than three months from the date of
acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

2.7 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.8 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s functional and presentational currency is
UK Pound Sterling (£).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the spot exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are
translated using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction and non-monetary items
measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of transactions and from the translation at
period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
profit and loss account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the profit and
loss account within ‘interest receivable and similar income
or interest payable and similar expenses’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the profit and loss
account within ‘administrative expenses’.

2.9 Finance costs

Finance costs are charged to the profit and loss account over
the term of the debt using the effective interest method so
that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying
amount. Issue costs are initially recognized as a reduction in
the proceeds of the associated capital instrument.

2.10 Dividends

Equity dividends are recognized when they become legally
payable. Interim equity dividends are recognized when paid.
Final equity dividends are recognized when approved by
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the shareholders at an annual general meeting. Dividends
on shares recognized as liabilities are recognized as expenses
and classified within interest payable.

2.11 Share based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair value
of the options at the date of grant is charged to the profit
and loss account over the vesting period. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number
of equity instruments expected to vest at each Balance Sheet
date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognized
over the vesting period is based on the number of options that
eventually vest. Market vesting conditions are factored into the
fair value of the options granted. The cumulative expense is
not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

The fair value of the award also takes into account non vesting
conditions. These are either factors beyond the control of
either party (such as a target based on an index) or factors
which are within the control of one or other of the parties (such
as the Company keeping the scheme open or the employee
maintaining any contributions required by the scheme).

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before
they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options, measured
immediately before and after the modification, is also charged
to profit and loss account over the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than
employees, the profit and loss account is charged with fair
value of goods and services received.

2.12 Pensions

Defined contribution pension plan

The Company operates a defined contribution plan for its
employees. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. Once the contributions have been paid the
Company has no further payment obligations.

The contributions are recognized as an expense in the profit
and loss account when they fall due. Amounts not paid are
shown in accruals as a liability in the Balance Sheet. The
assets of the plan are held separately from the Company in
independently administered funds.

2.13 Holiday pay accrual

A liability is recognized to the extent of any unused holiday
pay entitlement which is accrued at the Balance Sheet date
and carried forward to future periods. This is measured at the
undiscounted salary cost of the future holiday entitlement so
accrued at the Balance Sheet date.

2.14 Interest income
Interest income is recognized in the profit and loss account
using the effective interest method.

2.15 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognized in the profit and loss account, except
that a charge attributable to an item of income and expense
recognized as other comprehensive income or to an item
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recognized directly in equity is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of
taxable profit for the year or prior years.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date in the countries where the
Company operates and generates income.

Deferred tax arises from timing differences that are differences
between taxable profits and total comprehensive income as
stated in the financial statements. These timing differences
arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they
are recognized in the financial statements.

Deferred tax balances are recognized in respect of all timing
differences that have originated but not reversed by the
Balance Sheet date, except that:

* The recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to the
extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against
the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future
taxable profits; and

* Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and
when all conditions for retaining associated tax
allowances have been met.

Deferred tax balances are not recognized in respect of
permanent differences except in respect of business
combinations, when deferred tax is recognized on the
differences between the fair values of assets acquired and the
future tax deductions available for them and the differences
between the fair values of liabilities acquired and the amount
that will be assessed for tax. Deferred tax is determined using
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the Balance Sheet date.

3. Turnover

The whole of the turnover is attributable to the
provision of services.

Analysis of turnover by country of destination:

inf
Particulars 2017 2016
United Kingdom 540,430 188,671
Rest of Europe 2,005,967 3,921,176
Rest of the world 45,222,086 61,726,696

47,768,483 65,836,543

4. Operating profit
The operating profit is stated after charging :

inf
Particulars 2017 2016
Depreciation of tangible
fixed assets 70,681 110,383
Fees payable to the
Company’s auditor and its
associates for the audit of the
Company’s annual financial
statements 16,250 15,000
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Particulars 2017 2016 Particulars 2017 2016
Fees payable to the Total deferred tax (45,067) -
Company’s auditor and its Taxation on profit on

associates for other services ordinary activities 493,535 431,508
to the Company 7,430 20,508

Exchange differences 214,687 360 Factors affecting tax charge for the year

5. Employees

Staff costs, including director’s remuneration, were as follows:

in£
Particulars 2017 2016
Wages and salaries 24,643,522 28,597,597
Social security costs 3,252,159 3,733,542
Cost of defined contribution
scheme 1,043,270 1,154,633
28,938,951 33,485,772

The average monthly number of employees, including the
director, during the year was as follows:

Particulars 2017 2016
Consultants 235 277
Management 13 8
248 285

6. Director’'s remuneration

in £

Particulars 2017 2016
Director’s emoluments 352,182 691,284

The highest paid director received remuneration of
£352,182 (2016 £373,597).

7 Interest receivable

in£
Particulars 2017 2016
Interest receivable from
group companies 206913 135,654
Other interest receivable - 2,245

206,913 137,899

8. Interest payable and similar charges

in £

2017 2016

Bank interest payable 390 2,530
9. Taxation

in£
Particulars 2017 2016
Corporation tax
Current tax on profits for the
year 602,706 431,849
Adjustments in respect of
previous periods (64,104) (341)
Total current tax 538,602 431,508
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of
timing differences (45,067) -
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The tax assessed for the year is higher than (2016 higher than)
the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19.25%
(2016 20%). The differences are explained below :

in £
Particulars 2017 2016
Profit on ordinary activities
before tax 2,250,653 1,297,312
Profit on ordinary activities
multiplied by standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK
of 19.25% (2016 20%) 433,251 259,462
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 21,756 37,249
Capital allowances for year in
excess of depreciation 3,993 9,730
Adjustments to tax charge in
respect of prior periods (64,104) (341)
Other timing differences
leading to an increase in
taxation 98,639 125,408
Total tax charge for the year 493,535 431,508

Factors that may affect future tax charges

A reduction to the UK corporation tax rate to 17%, effective
from 1 April 2020, was substantively enacted as part of the
Finance (No. 2) Act 2016 on 6 September 2016. Deferred
taxes at the Balance Sheet date have been measured using
the enacted tax rates based on when the timing difference is
expected to reverse and reflected in these financial statements.

10. Dividends

in £
Particulars 2017 2016
Dividends declared and paid 4,200,000 -
11.Tangible fixed assets
in £
Particulars Computer
equipment
Cost
As at January 1, 2017 447,081
Additions 1,068
Disposals (47,242)
As at December 31, 2017 400,907
Depreciation
As at January 1, 2017 317,320
Charge for the year 70,681
Disposals (43,281)
As at December 31, 2017 344,720
Net book value
As at December 31, 2017 56,187
As at December 31, 2016 129,761
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12. Debtors
in£
Particulars 2017 2016
Trade debtors = 2,356,935
Amounts owed by group
undertakings 11,001,327 19,101,985
Other debtors 112,767 6,256
Prepayments and accrued
income 193,404 327,457
Tax recoverable 400,218 619,019
Deferred taxation 45,067 -
11,752,783 22,411,652
13. Creditors :Amounts falling due within
oneyear
in£
Particulars 2017 2016
Trade creditors 316,514 459,910
Amounts owed to group
undertakings 7,184,587 10,609,179
Corporation tax 744,716 559,049
Taxation and social insurance 124,164 1,751,124
Other creditors 151,385 138,661
Accruals and deferred
income 4,629,578 4,752,135
13,150,944 18,270,058
14. Deferred taxation
in£
Particulars 2017
At beginning of year -
Charged to profit or loss 45,067
At end of year 45,067
The deferred tax asset is made up as follows:
in £
Particulars 2017
Accelerated capital allowances 32,979
Other timing differences 12,088
45,067
15. Share capital
in £
Particulars 2017 2016
Shares classified as equity
Allotted, called up and fully
paid
50,000 Ordinary shares of
£1 each 50,000 50,000
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16. Reserves

Profit and loss account
The profit and loss account includes all current and prior

period retained profits and losses.

17. Share based payments

Equity settled share based payments

Employees of the Company participate in the share option

plan established by the ultimate parent undertaking, Infosys

Limited. The ultimate parent undertaking’s current share

option plans include the 2015 Stock Incentive Compensation

Plan, (“the 2015 plan”).

The maximum number of shares to be issued in the ultimate

parent undertaking under the 2015 Plan shall not exceed

24,038,883 equity shares. 17,038,883 equity shares will be

issued as restricted stock units at par value and 7,000,000

equity shares will be issued as stock options at market price.

These instruments will vest over a period of four years and

the group expects to grant the options under the 2015 Plan

over the period of four to seven years.

The vesting conditions are:

* The vesting period is four years and shares vest in equal
amounts at the end of each year.

 In case of an employee leaving due to death or disability
any unvested shares will vest in full at the time of the
employee leaving.

* In case of employees leaving for any other reason
(resignation, termination etc.), any unvested shares will
lapse.

 In case of an employee transferring to another company
within the Infosys group there will be no effect on his/her
vesting schedule.

¢ In case an employee being on long term leave in excess of
one year, the vesting period shall also be extended for the
duration of leave exceeding one year.

18. Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption
contained in FRS 102 Section 33 “Related Party Disclosures”
from disclosing transactions with entities which are a wholly
owned part of the group.

19. Parent undertaking and controlling party

The immediate parent undertaking is Infosys Consulting
Holding AG, a company incorporated in Switzerland.
Group financial statements are prepared but are not
available to the public.

The ultimate parent undertaking is Infosys Limited, a
company incorporated in India. Group financial statements
are available from www.infosys.com.

The immediate controlling party is Infosys Consulting
Holding AG, a company incorporated in Switzerland.

In the opinion of the
ultimate controlling party.

director there is no
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Detailed profit and loss account for the year ended December 31, 2017

in £
Particulars 2017 2016
Turnover 47,768,483 65,836,543

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income
Less: overheads
Administration expenses
Operating profit
Interest receivable

(42,806,428) (61,678,552)
4,962,055 4,157,991
124,470 10,100

(3,042,395) (3,006,148)
2,044,130 1,161,943
206,913 137,899

Interest payable (390) (2,530)

Profit for the financial year 2,250,653 1,297,312
in£

Particulars 2017 2016

Cost of sales
Wages and salaries
National insurance
Staff pension contributions
Directors’ remuneration
Subcontractors and temporary staff
Consultancy costs
Travel and subsistence
Provision for post sales customer support

24,291,340 27,906,313
3,252,159 3,733,542
1,043,270 1,154,633

352,182 691,284
8,626,546 15,647,426
1,568,586 7,921,049
3,670,699 4,642,338

1,646 (18,033)
42,806,428 61,678,552

inf£
Particulars 2017 2016
Other operating income
Other operating income 124,470 10,100
in£
Particulars 2017 2016

Administration expenses

Staff training

Staff welfare

Entertainment

Printing and stationery
Telephone

Computer costs

Advertising

Subscriptions

Donations

Legal and professional
Auditors’ remuneration

Bank charges

Bad debts

Difference on foreign exchange
Sundry expenses

Rent, service charge and utilities
Insurance

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation

Loss on disposal of tangible assets
Management fees

99,846 130,317
319,507 232,718
148,038 301,797

31,433 48,106
319,491 425,309
9,101 15,701
36,189 5,182
5,093 5,333
2,500 -
768,283 746,429
32,232 913
3,963 5,431
2,714 (11,553)
214,687 860

120,417 132,949
149,860 138,237

91,912 71,075
171,429 114,531
70,681 110,383
3,961 -

441,058 532,430
3,042,395 3,006,148

140 | Infy Consulting Company Limited.

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18



in £
Particulars 2017 2016
Interest receivable

Other interest receivable - 2,245
Group interest receivable 206,913 135,654
206,913 137,899
in £
Particulars 2017 2016
Interest payable
Bank interest payable 390 2,530
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INFOSYS CONSULTING GmbH



Independent Auditors’ Report

We have audited the annual financial statements — comprising the Balance Sheet, the Income Statement and the notes to the
financial statements — together with the bookkeeping system and the management report of Infosys Consulting GmbH, Garching
near Munich/Germany, for the financial year from 1 January to December 31, 2017. The maintenance of the books and records
and the preparation of the annual financial statements and management report in accordance with German commercial law are
the responsibility of the Company’s Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the annual financial statements,
together with the bookkeeping system, and the management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements in accordance with Section 317 German Commercial Code (HGB)
and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institute of Public Auditors
in Germany (IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements materially affecting
the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in the annual financial statements in accordance
with applicable accounting regulations and in the management report are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the
business activities and the economic and legal environment of the Company and expectations as to possible misstatements are
taken into account in the determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system
and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the books and records, the annual financial statements and the management
report are examined primarily on a sample basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual
financial statements and management report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the annual financial statements of Infosys Consulting GmbH, Garching near
Munich/Germany, comply with the legal requirements and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and
results of operations of the Company in accordance with German principles of proper accounting. The management report is
consistent with the annual financial statements, complies with the legal requirements and as a whole provides a suitable view
of the Company’s position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future development.

Munich/Germany, 21 March 2018
Deloitte GmbH

Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft

signed Klinger signed Farrenkopf
Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftsprufer
[German Public Auditor] [German Public Auditor]
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Balance Sheet

Assets As at December 31, 2017 2016
EUR EUR EUR kEUR

A, Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment

Other assets, operating and office equipment 256,508.89 231
B. Current assets
1. Inventories

Work-in-progress 57,854.65 164
II. Receivables and other assets
1. Trade receivables 17,937,107.42 14,552
2. Receivables from affiliated companies 1,894,735.51 2,306
3.  Other assets 1,754,718.74 2,518
21,586,561.67 19,376
III. Cash-in-hand and bank balances 4.903,266.94 6,577
26,547,683.26 26,117
C. Prepaid expenses 6,689.98 15
D. Deficit not covered by equity 975,229.76 0
27,786,111.89 26,363
Equity and Liabilities As at December 31, 2017 2016
EUR EUR kEUR
A. Equity
I.  Issued capital 86,000.00 86
II.  Loss for the year (prior year: profit for the year) (1,061,229.76) 153
(975,229.76) 239
Deficit not covered by equity
(Shown under Assets D) 975,229.76 0
0.00 239
B. Provisions
1. Tax provisions 4 491,309.45 1,654
2. Other provisions 11,564,199.29 0,824
16,055,508.74 11,478
C. Liabilities
1. Prepayments received on orders 309,870.00 300
2. Trade payables 2,412,775.58 3,131
3. Liabilities to affiliated companies 6,140,354.38 8,622
4. Other liabilities 2,867,603.19 2,593

thereof from taxes
EUR 2,694,642.82 (prior year: KEUR 2,502)

11,730,603.15 14,646
27,786,111.89 26,363
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Income Statement

Particulars Years ended December 31,2017 2016
EUR EUR KEUR
1. Revenue 90,311,928.34 75,369
2. Decrease in work-in-progress (105,865.05) (375)
3. Other operating income 702,469.92 783
4. Cost of materials

Cost of purchased services (47,477,916.40) (31,440)

5. Employee benefit expenses
a)  Wages and salaries (24,913,253.35) (30,794)
b) Social security, post-employment and other social benefit costs (4,536,213.92) (5,125)
(29,449,467.27) (35,919)
6. Depreciation and write-downs of property, plant and equipment (93,038.19) 93)
7. Other operating expenses (15,210,484.61) (14,552)
8. Other interest and similar income 1,031.80 3
9. Interest and similar expenses (51,505.77) (20)
10. Income taxes 158,250.00 0
11. Earnings after taxes (1,214,597.23) (6,244)
12. Other taxes 0.00 0
13. Loss for the year (1,214,597.23) (6,244)
14. Retained earnings carried forward 153,367.47 6,397
15. Loss for the year (prior year: profit for the year) (1,061,229.76) 153
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Notes to the financial statements

|. General information

The Balance Sheet and the Income Statement have been
prepared in accordance with the regulations of the German
Commercial Code (HGB).

As at the Balance Sheet date, the entity is a large firm organized
in a corporate form within the meaning of Section 267 (3)
German Commercial Code (HGB).

With regard to the disclosure of emoluments paid to the
Management, the entity makes use of the safeguard clause of
Section 286 (4) German Commercial Code (HGB).

The Income Statement was prepared according to the nature
of expense method in accordance with Section 275(2)
German Commercial Code (HGB).

As at December 31, 2017, the entity’s Balance Sheet shows
overindebtedness amounting to KEUR 975 as well as a deficit
not covered by equity in the same amount. However, the
shareholder has issued a letter of comfort in favour of Infosys
Consulting GmbH. Further, the shareholder has issued a
letter of subordination for the loan granted in relation to the
loan’s balance as at December 31, 2016.

Il. Accounting and valuation principles

The financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2017 were prepared in accordance with the accounting
and valuation principles of the Third Book of the German
Commercial Code (HGB) as well as under consideration
of the provisions of the German Limited Liability
Companies Act (GmbHG).

The following accounting and valuation principles were applied :

Property, plant and equipment (including low-value
items) is valued at historic acquisition or production
cost less depreciation.

As of 1 January 2010, the option to fully depreciate low-value
items with acquisition or production costs of up to EUR 410
was exercised for additions to low-value items.

Depreciation is conducted according to the estimated
useful life of the assets that ranges between three to 15
years on a straight-line basis. Write-downs are made to
the required extent.

Work-in-progress was recognized at production cost in
accordance with Section 255 (2) German Commercial Code
(HGB). Interest on borrowed capital is not capitalized. Work-
in-progress is depreciated to the lower fair value.

Receivables and other assets are stated at nominal value less
any necessary value adjustments. Identifiable default risks
are taken into account by making appropriate allowances on
individual receivables. A general allowance has been made in
order to cover the general credit risk.

Cash-in-hand and bank balances are capitalized at nominal value.

Prepaid expenses have been formed in accordance with
the provisions of German commercial law and valued
at the nominal value.

The issued capital (share capital) is stated at nominal value.
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Provisions adequately consider all identified risks and
contingent liabilities. Provisions are recognized at settlement
amounts determined according to sound business
judgment. Provisions with a term of up to one year have
not been discounted.

Prepayments received on orders refer to pre-payments by
customers for services that cannot yet be invoiced and are
measured at nominal value of the payment received.

Liabilities are carried at settlement amount.

Assets and liabilities dominated in foreign currencies are
translated into EUR at the exchange rate in effect at the time
of transaction in accordance with Section 256a German
Commercial Code (HGB). Profit and losses from exchange rate
changes as at the Balance Sheet date are taken into account if
the residual term does not exceed one year. If residual terms
exceed one year, exchange rate changes are taken into account
if receivables are to be valued lower or liabilities are to be
valued higher as a result thereof.

[Il.Notes to the Balance Sheet
Assets

Fixed assets

Changes in fixed assets are presented in the statement of
movements (attached to these notes to the financial statements).

Current assets
Inventories

Inventories (work-in-progress) amounted to KEUR 58
(prior year: kEUR 164).

Receivables and other assets

As in the prior year, all individually disclosed receivables
and other assets are due within one year. This does not
apply to other assets in the amount of KEUR 64 with a
residual term of 15 months.

Receivables from affiliated companies amount to kKEUR 1,895
(prior year: KEUR 2,306) and include trade receivables of
KEUR 1,700 (prior year: KEUR 2,211) as well as receivables
relating to other matters totalling KEUR 194 (prior year : KEUR
96). These receivables were netted with the corresponding
liabilities per company, so that the respective surplus is
recognized as at December 31, 2017. As in the prior year,
there are no receivables from the shareholder.

Other assets mainly relate to tax receivables from foreign
employees of KEUR 1,424 (prior year: kKEUR 2,247), tax
receivables totalling KEUR 158 (prior year : KEUR 0) and rent
deposits amounting to KEUR 117 (prior year: KEUR 206).

Cash-in-hand and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents consist almost entirely of bank
balances and these amounted to kEUR 4,903 (prior year:
KEUR 6,577) at the end of the financial year.
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Deferred taxes

For the calculation of deferred taxes due to temporary or
quasi-permanent differences between the values of assets,
liabilities and deferred income in the Balance Sheet prepared
under commercial law and their values recognized under tax
law or due to tax losses carried forward, the amounts of the
resulting tax burden and tax relief are valued at the tax rates
of the individual entity at the time the differences are reduced
and not discounted. Deferred tax assets and liabilities were
offset. This did not result in an asset item.

Deferred tax assets mainly result from tax losses carried
forward and from valuation differences relating to
provisions for holidays.

Deferred tax liabilities do not exist.

Waiving the option of recognising deferred tax assets provided
for in Section 274 (1) Sentence 2 German Commercial Code
(HGB), these were not capitalized. The calculation was
based on a tax rate for corporation income tax and solidarity
surcharge of 15.825% and for municipal trade tax of 11.55%
(assessment rate 330%).

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Equity comprises share capital (KEUR 86) as well as the loss
for the year, which can be analyzed as follows:

Particulars kEUR
Retained earnings carried forward as at

January 1, 2017 153
Profit for the year 2017 (1,214)
Loss for the year as at December 31, 2017 (1,061)

Tax provisions

Tax provisions mainly relate to liability debts in connection
with German wage tax from prior years for foreign employees
working on German projects.

Other provisions
The other provisions mainly include the following provisions:

The provisions for outstanding invoices relating to
subcontractors amounting to KEUR 2,988 (prior year:
kEUR 1,335), employee bonuses including partner bonuses
totalling KEUR 2,121 (prior year: KEUR 2,396), outstanding
holidays of kEUR 1,034 (prior year: kEUR 1,863), social
security amounting to KEUR 2,708 (prior year: KEUR
2,148) and the provisions for outstanding employee travel
costs totalling KEUR 561 (prior year: KEUR 320). Moreover,
provisions for litigation costs have been made of KEUR 1,341
(prior year: KEUR 270).

Liabilities
As in the prior year, all individually disclosed liabilities are
due within one year.

Liabilities to affiliated companies were netted with the
corresponding liabilities per company to ensure that only the
respective surplus is recognized as at the Balance Sheet date.

Liabilities to affiliated companies include trade payables
amounting to KEUR 1,215 (prior year: KEUR 1,582) as well as
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receivables arising from other issues totalling KEUR 101 (prior
year: KEUR 165). In addition, there is a loan amount of KEUR
4,825 (prior year: kKEUR 6,875) to the shareholder.

The other liabilities mainly relate to the following positions:

Liabilities from German wage and church tax amounting to
KkEUR 1,051 (prior year: KEUR 1,215) and value-added tax
liabilities totalling KEUR 1,644 (prior year: KEUR 1,287).

I\. Notes to the Income Statement

The Income Statement was prepared according to the
nature of expense method.

Region-wise revenue details are as follows:

Region 2017 in % 2016 in %
(in KEUR) (in KEUR)

Germany 74,499 82.5 56,953 75.5
Europe

(sundry) 10,062 11.1 17,204 22.8
America 398 0.4 1,104 1.5
Asia 1,479 1.6 62 0.1
Australia 3,874 4.3 46 0.1
Africa 0 0.0 0 0.0
Total 90,312 100.0 75,369 100.0

Of the revenue, consulting services account for kKEUR 85,109
while costs passed on - travel costs in particular - make up
KEUR 3,724 - and other revenue accounts for kEUR 1,479.

Other operating income totalling kEUR 702 (prior year:
KEUR 783) mainly relate to income from private car use
amounting to kKEUR 304 (prior year: kKEUR 309) and income
from foreign currency valuation in the amount of KEUR 323
(prior year: kKEUR 454).

In total, the income resulting from other accounting periods
in other operating income in the financial year amounts to
KEUR 3 (prior year: KEUR 9).

Cost of purchased services by subcontractors amounted to
KEUR 47,478 (prior year: KEUR 31,440) in the reporting year.

Employee benefit expenses were reduced from kEUR
35,919 to kEUR 29,449.

The other operating expenses totalling KEUR 15,210 (prior
year: 14,552) mainly include travel costs in the amount of
5,564 (prior year : KEUR 7,600), vehicle costs totalling kKEUR
569 (prior year: 593), other employee benefit expenses of
KEUR 5,707 (prior year: KEUR 2,793) and cost allocations
from other entities within the group of KEUR 389 (prior
year: KEUR 460). Moreover, consulting costs of kEUR
1,019 (prior year: KEUR 852), costs of premises totalling
KEUR 412 (prior year: KEUR 601), telephone costs of
KEUR 482 (prior year: KEUR 553) and expenses relating
to foreign currency valuations totalling kKEUR 719 (prior
year: KEUR 837) incurred.

The other operating expenses include expenses resulting
from other accounting periods totalling KEUR 21 (prior year:
KEUR 3). As in the prior year, these mainly relate to losses
from the disposal of fixed assets.

Taxes on income led to tax proceeds in the amount of KEUR
158 (prior year: KEUR 0) in the reporting year.
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Overall, the entity recorded a loss for the reporting year in the
amount of KEUR 1,214 (prior year :loss for the period of KEUR
6,244). The loss for the year is carried forward to the new
financial year together with prior year’s profit carried forward.

V. Other disclosures

Other financial commitments

As at December 31, 2017, the entity has other financial
commitments relating to car leasing contracts (kEUR 214;
prior year: KEUR 193), rental agreements for office premises
and apartments (KEUR 379; prior year: kEUR 789) totalling
KkEUR 593 (prior year: KEUR 982). Of these commitments,
KEUR 434 relate to the financial year 2018 while kKEUR 159
relate to the years up to and including 2020. According to
Management, the entity’s other financial commitments do not
pose substantial risks for the subsequent financial years. The
other financial commitments incurred within normal business
development. Compared to the alternative of investing in
property, plant and equipment, the conclusion of rental and
leasing transactions serves to improve the entity’s liquidity
for the period. There are no other financial commitments to
affiliated companies.

Employees

In the business year 2017, the average number of 247 (prior
year: 296) employees was employed. This number includes
an average of 232 (prior year: 278) consultants and 15 (prior
year: 18) administrative employees.

Management
Michael Dietz, Consultant

Significant Company Agreements

At the end of the financial year 2016, an open-ended loan
agreement with a credit line in the amount of kEUR 15,000
was concluded between the entity and the shareholder.

In addition, there is a rental agreement for office
premises in Garching/Germany, where the entity’s
registered office is located.
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Group affiliation

The shareholder of the entity, Infosys Consulting GmbH is
Infosys Consulting Holding AG, Obstgartenstrafse 27 in 8302
Kloten/Switzerland with a share of EUR 86,000.00 (100%).

The financial statements of Infosys Consulting GmbH are
included in the consolidated financial statements of Infosys
Limited, Bengaluru/India, which prepares consolidated
financial statements for the smallest and the largest group of
consolidated entities.

The consolidated financial statements of Infosys Limited
are published and are available on the US Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) website.

There is no profit transfer or fiscal unity agreement between
the shareholder and Infosys Consulting GmbH.
Auditors’ fee

The total fee to be charged by the auditors of the financial
statements for the financial year 2017 relates to expenses for
auditing services totalling KEUR 25.

Garching near Munich/Germany
March 16, 2018

Mr Michael Dietz
Managing Director

Movements in fixed assets

Other equipment, operating and office equipment

Acquisition and production cost:

Jan 1,2017 Additions Disposals Dec 31, 2017
EUR EUR EUR EUR
888,556.24  143,397.52  274,373.68  757,580.08

Accumulated amortization, depreciation and write-down:

Jan 1,2017 Additions Disposals Dec 31, 2017

EUR EUR EUR EUR

657,995.99 93,038.19  249962.99 501,071.19
Book value:

Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2016

EUR EUR

256,508.89 230,560.25
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Auditors’ Report

To the shareholder of Infosys Poland Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig
Auditors’ report

We have audited the attached annual financial statements of Infosys Poland Spoétka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia with its
registered office in £6dz, Pomorska 106A (hereinafter: ‘Company’) comprising : Balance Sheet prepared as at March 31, 2018,
Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement prepared for the financial year from April 1,
2017 to March 31, 2018 and notes, comprising an introduction to the financial statements and other explanatory information
(‘financial statements’).

Responsibility of the Company’s manager and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Management Board of the Company is obliged to prepare the financial statements based on properly kept accounting
records and to present them fairly in line with the Accounting Act of September 29, 1994 (Journal of Laws of 2018, item 395,
as amended), hereinafter referred to as the ‘Accounting Act’, its implementing regulations and other applicable laws as well
as the entity’ articles of association. The Management Board of the Company is also responsible for ensuring internal control
necessary for the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Under the Accounting Act, the Management Board of the Company is obliged to ensure that the financial statements meet the
requirements of the Accounting Act.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility was to express an opinion whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial and
economic position as well as the financial performance of the entity in line with the applicable provisions of the Accounting
Act and adopted accounting principles (policy).

Our audit of the financial statements has been performed in accordance with:

1. the Act on statutory auditors, auditing companies and public oversight of May 11, 2017 (Journal of Laws of 2017, item
1089, as amended) (‘Act on statutory auditors’);

National Auditing Standards in the wording of the International Standards on Auditing adopted by resolution No. 2783/52/2015
of the National Council of Statutory Auditors of 10 February 2015, as amended, in connection with resolution No. 2041/37a/2018
of March 5, 2018 on national professional standards.

Those regulations require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

The audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The audit procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’ internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Management Board of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

The scope of the audit does not include an assurance regarding the future profitability of the audited entity or the effectiveness

of the Company’s Management Board in managing the entity’s affairs at present and in future.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the attached annual financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the economic and financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and its financial
performance for the financial year from April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018, in accordance with applicable provisions of the
Accounting Act and the adopted accounting principles (policies);

* have been prepared based on properly kept — in line with chapter 2 of the Accounting Act — accounting records;

¢+ comply, with respect to their form and content, with the applicable provisions of law and the articles of association of the
entity.

Other matters

The financial statements of the Company for the prior financial year ended March 31, 2017 were audited by another certified

auditor who issued an opinion on those financial statements on May 16, 2017.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinion on the report on the activities
We do not express an opinion on the report on the activities.

The Management Board of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the report on the activities in line with
the provisions of law.

Under the act on statutory auditors we were obliged to issue an opinion as to whether the report on the activities complies with
the provisions of law and is consistent with underlying information disclosed in the attached financial statements. Additionally,
it was our responsibility to indicate whether we have detected any material misstatement in the report on the activities and
to describe the misstatement (if any), based on our knowledge of the Company and its business environment obtained in the
course of the audit.

In our opinion, the report on the activities has been prepared in line with the applicable provisions of law and is consistent
with the underlying information disclosed in the attached financial statements. Furthermore, we represent that based on our
knowledge of the entity and its business environment obtained in the course of the audit of the financial statements, we believe
that the report on the activities is free from material misstatements.

On behalf of Deloitte Audyt spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscia sp. k. (until 18 march 2018 operating under the name
Deloitte Polska spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnodcig sp. k.) — entity authorized to audit financial statements entered
under number 73 on the list kept by the National Council of Statutory Auditors:

Piotr Niedziela

Key certified auditor
conducting the audit
No. 12523

‘Warsaw,
April 27,2018

This Report is an English version of the original Polish version. In case of any discrepancies between the Polish and English
version, the Polish version shall prevail.
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Introduction to the Financial Statements

1. Details of the Company

1.1 Company's name

Infosys Poland Sp. z 0.0., hereinafter: Company

1.2 Registered office
ul. Pomorska 106A
91-402 todz

1.3 Entry in the National Court Register

Court: District Court for E6dz—Srédmiescie in kodz, XX
Division of the National Court Register

Date : 3 August 2007

Number: KRS 0000285868

1.4 Core business and duration of the
Company

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the

Company’s core business is:

* computer programming (PKD 62.01.2);

¢ accounting, bookkeeping and auditing activities; tax
consultancy (PKD 69.20 2);

¢ data processing, hosting and related activities (PKD
63.11.2).

The Company has
unlimited period of time.

been incorporated for an

1.5 Period covered by the financial statements

These financial statements cover the period from April 1,
2017 to March 31, 2018 and the comparative information is
for the period from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017.

1.6 Going concern
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis
that the Company is a going concern.

There are no circumstances indicating a threat to the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

2. Major accounting principles

These financial statements have been prepared using the
following accounting principles:

2.1 Basis for preparation of the financial
statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the accounting policies applicable in Poland as set
out in the Accounting Act of 29 September 1994 (Journal
of Laws of 2018 item 395) and secondary legislation
to the Accounting Act.

The accounting principles adopted by the Company have
been applied consistently are the same as those used in the
prior financial year.

2.2 Revenue and expenses

Revenues and expenses are recognized using the accrual
method, i.e. in the year when they were generated or incurred,
irrespective of the date of receiving or making the payment.
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The Company records expenses and prepares the Profit and
Loss Account by nature of expense.

Sales revenue

The Company derives revenue primarily from the management
of business processes, both on the basis of allocation of
staff, fixed price agreed with the Client, number of hours
or based on the unit price for a given activity. Revenue
based on the allocation of staff is recognized when realized
and the revenue realized from the date of the last invoice
to the date of the Balance Sheet are recognized as unbilled
revenue. Revenue based on the fixed price agreed with the
Client or the number of hours is recognized at a reliabile
amount, if they are probable. Revenue based on the unit price
for a given activity are recognized as transactions based on
measurable deliverables. Provisions for expected losses, if any,
on unfulfilled contracts are recognized in the period in which
the loss is probable, based on current estimates.

2.3 Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate.

2.4 Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared using
the indirect method.

2.5 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured at cost less amortization
charges and impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method
and the following rates:

Intangible assets of more than PLN 3,500 50%
Goodwill 20%

The correctness of the amortization periods and rates applied
to intangible assets should be periodically verified by the
entity, which should lead to appropriate adjustment of the
amortization expenses recognized in future periods.

2.6 Fixed assets

Fixed assets are measured at cost (initial amount) less
depreciation charges and impairment losses.

The cost of fixed assets and fixed assets under construction
comprises total expenses incurred by the entity throughout
the construction, assembly, adaptation and improvement of
the assets until the date of their commissioning, including
respective borrowing costs and exchange differences, less
revenue generated on that basis.

The initial amount of a fixed asset is increased by the costs
of its improvement consisting in remodelling, extension,
modernization or reconstruction, following which the value
in use of the fixed asset after improvement exceeds its value
in use at the time when it was first made available for use.

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis.
Depreciation begins in the month in which the fixed asset
becomes available for use.
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The Company applies the following depreciation rates:

Particulars Depreciation rates

33.33%
Furniture 20%
Office equipment 20%

until the end of the contract
no longer than five years

Leasehold improvements

The correctness of the depreciation periods and rates
applied to fixed assets should be periodically verified by the
entity, which should lead to appropriate adjustment of the
depreciation expenses recognized in future periods.

2.7 Investments

Investments are assets held in order to achieve economic
benefits arising from an increase in their value, generate
interest income, dividends (profit sharing) or other benefits,
including from trading transactions, in particular financial
assets, real property and intangible assets not used by the
entity but held only in order to obtain these benefits.

2.8 Receivables, claims and liabilities not
classified as financial assets and financial
liabilities

Receivables are recognized at the amount due using the
prudence principle. Receivables are revalued based on the
probability of their repayment through recognition of an
impairment loss which is charged to other operating expenses
or financial expenses, depending on the type of receivable
concerned. As a rule, receivables which are outstanding for
more than 180 days of a respective invoice are subject to
a valuation allowance charged to other operating expenses.

Liabilities are measured at the amount due.

Receivables and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies
are recognized when incurred at the average exchange rate
determined for a given currency by the National Bank of
Poland as of the date immediately preceding that date.

As at the Balance Sheet date, foreign currency receivables
and liabilities are measured at the average exchange rate
determined for a given currency by the National Bank of
Poland at that date.

2.9 Impairment of assets

As at each Balance Sheet date, it is verified whether there is
any objective indication of impairment of an asset or a group
of assets. If such an indication exists, the Company makes an
estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset and recognizes
an impairment loss at an amount of the difference between
the recoverable amount and the carrying amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in profit or loss. If the effects of the
previous revaluation of assets were charged to the revaluation
reserve, the loss reduces the reserve and the remaining portion
of the loss is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account.

2.10 Prepaid expenses and accruals

The Company recognizes prepaid expenses if they are
related to future reporting periods. Accruals are recognized
at the amount of probable liabilities pertaining to the
current reporting period.
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2.11 Provisions for liabilities
Provisions are liabilities with an uncertain due date or amount.
Retirement benefits

Under the Company’s remuneration rules, employees are
entitled to retirement benefits. Liabilities due to retirement
benefits have been measured using the actuarial method and
the discount rate based on market rate of return as at the end
of the reporting period. Staff turnover is estimated based on
historical data and expected staff levels.

2.12 Economic activity in t.6dz Special
Economic Zone

On 4 November 2013 the Company was granted permit
No. 225 to operate in £6dZ Special Economic Zone (‘SEZ’)
and therefore is exempt from CIT due to the expenditures
incurred in the Zone. The Company has fulfilled all the terms
and conditions to become eligible for the tax exemption.

The income generated from the economic activities set out
in the permit to operate in the economic zone is tax-exempt
under Article 17.1.34 of the Corporate Income Tax Act.

The Company enjoys the tax exemption due to the new jobs it
creates, in line with 83.1.2 of the Ordinance of the Council of
Ministers on the criteria which need to be fulfilled to establish
a special economic zone in a given area (Journal of Laws
of 244, item 1477, as amended). The maximum amount
of eligible expenses is PLN 45,460,396.80. The maximum
amount of two-year labour costs is calculated based on the
cost of labour of 390 newly hired employees.

In accordance with the permit, in £6dz SEZ the Company
provides the following services set out in the Polish
Classification of Goods and Services of the Central
Statistical Office:

1. financial auditing services (69.20.1);
2. accounting services (69.20.2);accounting services (69.20.2);

3. research and experimental development services in social
sciences and humanities (72.2)

4. Computer programming, consultancy and related
services (62.0) excluding computer games software
originals (62.01.21)

The Company started the calculation of eligible expenses
which make up the limit of the tax exemption in
t6dz SEZ in May 2015.

On 30 December 2016 the Company was granted a new
permit No. 302 to carry out extended operations in £odz
SEZ. In the audited period the Company did not start the
fulfilment of the requirements set out in the permit.

2.13 Income tax

Income tax is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account and
it includes the current and the deferred portion.

The current income tax liability is calculated in accordance
with the applicable tax regulations. The deferred portion
recognized in the Profit and Loss Account is the difference
between the opening and closing balances of the deferred tax
liability and assets.
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he deferred tax assets and liability related to transactions
charged to equity are also charged to equity.

The deferred tax asset is recognized at the amount to be
deducted from the income tax in the future, due to deductible
temporary differences that will reduce the income tax basis in
the future and the deductible loss, determined in accordance
with the prudence principle. The deferred income tax is
recognized in line with the National Accounting Standard 2.

The deferred tax liability is recognized in the amount of
income tax payable in the future, arising from taxable
temporary differences that will increase the income tax
basis in the future.

The deferred tax assets and liability are determined by
reference to the income tax rates effective in the year when
the tax obligation arises.

The deferred tax liability and assets are not set off for the
purposes of presentation in the financial statements.

2.14 Exchange differences

Exchange differences as at the Balance Sheet date arising from
the measurement of assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies and resulting from payment of receivables
or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and sale of
currency are classified to financial revenue or expenses,
respectively, and where reasonable, to the cost of products,
goods, as well fixed assets, fixed assets under construction
and intangible assets.

Exchange rates applied to the measurement of items
denominated in foreign currencies (in PLN).

Balance Sheet

in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
AED 0.9244 1.0690
AUD 2.6288 3.0171
CHF 3.5812 3.9461
CZK 0.1659 0.1559
EUR 4.2085 4.2198
DKK 0.5646 0.5674
GBP 4.7974 4.9130
INR 0.0524 0.0608
NOK 0.4361 0.4601
HRK 0.5660 0.5673
MXN 0.1880 0.2113
SEK 0.4097 0.4419
US$ 3.4139 3.9455
ZAR 0.2886 0.2955
RON 0.9034 0.9277
SGD 2.6064 2.8229
HUF 0.0135 0.0137
RUB 0.0594 0.0704
TRY 0.8625 1.0853
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2.15 Financial instruments

2.15.1 Classification of financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognized and measured in line with
the Ordinance of the Minister of Finance of 12 December 2001
on detailed principles of recognition, measurement methods,
scope of disclosure and presentation of financial instruments.
The financial asset measurement and disclosure principles as
described below do not apply to financial instruments which
do not fall within the scope of the Ordinance, including, in
particular, shares in controlled entities, rights and obligations
arising from lease and insurance contracts, trade receivables
and liabilities and financial instruments issued by the entities
and classified as their equity instruments.

Financial assets comprise :

¢ financial assets held for trading

* loans and receivables;

+ financial assets held to maturity;

* financial assets available for sale.

Financial liabilities comprise :

¢ financial liabilities held for trading;

* other financial liabilities.

2.15.2 Principles of measurement and recognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets are recognized in the accounting records
at the contract date at cost, i.e. the fair value of expenses
incurred or other assets transferred in exchange, whereas
financial liabilities, at the fair value of the amount obtained
or the value of other assets received. The fair value is
determined as at that date considering the transaction costs
incurred by the Company.

2.15.3 Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets held for trading include derivative
financial instruments.

Financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value
whereas the effects of periodic measurement of financial
assets are classified as financial revenues or expenses of
the reporting period during which the revaluation took
place, respectively.

2.15.4 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables include, regardless of their maturity,
financial assets arising as a result of direct provision of cash
to the other party to a contract.

Loans and receivables are measured at the amount due.

2.15.5 Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets available for sale are assets, other than
derivatives, which have been classified to this category or
have not been classified to any other category. Financial
assets available for sale, whose fair value cannot be reliably
determined, are measured at cost.
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2.15.6 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities held for trading, including derivatives which have not been designated as hedging instruments, are recognized
at fair value, whereas gains and losses resulting from their measurement are recognized directly in the Profit and Loss Account.

Other financial liabilities are measured at adjusted cost, i.e. using the effective interest rate method.

2.16 Methods and key assumptions underlying the calculation of the fair value of financial assets

and liabilities measured at such fair value

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged and a liability settled on arm’s length terms between willing

and well-informed parties.

The fair value is calculated by estimation of the price of the financial instrument using generally accepted esimation methods.

Anantha Radhakrishnan
CEO

Kapil Jain
Member of the Board

Management Board
Person in charge of the accounting records

Eod?
April 27,2018
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Anup Kapoor
Member of the Board

Nishit Ajitkumar Shah
Member of the Board
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Balance Sheet

in PLN
Particulars Note no. As at March 31,
2018 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets 58,222,383.51 59,804,636.64
Property, plant and equipment 2
Fixed assets 5,663,419.25 0,748,413.87
buildings, premises, civil engineering structures 563,886.46 2,359,507.95
technical equipment and machines 4,474,917.63 6,269,988.04
other fixed assets 624,615.16 1,118,917.88
5,663,419.25 9,748,413.87
Long-term investments 6
Long-term financial assets 36,906,540.00 33,360,975.00
originated loans - -
in other entities 36,906,540.00 33,360,975.00
36,906,540.00 33,360,975.00
Long-term prepayments
Deferred tax assets 13.3 15,652,424.26 16,695,247.77
15,652,424.26 16,695,247.77
Current assets 284,992 297.85 246,262,804.08
Short-term receivables
Receivables from related parties 1,621,029.39 1,198,731.84
trade receivables 3.1 1,621,029.39 1,198,731.84
Receivables from other entities 63,422,025.02 78,141,494.04
trade receivables 3.2 60,927,614.50 68,296,463.47
due to tax, grants, customs duty, social insurance, health
insurance and other benefits 3.4 468,356.02 8,645,172.42
other 3.4 2,026,054.50 1,199,858.15
65,043,054.41 79,340,225.88
Short-term investments
Short-term financial assets 219,824,990.89 166,480,517.59
in related parties 4.1 20,397,070.36 2,803,618.25
in other entities 4.2 25,110,858.90 45,121,561.65
cash and other monetary assets 43 174,317,061.63 118,555,337.69
219,824,990.89 166,480,517.59
Short-term prepayments 5 124,252.55 442,060.61

TOTAL ASSETS

343,214,681.36

306,067,440.72
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Equity and Liabilities

in PLN
Particulars Note no. As at March 31,
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Equity
Share capital 7.1 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00
Supplementary capital 241,336,404.63 187,640,238.78
Net profit / (loss) 34,766,928.39  53,696,165.85
278,603,333.02 243,836,404.63
Liabilities and provisions for liabilities 64,611,348.33 62,231,036.09
Provisions for liabilities
Deferred tax liability 13.3 367,837.69 75,013.70
Provision for retirement and similar benefits 8.1 17,288,793.81 15,449,327.11
— long-term 686,259.00 552,547.00
— short-term 16,602,534.81 14,896,780.11
Other provisions 2,563,171.00 1,850,000.00
— short-term 8.2 2,563,171.00 1,850,000.00
20,219,802.50 17,374,340.81
Short-term liabilities
To related parties 1,082,707.38 288,310.92
trade liabilities 9.1 1,082,707.38 288,310.92
To other entities 21,708,806.45 21,706,975.73
other financial liabilities 9.4 51,200.00 56,000.00
trade liabilities 9.2 1,833,398.34 2,165,233.16
liabilities due to tax, customs duty, insurance and other
payments 9.3 11,769,963.66 10,902,142.53
salaries and wages 8,054,244 .45 8,583,600.04
Special funds 491,180.35 580,556.48
23,282,694.18 22,575,843.13
Accruals
Other accruals 21,108,851.65 22,280,852.15
— long-term 10.1 8,343,583.77 9,311,833.87
— short-term 10.2 12,765,267.88 12,969,018.28

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

21,108,851.65

22,280,852.15

343,214,681.36

306,067,440.72

Anantha Radhakrishnan
CEO

Kapil Jain

Member of the Board

Management Board
Person in charge of the accounting records

todz
April 27,2018
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Member of the Board

Nishit Ajitkumar Shah
Member of the Board
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Profit and Loss Account

in PLN
Particulars Note no. 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017

Net sales revenue and equivalent 11
— from related parties 10,388,971.76 3,893,272.93

Net revenue from sales of services

Operating expenses
Amortization/depreciation
Materials and energy used
External services
Taxes and charges
Salaries and wage
Social security and other benefits
Other expenses
Value of goods and materials sold

Profit on sales
Other operating revenue
Revaluation of non-financial assets
Other

Other operating expenses
Loss on disposal of non-financial non-current assets
Revaluation of non-financial assets
Other

Profit on operating activities
Financial revenue
Interest
— from related parties
Other

Financial expenses
Interest
Loss on disposal of investment
Other

Profit on economic activities
Gross profit

Income tax

Net profit

288,238,979.55

295,047,621.77

288,238,979.55

295,047,621.77

(5,217,639.53)
(791,056.64)
(35,269,444.55)
(2,954,770.21)
(156,122,659.79)
(34,807,028.38)
(4,291,895.23)
(117,884.88)

(6,052,866.93)
(971,853.48)
(38,449,873.04)
(2,915,708.51)
(146,728,111.37)
(33,523,928.33)
(12,795,993.70)
(140,228.03)

(239,572,379.21)

(241,578,563.39)

48,666,600.34

53,469,058.38

961,542.57 470,546.52
234,773.64 195,003.91
1,196,316.21 665,550.43
- (645.52)
(116,836.44) =
(123,171.33) (88,459.78)
(240,007.77) (89,105.30)

49,622,908.78

54,045,503.51

12 3,330,113.67 1,975,276.26
959,049.28 41,733.84

1,498,000.00 698,699.29

4,828,113.67 2,673,975.55

(2,566,889.07) (17,771.07)

(1,311,289.13)
(7,122,240.35)

(2,455,471.21)

(11,000,418.55)

(2,473,242.28)

43,450,603.90
43,450,603.90
13 8,683,675.51

54,246,236.78
54,246,236.78
(550,070.93)

34,766,928.39

53,696,165.85

Anantha Radhakrishnan
CEO

Kapil Jain

Member of the Board

Management Board
Person in charge of the accounting records

todz
April 27,2018
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Member of the Board

Nishit Ajitkumar Shah
Member of the Board
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Statement of Changes in Equity

in PLN

Particulars Note no. 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017

Opening balance of equity 243,836,404.63 190,140,238.78
Opening balance of share capital 7.1 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00
Closing balance of share capital 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00
Opening balance of supplementary capital 187,640,238.78  129,727,037.17
Changes in supplementary capital 53,696,165.85 57,913,201.61
increases - -

— profit distribution 53,696,165.85 57,913,201.61
Closing balance of supplementary capital 241,336,404.63  187,640,238.78

Net profit/loss

net profit 34,766,928.39 53,696,165.85
Closing balance of equity 278,603,333.02 243,836,404.63
Equity, after proposed profit distribution 7.2 278,603,333.02 243,836,404.63

Anantha Radhakrishnan

CEO

Kapil Jain
Member of the Board

Management Board
Person in charge of the accounting records

todz
April 27,2018
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Member of the Board

Nishit Ajitkumar Shah
Member of the Board
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Cash Flow Statement

in PLN
Particulars Note no. 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit 34,766,928.39  53,696,165.85

Total adjustments

Amortization / depreciation 5,217,639.53 6,052,866.93
Loss due to exchange diffrences 2,686,844.11 197,305.62
Interest (2,980,385.84) (2,110,733.24)
Gain / loss on investments 15.1 (1,388,300.00) 819,455.75
Changes in provisions 2,845,461.69 3,874,331.62
Changes in receivables 14,297,171.47 (9,194,214.79)
Changes in short-term liabilities, excluding loans 15.2 706,851.05 4,865,922.98
Changes in prepayments / accruals 188,631.07 (5,232,332.96)
Investments (in other entities) (14,329,910.87) -
Other adjustments 15.4 (104,900.00) (1,518,155.12)
7,139,102.21 (2,245,553.21)
Net cash from operating activities 41,906,030.60 51,450,612.64

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds 62,896,884.02 125,042,561.62
Disposal of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment - 645.62
From financial assets, including 61,508,584.02 124,764,729.54
In other entities 61,508,584.02 124,764,729.54
Proceeds from deposits maturing in more than three months 45,000,000.00 123,000,000.00
Investments 14,329,910.87 -
Interest 2,178,673.15 1,764,729.54
Other proceeds from investing activities 1,388,300.00 277,186.46
Payments (49,041,190.68) (72,880,211.14)
Acquisition of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 15.3 (1,132,644.91) (2,722,736.52)
For financial assets, including 47,908,545.77) 69,338,018.87)
In related parties (19,362,980.77) (3,000,923.87)
Loans (19,362,980.77) (3,000,923.87)
in other entities (28,545,565.00) (66,337,095.00)
Acquisition of financial assets (28,545,565.00) (66,337,095.00)
Other payments for investing activities - (819,455.75)
Net cash from investing activities 13,855,693.34 52,162,350.48

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds = 120,548.74
Subsidy - 120,548.74
Net cash from financing activities = 120,548.74
Total net cash flows 55,761,723.94 103,733,512.87
Net increase in cash 55,761,723.94 103,733,511.87
Opening balance of cash 118,555,337.69 14,821,825.82
Closing balance of cash 43 174,317,061.63 118,555,337.69

Anantha Radhakrishnan
CEO

Kapil Jain
Member of the Board

Management Board
Person in charge of the accounting records

Eodz
April 27,2018
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Member of the Board
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Notes

1. Intangible assets

Change in the balance of intangible assets

in PLN

Particulars

Goodwill

Other intangible
assets

Total

Gross value

01.04.2017

Increases

Decreases

31.03.2018

Accumulated amortization
01.04.2017

Increases
Decreases
31.03.2018
Net value
01.04.2017
31.03.2018

21,445,874.68

462,667.52

21,908,542.20

21,445,874.68

462,667.52

21,908,542.20

(21,445,874.68)

(462,667.52)

(21,908,542.20)

(21,445,874.68)

(462,667.52)

(21,908,542.20)

2. Property, plant and equipment

2.1 Change in fixed assets

in PLN

Particulars Buildings, Technical Other tangible Total

premises, civil  equipment and items

engineering machines
structures

Gross value
01.04.2017 10,563,154.52  21,280,730.73 5,075,758.55  36,919,643.80
Increases - 1,040,754.91 91,890.00 1,132,644.91
Decreases = (211,874.48) (211,874.48)
31.03.2018 10,563,154.52  22,109,611.16 5,167,648.55 37,840,414.23
Accumulated depreciation
01.04.2017

(8,203,646.57) (15,010,742.69) (3,956,840.67) (27,171,229.93)
Increases (1,795,621.49) (2,835,825.32) (586,192.72) (5,217,639.53)
Decreases - 211,874.48 211,874.48
31.03.2018 (9,999,268.06) (17,634,693.53) (4,543,033.39) (32,176,994.98)
Net value
01.04.2017 2,359,507.95 6,269,988.04 1,118,917.88  9,748,413.87
31.03.2018 563,886.46  4,474,917.63 624,615.16 5,663,419.25

2.2 Fixed assets not depreciated

The value of fixed assets used by the Company under leases, rental or similar agreements, including operating leases, not
recognized under assets is PLN 1,113.9 thousand (PLN 2,215.4 thousan in the prior reporting period). The gross value of such
assets has been taken from lease, rental or similar agreements concluded.
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3. Short-term receivables

3.1 Ageing analysis of short-term trade receivables from related parties

in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Maturing:
Up to 12 months 1,621,029.39 1,198,731.84
1,621,029.39 1,198,731.84
Balance of gross receivables 1,621,029.39 1,198,731.84
Balance of net receivables 1,621,029.39 1,198,731.84
3.2 Ageing analysis of short-term trade receivables from other entities
in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Maturing:

Up to 12 months
Over 12 months

Balance of gross receivables
Impairment loss on receivables
Balance of net receivables

60,908,397.50
19,217.00
60,927,614.50
61,551,699.89
(624,085.39)
60,927,614.50

67,958,194.54

338,268.93

68,296,463.47
69,200,356.49

(903,893.02)

68,296,463.47

3.3 Impairment losses on short-term trade receivables

in PLN
Particulars Other entities
01.04.2017 903,893.02
Increases 624,085.39
Reversed (903,893.02)
31.03.2018 624,085.39
3.4 Receivables from other entities

in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
due to tax, grants, customs duty, social security, health insurance and other benefits 468,356.02 8,645,172.42

VAT 468,356.02 1,668,335.71
CIT - 6,976,836.71
Other 2,026,054.50 1,199,858.15
2,494.410.52 9,845,030.57

4. Short-term investments
4.1 Short-term financial assets in related parties

in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Originated loans: 20,397,070.36 2,803,618.25

20,397,070.36 2,803,618.25

Under agreement dated 8 October 2016, on 22 December 2016, the Company disbursed a loan to Infosys Technologies (China)

Cp. Ltd, a related company, of US$ 700,000.00.

Under agreement dated 27 March 2017, on 11 May 2017, the Company disbursed a loan to Infosys Technologies (Shanghai)

Cp. Ltd, a related company, of US$ 5,000,000.00.

4.2 Short-term financial assets in other entities

in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Deposits maturing in more than three months 25,005,958.90 45,121,561.65
Other short-term financial assets — forwards 104,900.00 -

25,110,858.90

45,121,561.65
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4.3 Cash and other monetary assets

in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Cash in hand and at bank 13,791,090.40 0,372,629.47
Other cash 160,525,971.23 109,182,708.22

174,317,061.63

118,555,337.69

5. Short-term prepayments

in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Gifts / vouchers not handed out 4,460.00 30,250.00
Accident and civil liability insurance 36,875.00 47,213.17
Subscription / access to databases 64,183.46 265,457.31
Prepayments 22,105.71 113,606.23
Measurement (3,371.62) (14,466.10)
124,252.55 442,060.61
6.

in PLN

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Financial assets available for sale
Investment in Vertex Venture
Cloudyn investment

Tidalscale investment

30,780,990.00

6,125,550.00

19,585,425.00
7,650,000.00
6,125,550.00

36,906,540.00

33,360,975.00

Under agreement dated 21 August 2015, the Company invested PLN 30,780,990.00 in Vertex Ventures.
The uncalled capital in the investment in Vertex Ventures is US$6,900,000.00 (PLN 23,555,910.00 at the exchange

rate of 30 March 2018).

The investment in Cloudyn was sold and generated a loss of PLN 1,311,289.13.

Under agreement dated 4 August 2016, the Company invested PLN 6,125,550.00 in Tidalscale.

7. Equity

7.1 Ownership structure of the share capital

Shareholder

Infosys BPM Limited (previously : Infosys BPO Limited)

in PLN
Number of Face value of % interest
shares shares
5,000 2,500,000 100%
5,000 2,500,000 100%

7.2 Proposed distribution of profit for the financial year

The financial statements were drawn up before the decision regarding the distribution of profit for the current year was made.
The Management Board has proposed that the profit for the financial year be used to increase the supplementary capital.
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8. Provisions

8.1 Provisions for retirement and similar benefits

in PLN
Particulars Retirement Other Total
benefits
01.04.2017 552,547.00 14,896,780.11 15,449,327.11
Increases 686,259.00 16,602,534.81 17,288,793.81
Used

- (14,896,780.11)

(14,896,780.11)

Reversed (552,547.00) — (552,547.00)
31.03.2018 686,259.00 16,602,534.81 17,288,793 .81
including:

long-term 686,259.00 - 686,259.00
short-term - 16,602,534.81 16,602,534.81
Other short-term provisions for employee benefits include (by

basis) :

— provision for unused annual leave 9,394,933.35

— provisions for bonuses 6,075,623.80

— provision for overtime 872,715.10

— other provisions 259,262.56

16,602,534.81

8.2 Other short-term provisions

Other short-term provisions have been made for any taxable interest on the returned subsidy.

in PLN
Particulars Other Total
01.04.2017 1,850,000.00 1,850,000.00
Increases 713,171.00 713,171.00
Used - -
31.03.2018 2,563,171.00 2,563,171.00

9. Short-term liabilities

9.1 Short-term trade liabilities to related parties of PLN 1,082,707.38 are due within 12 months

from the Balance Sheet date.

9.2 Short-term trade liabilities to other entities of PLN 1,833,398.34 are due within 12 months

from the Balance Sheet date.

9.3 Short-term liabilities due to taxes, customs duty, incurance and other benefits

in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
PIT-4 settlements 2,129,180.12 2,072,930.48
Social security settlements 9,501,785.38 8,829.212.05
CIT-8 settlements 19,055.91 -
WHT settlements 119,942.25 -

11,769,963.66

10,902,142.53

9.4 Short-term liabilities — other financial liabilities to other entities

in PLN

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Measurement of financial instruments 51,200.00 56,000.00
51,200.00 56,000.00
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10. Other accruals

10.1 Long-term accruals

in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Deferred discount received due to a rent — long-term portion 8,343,583.77 9,311,833.87
8,343,583.77 9,311,833.87

10.2 Short-term accruals
in PLN
Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Provision for the costs of business trips 81,119.66 147,351.00
Deferred discount received due to a rent — short-term portion 942.019.74 1,527,278.64
Deferred income — EU subsidy 8,130,452.55 8,130,452.55
Other 3,611,675.93 3,163,936.09

12,765,267.88

12,969,018.28

11.Sales revenue

in PLN
Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017

Geographic information
Revenue from sales of services
Domestic

Exports

Revenue by type
Revenue from sales of products
Services

35,004,276.73
253,234,702.82

31,967,331.52

263,080,290.25

288,238,979.55

295,047,621.77

288,238,979.55

295,047,621.77

288,238,979.55

295,047,621.77

12. Interest income

(including those arising from debt financial instruments, loans and receivables)

from April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018

in PLN
Particulars Realized interest Unrealized interest, due within
up to 3 months 3-12 months over 12 months Total
Loans and receivables 2,185,137.95 343,263.01 - 3,330,113.67
2,185,137.95 343,263.01 — 3,330,113.67
from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017
in PLN
Particulars Realized interest Unrealized interest, due within
up to 3 months 3-12 months over 12 months Total
Loans and receivables 1,802,878.04 9,102.74 - 1,975,276.26
1,802,878.04 9,102.74 - 1,975,276.26
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13. Corporate income tax
13.1 CIT structure

in PLN
Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017
Current income tax 6,992,250.00 4.993,210.00
Additional prior year tax liabilities 355,778.00 (89,202.00)
Change in deferred income tax 1,335,647.51 (4,353,937.07)
8,683,675.51 550,070.93

13.2 Calculation of corporate income tax
in PLN
Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017

Gross profit

Increases in the tax basis
Decreases in the tax basis
Taxable income

43,450,603.90
41,311,237.09
33,346,856.92
51,414,984.07

54,246,236.78
35,165,791.73
34,348,392.66
55,063,635.85

Tax basis 51,414,984.07 55,063,635.85
Income tax 0,768,847.00 10,462,091.00
SEZ tax credit (2,776,597.00) (5,468,880.00)
Income tax recognized in profit or loss 6,992,250.00 4,993,211.00
13.3 Deferred income tax

in PLN
Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017

Deductible temporary differences:
Provision for annual leave 9,394,933.35 7,864,799.94
Provision for bonuses, overtime, retirement and disability benefits 6,075,623.80 5,822,581.07
Accrued exchange losses 2,963,329.61 1,623,863.79
Provisions for other costs 21,448,136.03 23,105,890.57
Fixed assets 2,882,451.78 847,301.35
Measurement of derivatives 67,500.00

SEZ tax credit

Gross deferred tax assets

Net deferred tax assets

Taxable temporary differences:
Accrued exchange gains
Measurement of derivatives
Interest accrued on deposits

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax assets recognized in the Balance Sheet
Deferred tax liability recognized in the Balance Sheet
Net Balance Sheet change in deferred tax assets/liability
Change in deferred tax charged to profit or loss

39,616,707.37

48,537,788.40

82,381,181.94

87,869,725.12

15,652,424.26

16,695,247.77

15,652,424.26

16,695,247.77

445,005.07 48,805.25
531,930.13 -
959,049.29 346,003.71
1,935,984.49 394,808.96
367,837.05 75,013.70
15,652,424.26  16,695,247.77
367,837.05 75,013.70
(1,335,647.50) 4,353,937.07
(1,335,647.50) 4,353,937.07
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14. Expenditure on non-current non-financial assets

in PLN
Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017
Expenditure on non-current non-financial assets:
— incurred in the current year 1,132,644.91 2,180,715.65
— planned 1,200,000.00 8,220,295.38
15. Explanations to the cash flow statement
15.1 (Gain)/loss on investments
in PLN
Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017
Other — (gain)/loss on forwards (1,388,300.00) 819,455.75
(1,388,300.00) 819,455.75
15.2 Change in short-term liabilities (except for credit facilities and loans)
in PLN
Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017
Change in short-term liabilities 706,851.05 2,805,628.94
Change in liabilities due to acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
investments 154,948.92 542,138.92
Change in other financial liabilities
due to measurement of forwards 109,700.00 1,518,155.12
971,499.97 4,865,922.98
15.3 Acquisition of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
in PLN
Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017
Increases in fixed assets (1,132,644.91) (2,180,715.65)
Change in fixed assets under construction - 118.05
Change in liabilities due to acquisition of property, plant and equipment (154,948.92) (542,138.92)

(1,287,593.83)

(2,722,736.52)

15.4 Other adjustments

in PLN

Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017

Other — due to measurement of forwards (109,700.00) (1,518,155.12)

(109,700.00)

(1,518,155.12)

16. Related party transactions

16.1 Payment of receivables and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date

in PLN
Particulars Liabilities Receivables Loans to
Infosys Ltd, India 72,247.87 1,340,421.28 -
Infosys BPM Limited, India (previously: Infosys BPO Limited)
(including the agencies in the Netherlands, UK and Singapore) 24,019.01 280,608.11 -
Edgeverve 935,309.67 - -
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.0. 51,130.83 - -
Infosys Technologies (China) Company Limited - - 2,518,055.19

Infosys Technologies (Shanghai) Company Limited - -

17,879,015.17

1,082,707.38 1,621,029.39

20,397,070.36
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16.2 Revenue from related party transactions in
the financial year

in PLN
Particulars Sales revenue
Infosys Ltd, India 7,421,049.72
Infosys BPM Limited, India 2,967,922.04

10,388,971.76

16.3 Cost of related party transactions in the
financial year

in PLN
Particulars Purchase of services
Infosys Ltd, India 162,420.90
Infosys (Czech Republic) Limited s.r.o. 659,217.96
Infosys BPM Limited (previously:
Infosys BPO Limited), India
(including the agencies in the
Netherlands, UK and Singapore) 445.944.72
Portland Group Ltd (126,384.34)
Edgeverve Systems Limited, India 1,243,153.95
2,384,353.19

17.Material related-party transactions
concluded by the Company on non-arm'’s
length terms

There were not material related-party transactions that would
be concluded on non-arm’s length terms.

18. Staff

Average number of staff in the financial year

2,464
2,464

Office employees

19. Salaries, loans and similar benefits to
members of management, supervisory
and administrative bodies

In the current and prior reporting periods, members of the
management, supervisory and administartive bodies did not
receive any loans or similar benefits. Moreover, during the
current year such persons did not receive any salary.

20. Fee paid or payable to the entity
authorized to audit financial statements

in PLN
Particulars 01.04.2017 01.04.2016
-31.03.2018 -31.03.2017
Fee for the audit
of annual financial
statements 56,307.15 101,275.20
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21. Events pertaining to prior years
disclosed in the financial statements for
the current year

The financial statements for the financial year do not include
any events pertaining to prior years.

22. Post-Balance Sheet events not recognizsed
in the financial statements

There were no material post-Balance Sheet events not
recognized in the financial statements.

23. Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements at the highest level of
the capital group, within which the Company operates as a
subsidiary, are prepared by Infosys Limited with its registered
office in India, Electronics City, Hosur Road, Bengaluru.

The consolidated financial statements at the lowest level of
the capital group, within which the Company operates as a
subsidiary, which also belongs to the capital group referred
to above, are prepared by Infosys BPM Limited (previously:
Infosys BPO Limited) with its registered office in India,
Electronics City, Hosur Road, Bengaluru.

24. Contingent liabilities

The Company has issued a blank promissory note in the
amount of PLN 13,106,073.60 to secure the repayment of the
subsidy given by the Ministry of Economy under the subsidy
contract ‘Development of accounting and IT services and
establishment of a R&D Department’ dated 10 December 2012.

As at the end of the reporting period the subsidy
totalled PLN 8,130,452.55.

Regulations on VAT, CIT, PIT and social security premiums
are subject to frequent changes, which leads to absence of
references to sustainable regulations or legal precedence. The
regulations in force contain ambiguous provisions, which lead
to differences in opinion concerning the legal interpretation
of tax legislation both among the tax authorities and between
such authorities and enterprises. Tax authorities can audit tax
returns and other settlements (e.g. regarding customs duty or
foreign currency) and impose high penalties. Any additional
liability amounts assessed during tax inspections bear high
interest. Consequently, the tax risk in Poland is higher as
compared to countries with more developed tax systems.

Tax returns are subject to audit over a period of five years.
Therefore, the amounts presented in the financial statements
may change at a later date as a result of final assessments
made by the tax authorities.

Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18



25. Financial instruments

25.1 Financial risk management objectives and
policy

The Company’s business is exposed to the following risks

resulting from the financial instruments held:

 Credit risk

+ Liquidity risk

¢ Market risk

Key risk management policies

It is the responsibility of the Management Board to implement

and manage a risk management policy in the Company. This

includes identification and analysis of risk that the Company

is exposed to, setting the limits and control mechanisms

as well as monitoring risk and matching the limits. Risk

management rules and procedures are reviewed on a regular

basis in order to take into account changes in the arm’ length

terms and changes in the Company’s business activity.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company may incur a financial

loss if the client or any other party to the financial instrument

defaults on its obligations under the contract. Credit risk is

mainly related to debt financial instruments. The objective

of risk management is to adopt a policy whereby parties to

contracts are set credit limits, in order maintain a stable and

well-balanced loan portfolio, both in terms of the quality and

value of the liabilities.

More information about the «credit risk has

been given in Note 25.5.

25.2 Description of financial instruments

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have problems
meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities by
making payment in cash or transferring other financial
assets. Liquidity management ensures that the Company’s
liquidity is sufficient to pay its liabilities in the ordinary
course of business and during times of crisis without suffering
unacceptable losses, including the loss of reputation.
Market risk

Market risk results from changes in market prices, such
as exchange rates and interest rates, having an impact on
the Company’s performance or the value of its financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is
to keep and control the Company’s exposure within defined
limits while reaching the optimum return on investment.
With a view to managing the market risk, the Company
acquires and sells derivatives.

a) Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk related to sales,
purchases and loans in foreign currencies, mainly US$ and
EUR. The Company mitigates the currency risk with FX
purchase and sale forwards.

b) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in the fair
value due to fixed-interest-rate assets.

in PLN
Portfolio Quantity Carrying amount Terms and conditions affecting future cash flows
Cash in hand and at bank 13,791,090.40 not applicable
Cash deposits 45,150,793.15 interest of 1.51%; maturing by 2018-05-02
25,005,958.90 interest of 1.45%; maturing by 2018-07-04
30,147,780.82 interest of 1.55%; maturing by 2018-04-03
25,133,698.63 interest of 1.60%; maturing by 2018-04-03
60,093,698.63 interest of 1.50%; maturing by 2018-06-04
Other short-term
financial assets —
forwards derivatives 104,900.00 maturing from 04.2018 to 03.2018

Investment in
Vertex Venture
Tidalscale
investment

Financial assets

available for sale

30,780,990.00

6,125,550.00

25.3 Carrying amount of financial instruments measured at fair value

The carrying amount of financial instruments measured at fair value is PLN 53,700.00 (positive value). The Profit and Loss
Account for the reporting period (specifically, other financial revenue) was increased by PLN 1,498,000.00.
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25.4Interest rate risk

in PLN

Financial instruments: 31.03.2018

31.03.2017

carrying amount

carrying amount

Fixed interest rate

Financial assets including: 205,929,000.49 157,149,621.96
loans 20,397,070.36 2,845,352.09
deposits 185,531,930.13 154,304,269.87

Changes in the effective interest rates of financial instruments with floating interest rates follow changes in the market interest

rates, e.g. 1M WIBOR and 3M WIBOR or other reference interest rates.
25.5 Credit risk

The Company’s maximum exposure to the credit risk is expressed as the carrying amount of the following financial assets:

in PLN

Financial assets: 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
carrying amount carrying amount

Loans 20,397,070.36 2,845,352.09
Trade receivables 62,548,643.89 69,495,195.31
Other short-term financial assets: Deposits 25,005,958.90 45,121,561.65
Cash: Deposits 160,525,971.23 109,182,708.22
Cash: Other 13,791,090.40 9,333,409.17
Financial assets available for sale 36,906,540.00 33,360,975.00

319,175,274.78

269,339,201.44

As at the Balance Sheet date, there was no significant concentration of credit risk in relation to the above financial assets, except
for cash which has been deposited in two financial institutions. The Company deems its overall exposure to credit risk as low

due to high and stable credit ratings of the institutions (Baa2 and A3).

26. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of instruments which are not measured at fair value is similar to their carrying amount.

Anantha Radhakrishnan Anup Kapoor

CEO Member of the Board

Kapil Jain Nishit Ajitkumar Shah
Member of the Board Member of the Board

Management Board
Person in charge of the accounting records

todz
April 27,2018
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Report of the Statutory Auditor

To the General Meeting of Infosys Consulting AG, Kloten

Report of the Statutory Auditor on the Financial Statements

As statutory auditors, we have audited the accompanying financial statements of Infosys Consulting AG, which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2017, and the Income Statement and notes for the year then ended.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the requirements of
Swiss law and the Company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
an internal control system relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Swiss Law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal
control system relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 comply with Swiss law and the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2016 were audited by another auditor whose report,
dated March 31, 2017, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Report on Other Legal Requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act (AOA) and independence
(article 728 Code of Obligations (CO)) and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with Article 728a Para 1 Item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we confirm that an internal control system
exists, which has been designed for the preparation of financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss Law and the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Deloitte AG
Marco Hoogendijk Ueli Sturzenegger
Licensed Audit Expert Licensed Audit Expert

Auditor in Charge
Zurich, 28 March 2018
MHO/UST/sal

Enclosures
» Financial statements (Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Notes)
* Proposed appropriation of available earnings

174 | Infosys Consulting AG Infosys Subsidiary Financials 2017-18



Balance Sheet

in CHF
Particulars December 31,
2017 2016

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2,191,264.84 1,715,025.53

Receivables from third parties 4,658,909.01 12,985,745.59

Receivables from other group companies 11,519,510.36 10,893,861.27

Other short-term receivables 1,454,802.70 2,108,056.78

Prepaid expenses and accrued income 5,013,603.23 7,122,882 .81
Total current assets 24,838,090.14 34,825,571.98

Loans to other group companies 1,465,008.91 1,395,246.58

Investments 65,118.06 65,118.06

Tangible assets 205,530.47 606,847.73
Total non-current assets 1,735,657.44 2,067,212.37

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Accounts payable to third parties
Accounts payable to other group companies
Other short-term liabilities
Accrued expenses and deferred income
Total short-term liabilities
Loans from parent
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Share capital
Statutory retained earnings
Voluntary retained earnings
Net profit / (loss) for the year
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

26,573,747.58

36,892,784.35

1,018,781.19 1,323,084.96
455,381.52 373,360.69
1,472,176.58 2,360,858.31
7,725,668.25 16,906,205.78
10,672,007.54 20,963,509.74
5,536,565.22 7,870,121.29
5,536,565.22 7,870,121.29
16,208,572.76  28,833,631.03
120,000.00 120,000.00
60,000.00 60,000.00
7,879,153.32 8,023,468.70
2,306,021.50 (144,31